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In 2022, as the impacts of Coronavirus Disease 2019

("COVID-19" or "the pandemic”) lingered, alongside the

Russia-Ukraine war and tightening central bank monetary
policy, the world economy was perilously close to recession.
Amid the sluggish economic environment, the world's three
largest economies — the United States, China and the
European Union — saw only weak growth, affecting growth in
other countries. Following a record-breaking 2021, the global
IPO market slumped dramatically in 2022, with a significant

decline in both the number of deals and total proceeds.

In Hong Kong, although the resumption of private
consumption resulted in local economic growth, a fall in goods
exports amid worse-than-expected growth in advanced
economies continued to pose a challenge. Mired in the
damaging economic effects of ongoing COVID-19 restrictions,
Hong Kong was surpassed by Singapore as a financial hub,
slipping to fourth place on the latest Global Financial Centres
Index. Despite continued efforts by Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited ("HKEX") to push ahead with a series of new
policies and initiatives, the Hang Seng Index remained under
pressure and ended 2022 in the red, mainly due to the

challenging macroeconomic and geopolitical environment.
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China’'s economy experienced intensifying volatility in 2022 as
the country was hit hard by multiple COVID-19 outbreaks,
persistent turmoil in the property market and sluggish export
demand, delivering its worst economic performance in nearly
half a century. Additionally, China's stock markets were poised
for their worst year since 2008 as the MSCI China Index
tumbled — dragged down mainly by underperforming sectors
such as electric vehicles and technology — rounds of
COVID-19 lockdowns and weaker consumer confidence. On a
brighter note, the Shanghai and Shenzhen Stock Exchanges
were ranked first and second worldwide, respectively, by total
fundraising, and they were the key drivers of the global PO
market in 2022.

Looking ahead, fluctuations and volatility will remain as the
two primary themes of the world economy in 2023 as the
balance of risks remains titled to the downside, while
economic headwinds are posing unprecedented international
economic challenges. Severe health outcomes in China,
escalating geopolitical tensions and elevated financing costs
are all potential obstacles to progress. In Hong Kong, an
economic recovery is expected in 2023, supported by the
relaxation of cross-boundary restrictions and faster-than-
expected economic growth in mainland China. Analysts are
optimistic that Hong Kong's stock market will attract more
IPOs in 2023, thanks to HKEX reforms targeting specialised
tech firms, helping the city reclaim its crown as the world's top

fundraising market.

Aiming to broaden its revenue streams and tap new growth
drivers for sustainable development, the Group will adopt a
cautiously optimistic business strategy to expand its financial
operations and steadily expand its digital asset business. In
such a dynamic and fiercely competitive industry, the Group
will make every effort to improve service quality and provide
premium financial offerings to its customers, at the same time

expanding its scale and broadening the scope of its services.
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In closing, on behalf of my fellow Directors, | wish to express £ ' RAEREXEREBEZRHC HAKEH
our sincere appreciation and wholehearted gratitude to the ERERMMEETBE—F2HEFE -
management team and all of the Group's staff for their FEHIT{E - LAREBRTHARHELRDL
professional dedication, hard work, commitment and  Rk&f o KA NEUROBEHBRELBHEZ
contributions throughout the year. | would also like to extend EERBFESZHE - BERMANLELSHBAR
our sincerest thanks to our shareholders and stakeholders for 2 EM S MERERGEAE  RIFBEES
their confidence and continued support. Leveraging our fREEEEHAIEZRAEE -

extensive experience and comprehensive portfolio of financial

products and services, we will continue to create the greatest

possible value for our shareholders and investors.

Fu Yiu Man, Peter FEHEHITEE
Chairman & Executive Director TR
Hong Kong e

30 March 2023 —E-=F=R=+H
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VC Group is an established financial services group committed

to delivering premier financial services and products that fulfill
various investment and wealth management needs of clients
in the Greater China region and extended into digital assets
industry in year 2021. The Group's expertise includes (i)
provision of financial services comprising securities, options
brokering and dealing, financing services, corporate finance
and other advisory services, asset management and insurance
brokerage; (ii) proprietary trading; and (iii) sale and marketing

of digital assets.
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
In 2022, the global economy decelerated sharply amid

downside risks relating to high inflation, rising geopolitical
tensions, further tightened monetary policy and a resurgence
of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19" or “the
pandemic”). The latest report from the World Bank warns that
the world economy is on the edge of recession, having
experienced gross domestic product growth of just 2.9% in
2022.

During the year, China's economy saw ups and downs, with
headwinds including COVID-19 lockdowns, a historic slump in
the property market, and declining demand from major export
destinations, all of which led to one of the country’s worst
economic performances in decades. The National Bureau of
Statistics reported GDP growth of 3.0%, below the
government's target. In the domestic financial sector, thanks to
the government's ongoing capital market reform efforts, initial
public offerings reached a record high in terms of funds
raised, despite the challenging economic environment. The
Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
were the two top-performing bourses globally in terms of total
funds raised in 2022.

The year was a tumultuous one for global capital markets,
marked by significant volatility. An ongoing tightening of
monetary policy by major central banks, alongside turbulence
in technology stocks and crypto assets, weighed heavily on
stock markets worldwide, resulted in a drop of more than
20.0% in the MSCI All-country World Index. US equities
suffered their worst year since 2008, with the S&P 500 down
19.4% vyear on year and the Dow Jones Industrial Average

was 8.9% lower.
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In Hong Kong, as the pandemic situation stabilised, a higher
employment rate and substantial relief measures in the form
of the Consumption Voucher Scheme boosted private
consumption. However, weaker global demand and continued
cross-boundary transportation disruptions negatively affected
export performance, hindering the city’s economic recovery.
Following a worse-than-expected economic performance in the
first three quarters, the Hong Kong government adjusted its
real GDP growth for 2022 to negative 3.2%. Largely in line
with major overseas markets, the Hang Seng Index fell by
15.5% vyear on year, the Hang Seng China Enterprises Index
dropped 18.6%, and the Hang Seng TECH Index plunged
27.2%. Although the IPO market enjoyed renewed
momentum during the second half of the year, the number of
deals was down by 25% and total proceeds were 70% lower

year on year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, capitalising on its robust financial capabilities
and solid experience in the financial services industry, the
Group continued to develop its traditional finance businesses
and offered premium services to clients. Meanwhile, its newly
developed digital asset sales and marketing business made
encouraging progress. However, against the backdrop of
escalating uncertainty in both the global and Hong Kong
financial markets, the Group's revenue declined during the

year.
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The Group continued to offer local and overseas securities
trading, derivatives and trading in other structured products,
placements, underwriting and margin financing through VC
Brokerage Limited (“VC Brokerage”), and financing services
through VC Finance Limited (“VC Finance”). It also continued
to offer placing and underwriting services to clients. During the
year, the Group continued to act as a placing agent and
underwriter for Hong Kong-listed companies’ fundraising
activities. It offered corporate finance advisory services,
including mergers and acquisitions advisory through VC Capital
Limited (“VC Capital”) and company secretarial services
through VC Corporate Services Limited (“VCCS"). Among the
abovementioned financial services, the brokerage and
financing businesses remained as the Group’s major sources

of income.

In its proprietary trading business, the Group held equity
securities listed in Hong Kong as financial assets for trading.
To maintain its competitiveness and overcome challenges, the
Group continued to focus on the fundamentals of its
investment targets and will continue actively to pursue long-

term capital gains.

While maintaining the development of its traditional financial
service businesses, the Group is also actively seeking
diversified business development opportunities and identifying
new revenue growth engines to expand its portfolio. In
December 2021, its digital asset sales and marketing business
began operations, and has since benefited from significant
effort and resources to expedite its development. Following
the establishment of a professional sales and marketing team
to broaden its sales channels, the Group formed strategic
cooperation agreements with large enterprises, notably those

in the tech sector.
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During the year, the Group continued to enhance its
collaboration with Tencent's direct business associates and
became one of their selected partners. The Group also
commenced a collaboration with the distributor of Microsoft
products in Hong Kong, involving sales of Xbox-related digital

assets.

Establishment of a joint venture securities company
in Guangxi

In July 2016, the Company announced that VC Brokerage, an
indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a joint venture agreement (the “Joint Venture
Agreement”) with three independent third parties to establish
a joint venture securities company in Guangxi, the PRC (the
“PRC JV Company”). Subject to the approval by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission (the "CSRC"), the PRC JV
Company is expected to be a full-licensed securities company
permitted to provide securities brokerage, trading and
investment advisory, underwriting, sponsorship and asset
management services in the PRC. Pursuant to the Joint
Venture Agreement, VC Brokerage will contribute RMB445
million (equivalent to approximately HK$495 million),

representing 44.5% shareholding in the PRC JV Company.
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As at the date hereof, the Company and VC Brokerage have
not yet obtained the approval and authorisation from the
CSRC for establishment of the PRC JV Company. Details of the
transaction please refer to the Company's announcements
dated 24 July 2016, 20 September 2016, 26 October 2016,
18 November 2016, 17 January 2017, 29 March 2017, 28
June 2017, 20 September 2017, 12 October 2017, 12
January 2018, 27 March 2018, 27 June 2018, 20 July 2018,
28 August 2018, 6 September 2018, 28 November 2018
and 21 February 2019; and the Company's circulars dated 26
September 2016, 27 February 2017, 22 September 2017, 23
February 2018, 3 August 2018 and 31 January 2019.

Acquisition of convertible bonds issued by Virtual
Mind Holding Company Limited

On 6 January 2022, the Company completed subscription of
convertible bonds (the “1520CB") issued by Virtual Mind
Holding Company Limited (“Virtual Mind") (stock code: 1520)
at consideration of HK$10 million. The 1520CB is convertible
into 66,844,919 shares of Virtual Mind at exercise price of
HK$0.1496. Based on valuation obtained from an
independent professional valuer, the Company recorded gain
on acquisition of the 1520CB of approximately HK$7.6 million
and further fair value gain from the date of acquisition to 31

December 2022 of approximately HK$0.5 million.
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Placing of 400,000,000 new shares under general
mandate (lapsed) (the “Placing”)

On 20 December 2022, the Company entered into the
placing agreement (the "Placing Agreement”) with VC
Brokerage (the “Placing Agent”), an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, pursuant to which the Company
was desirous of offering the placing shares (the "Placing
Shares”) free from any encumbrance whatsoever for
subscription and appointed the Placing Agent on sole and
exclusive basis to place and procure subscriptions for the
Placing Shares on a best effort basis subject to the terms and
conditions set out in the Placing Agreement. The Placing Agent
shall procure not less than six placees to subscribe for up to
400,000,000 Placing Shares at a price of HK$0.128 per
Placing Share.

As the conditions precedent as set out in the Placing
Agreement were not fully satisfied or fulfilled by 10 January
2023, being the closing date of the Placing, the Placing
Agreement lapsed and the Placing did not proceed. Details of
the transaction had been disclosed in the Company's
announcements dated 20 December 2022 and 10 January
2023.
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Acquisition of Anli Asset Management Limited
("AAM™) and Anli Investment Fund SPC (“AIF")

On 25 November 2022, VC Financial Group Limited (the
“Purchaser”), being a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Anli Holdings Limited (the “Vendor”) entered
into the sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Vendor conditionally
agreed to sell to the Purchaser, and the Purchaser
conditionally agreed to purchase from the Vendor, the the
entire portfolio of 7,775,000 issued ordinary shares in AAM
and the entire portfolio of 100 Management Shares in AIF as
at the date of the Sale and Purchase Agreement at the
consideration of HK$15,000,000 by issuing consideration
shares of the Company to the Vendor. In addition, subject to
the fulfilment of the conditions of the earnout (the "Earnout”)
to be determined by a formula set out in the Sale and
Purchase Agreement, the Vendor shall be entitled to the
Earnout of not more than HK$25,000,000 by issuing further
shares by the Company to the Vendor. As at the date hereof,

the transaction has not yet completed.

Further details of the transaction are disclosed in the
Company's announcements dated 25 November 2022, 16
December 2022, 13 February 2023 and 2 March 2023 and
the Company's circular dated 14 February 2023.

Details of the Group’s business performance of each operating
segment for the year ended 31 December 2022, together
with the comparative figures of the corresponding period in
2021, are given in the section “FINANCIAL REVIEW" below.
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OUTLOOK

After years of macroeconomic and geopolitical turmoil, stock
markets globally are expected to remain gloomy in 2023.
According to the International Monetary Fund (“IMF"),
increases in central bank interest rates to combat inflation and
the Russia-Ukraine conflict will continue to depress global
economic activity. According to the latest World Bank Global
Economic Prospects report, global growth is set to slow from
2.9% in 2022 to 1.7% in 2023.

On the upside, a slower pace of interest rate rises followed by
a gradual cooling of inflation will provide a more favourable
environment for fundraising. Additionally, China's recent border
reopening will pave the way for a domestic economic
rebound, with the IMF expecting China's economic growth to
rise to 5.2% in 2023. As economic activity accelerates
following China’s reopening, Hong Kong's economy is
expected to recover, and the city's GDP is forecasted to grow
3.8% in 2023. Its stock market is expected to regain its title
as one of the top three global IPO hubs in 2023 and welcome

the return of large listings in the second half of the year.

Given expectations of a gradual recovery of the Hong Kong
stock market in 2023, the Group will maintain a prudent,
cautiously optimistic approach to the development of its
placing and underwriting business. Leveraging its long-term
relationships with local clients, the Group will continue to
provide superior services aimed at satisfying customer demand
at competitive prices. In order to drive market expansion and
seize growing opportunities, the Group aspires to enlarge the
scope of its services while seeking appropriate acquisitions

and investment targets.
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In the financial services business, the Group has proposed
acquiring Anli Asset Management Limited ("AAM") and Anli
Investment Fund SPC (“AIF") in November 2022. Following
the approval of the acquisition by shareholders in March
2023, the Group will proceed with the transaction, which it
anticipates will help to expand its customer base and improve
the quality of its asset management services. By capitalising
on the brands, reputations and management expertise of AAM
and AlF, the Group will capture opportunities to further expand
its asset management business and enhance its core

competence in the industry.

Since its digital asset business began operations in December
2021, the Group has been dedicated to seizing more business
opportunities in mainland China through establishing strategic
partnerships and enhancing collaborations with partners,
especially tech giant Tencent. The Group will allocate more
resources to the segment in order to drive syncretistic effects
between its digital asset business and its other businesses. It
will also explore trends in digital asset markets to drive its
digital asset marketing, intellectual property (“IP") collaboration
and marketing cooperation development. The Group aims to
further increase its presence in the digital asset market to

enhance its profitability and market share.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's

consolidated revenue was approximately HK$73.3 million,
which decreased by about 19% as compared with the same
period in 2021 of approximately HK$90.6 million. The Group
recorded a consolidated loss attributable to shareholders
amounted to approximately HK$178.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 against a profit of approximately
HK$15.2 million for the same period in 2021.

The loss in the Group's consolidated result attributable to
shareholders in 2022 compared to profit of 2021 was mainly
attributable to (i) decrease in revenue of approximately
HK$17.3 million; (ii) net realised and unrealised loss in
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$171.7 million against net realised and
unrealised gain of approximately HK$32.9 million for the same
period last year; partially offset by (iii) gain on acquisition of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$9.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2022; and further partially offset by (iv) absence of
loss from discontinued operation which was approximately
HK$13.6 million inccured during the year ended 31 December
2021.

To facilitate the review, the Group's revenue and segment
information shown in Notes 5 and 6 to the consolidated
financial statements is reproduced below after some

rearrangements:
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Revenue Analysis &= gakit
2022 2021
—E-- —E—F
Proportion Proportion
of total of total Increase
revenue revenue  (decrease)
(3 -LE EEEhE Zm
k4 L A5 CR)
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % %
TERT TET
Revenue from: RENTEBZK
%
Brokerage and Financing RIELREER 63,968 87% 82,824 9200 (23)%
Brokerage commission and “rpekE
other related fees o E R B A 6,792 9% 13,587 15% (50)%
Underwriting, BiF D8
sub-underwriting, placing S RE R
and sub-placing SEEAS
commission 4,256 6% 15,529 17% (73)%
Interest income from EEF RS S
brokerage clients =5~ A
KA 14,051 19% 16,017 18% (12)%
Interest income from money KEREER
lending clients =i & o)A
WA 38,869 53% 37,691 42% 3%
Other fees Eofth U & = = - - -
Corporate Finance and Other  {dEghE & H ith
Advisory Services BEREES 7,001 10% 7,430 8% (6%)
Asset Management BESIEER = = - - -
Insurance Brokerage RBCLER - - 10 - (100)%
Proprietary Trading HEBEEED 250 - 284 - (12)%
Sales and marketing of digital B & EE &
assets R 2,062 3% 6 - 34,267%

Total revenue 4 = 73,281 100% 90,554 100% (19)%
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Segment Analysis

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Segment results: DEPERE
Brokerage and Financing R L& ER 22,948 50,889
Corporate Finance and Other Advisory EME N HE AR RS E
Services (3,175) 455
Asset Management BETIEER (1,710) (1,629)
Insurance Brokerage RBIELETS (502) (746)
Proprietary Trading BE2EEXRK (173,725) 31,695
Sales and marketing of digital assets BITEEHEREEE (8,198) (3,174)
Group segment (loss) profit SE8H I (EE) BT (164,362) 77,490
Gain on acquisition of financial assets WiE R N TES R KRR R
at fair value through profit or loss BRIBZMEEE WA 9,040 -
Fair value change on financial assets BRATFEIGEREERREE
at fair value through profit or loss MBEE2ATEEY 500 299
Unallocated administrative costs ROELITEK AR (23,440) (38,351)
Share of profit of an associate DL EEE R B2 % A 96 194
(Loss) profit before taxation BB A (B HR) & A (178,166) 39,632
Income tax credit (expenses) FrERiEe (FX) 74 (10,859)
(Loss) profit for the year from SEREEBFE
continuing operations (B8 & A (178,092) 28,773
Loss for the year from a discontinued ERIEEEEH 2 FEEIE
operation - (21,979)
(Loss) profit for the year FEER) RN (178,092) 6,794
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Brokerage and Financing

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company,
through VC Brokerage, provides securities and options
brokering and dealing, margin financing, and placing and
underwriting services. It also through another indirect wholly
owned subsidiary, VC Finance Limited (“VC Finance"), provides
money lending services. For the year ended 31 December
2022, the brokerage and financing businesses recorded total
revenue of approximately HK$64.0 million as compared with
approximately HK$82.8 million for the same period last year,
representing a decrease of about 23%, and accounted for

about 87% of the Group's total revenue.

Brokerage service

One of the Group’s major revenue streams, namely, brokerage
commission and other related fees from dealing in securities
and options contracts for the year ended 31 December 2022
amounted to approximately HK$6.8 million, which was about
50% lower than that of 2021 of approximately HK$13.6
million, and accounted for about 9% of the Group's total
revenue. The Group’s brokerage transactions recorded
decrease with average daily trading turnover decreasing from
approximately HK$25.0 million in 2021 to that of 2022 of
approximately HK$10.3 million, being a decrease of about
59%.

Financing

Meanwhile, the Group's total interest income from financing
for the year ended 31 December 2022 decreased by about
2% to approximately HK$52.9 million from approximately
HK$53.7 million for the same period last year, and accounted
for about 72% of the Group's total revenue. The revenue
included the interest income derived from both the brokerage

business and the money lending business.
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SN —EHEE2ENBRARERTEERA
A(TERMBRHRERSE HEZZT
ZZHF+ZA=+HALFE LLRBE
% 758515 4964,000,00078 7T 2 U & ¢ i &
F [F 89 A 49 /282,800,000 7t * 18 49 B
230 -+ T AR 1 AN SR B A R 4987 % ©

S 4 IR

REEB7HEP-—HFERSHKR NEEF
HREREN K LA RAEEMERE
AREZE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HLEFE
#) /6,800,000 T W_ZT - —F4
13,600,000 JT 8k > 43500 -+ 1 1t U2 25 165 A
EEBKEL AEBZELR DB
WL BETHARREA T —F4
25,000,000/ 7T 2 K159% % — T = ZF 4
10,300,000/ 7T °

A
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B ARBEREEBRNSRAREREF
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Financing service: Brokerage clients

Among the above, the Group's interest income from our
brokerage clients recorded approximately HK$14.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022, representing a decrease
of about 12% as compared to approximately HK$16.0 million
for the same period last year. The decrease was mainly
attributable to the decrease of average loan portfolio of our
brokerage clients by about 17% for the year ended 31
December 2022 as compared with the same period last year.
For the year ended 31 December 2022, there was an
additional impairment loss of approximately HK$1.1 million on
brokerage client receivables (2021: reversal of HK$16.7
million) in accordance with the Group's credit control policies
and procedures and requirements of relevant accounting
standard. The average interest rate for brokerage clients is
approximately 12%. Almost all brokerage client receivables are

pledged with securities held by the clients.

Financing service: Money lending clients

The Group also provides money lending services to our
clients. This aims at broadening our revenue base and also
offering our clients with more financial flexibility to meet their
personal and business needs. The Group's interest income
generated from the money lending services was approximately
HK$38.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2022,
representing an increase of about 3% as compared to
approximately HK$37.7 million for the same period last year.
The increase was mainly attributable to increase of average
loan portfolio of the money lending business by 2% in 2022

as compared with the same period last year.

BERE - AL RBFES
FRFMEBAEF  AEERELLEBE
PZMBEKRARBE_ZTS__F+=H
=T —HILFEHBEL14,100,0008 7T * &K
2= [7 8 4916,000,0007% JT I 4> #7120 ° U8
ABLPEETBHRAEERBE_T_—
TZA=Z+-BLEFERKSLEBTPIRH
CTHEFRMASEELIFRBMALRDLD
7% BE_T-_—_F+_A=+—RHI%F
B RBAEEZEEERBREEFUR
Mg ERETE  BRELEBKEFHIE
B 15 S INRE BB 41,100,0008 7T (ZF
— —F : #[E16,700,000 L) ° [ &AL E

BEPWE 2 FIHREL H12% - BAE D
BUELEBEFPRBEHETFFHA 2 EAM
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Additional information on money lending business

() Business model

The Group's money lending business is managed through
our indirect wholly owned subsidiary, VC Finance, with
money lenders license issued under the Money Lenders
Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The
Group's customers principally include high net worth
individuals, private companies or listed companies
introduced to the directors of the Company through
business/personal networks or are referred to the Group
by its existing or former customers. There is no specific
target loan size but each application would be dealt on
its own merit. The Group finances this money lending
business mainly by internal resources. The following

internal control procedures are put in place:

Assessment and approval

Prior to granting of a loan, the Group carries out credit
risk assessment on the customer, taking into account,
inter alias, background of the customer or the customer’s
shareholders (as the case maybe), purpose of the loan,
source of repayment, value of collateral and guarantee(s),
if any, and the financial strength of the customer/

shareholders/guarantors.

The approval process for granting loans include the
completion of account opening form (for new customer)
and know-your-customer assessment. The finance
department would verify the information obtained
(including identity, business background information and
collateral information), check against supporting
documents (including identity documents, address proof,
securities statements, documents by conducting public
searches and financial statements (for corporate
borrowers)) and initiate credit assessment form for
further processing. The board of directors of VC Finance
would be responsible for approving the grant of the loan.
The legal and compliance department would prepare the

loan documentation for signing.
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Monitoring and recovery

If a customer does not repay the loan principal or
accrued interest in accordance with the loan agreement,
the finance department would promptly report to the
credit committee of VC Finance including all directors of
VC Finance. The credit committee members of VC
Finance meet once a month to review the status of all
customers, discuss necessary actions required and serves
as an input for loan classification in calculating
impairment loss on loan receivables for financial reporting

purpose.

The actions taken for recovering delinquent loans would
include examination and evaluation of the relevant loan
status, discussion with the customer and internal
discussion about formulating possible action plan.
Recovery strategy involve a wide range of actions
including revision of repayment terms, addition of
collaterals/guarantee, execution of settlement agreement,
foreclosure of collaterals/enforcement of guarantees and
commencement of legal proceedings. The Group strives
to strike a successful balance in its business operations
and risk management by adhering to its credit policies in
order to control the quality of its loan portfolio. The
Group has also appointed an independent internal control
advisor to conduct independent review on adequacy and
effective of internal control systems of the Group's

money lending business.
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(I) Major terms of the loans granted

Summary

Number of active loan accounts

Average loan amount

Percentage of amount of total loans and
interest receivables from the largest
customers

Percentage of amount of total loans and
interest receivables from the largest 5
customers

Average duration

Interest rate range

Secured Loans

Percentage of loans secured by collaterals
including listed and unlisted equity
securities and legal charge on properties
(“Secured Loans")

Average duration

Interest rate range

() ER#Rz E2ER

wE
2022
—E_-C
EREREPHA 24
EHE R HK$12.6 million
12,600,0005 7T
KEZAEF ZRBREERK
FlemEh2BrkER
RAMBz@EzZADL 9%
KERAAREP ZREERK
Fl b2 BnrEKkER
EANBZHEEZADL 40%
T EIR 8.0 months
8.018 A
e e 8% to 18%
8%ZE 18%
BAHEN
2022
—_E-C
BERMERR (RE LT RIE
FHEREERMELETE
RRI2ER(BEERE
RNBERBE2ADL 66%
FHHR 9.2 months
9.218 A
F R E 12% to 18%
12%ZE 18%

24
HK$11.4 million
11,400,000/ 7T

9%

39%

7.7 months
771 A
8% to 18%

8%Z18%

34%

7.9 months
7.918 A
12% to 18%
12%Z%18%
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Unsecured Loans

Percentage of loans with no collateral or I K| Rk R 2 B

guarantee (“Unsecured Loans")

HzEDHK
Average duration T EIR
Interest rate range M =&

There was only 1 loan with aggregate principal and
interest of approximately HK$21.2 million (2021: HK$20
million) (or 7.0% (2021: 7.3%) of the whole portfolio)
paying 8% interest per annum, with the rest being 12%
to 18% per annum. The borrower is Anli Holdings
Limited, the holding company of a famous financial group
whose principal activities include securities and futures
brokerage, provision of financial communication service,
advisory services on corporate finance and digital media.
With reference to the consolidated financial statements of
the financial group, synergy in business collaboration was
anticipated with the borrower’s entities and the

borrower's repayable capability was considered reliable.

(TEERERDEERR

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
34% 66%

6.9 months 7.5 months
6.918 A 7.518 A

8% to 18%

8% % 18%

8% to 18%
8% 2 18%
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1D

When determining the terms of unsecured loans, the
Group paid further attention on business background,
financial position, repayment ability and reputation
(including but not limited to their disclosed shareholdings
and directorship in various listed companies) of
respective borrowers and the Group's potential business
opportunities with them. The Group will take appropriate
legal actions against the unsecured borrowers with an
aim of recovery from their other assets in the event of

prolonged defaults.

Impairment recognition as at year end

The Group applies the general approach, which is often
referred to as “three-stage model”, under HKFRS 9, in
which Expected Credit Loss ("ECL") of loan receivable are
determined based on (a) the changes in credit quality of
the loan receivable since initial recognition, and (b) the
estimated expectation of an economic loss of the loan

receivable under consideration.

Under the general approach, there are two measurement
bases for allowance of ECL: (a) 12-month ECL, which are
the ECL that result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date and are
calculated as the allowance for ECL on a loan receivable
weighted by the probability of default accumulated over
the 12 months after the reporting date; (b) lifetime ECL,
which are the ECL that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a loan receivable and are
calculated as the allowance for ECL on a loan receivable
weighted by the probability of default accumulated over

the entire life of the loan receivable.
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The allowance for ECL on loan receivables are derived
from gross credit exposure, recovery rate and probability
of default. The Group uses the following ECL formula to

calculate the allowance for ECL on its loan receivables:

Allowance for ECL = gross credit exposure x adjusted

probability of default x (1 — recovery rate)

For ECL assessment, the Group’s loan receivables are

classified as follows:

(i) Stage 1 (Performing) includes loan receivables that
have not had a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition or that have low credit risk at
the reporting date. For these loan receivables,

12-month ECL are recognised.

(i) Stage 2 (Doubtful) includes loan receivables that
have had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition (unless they have low credit risk at
the reporting date) but that do not have objective
evidence of impairment. For these loan receivables,

lifetime ECL are recognised.

(i) Stage 3 (Default) includes loan receivables that have
objective evidence of impairment and are
considered as credit-impaired financial assets at the
reporting date. For these loan receivables, lifetime

ECL are recognised.

BUER 2 BREEERBREDREE
ERBARE WREREOBERSEL -
AEBEFERATEREE BB KRG
HHEEWERZEHMEEBERE

EHREEERRE = GEARARGE
HEEHOBE x (1 - ]WHX)

SABEREEER  ~A&B2REEE
RN

() BE—RBE(RIF)BEEBVIHER
AR{E B RS I R - sk
BREBZEERRBREE ZEKRE
HoRZERBERMNE @ EER
128 ATEERE B &R -

(i) F_ERURR) BERENIER
UREERRGBEEMERIER
BERBZEERRRE)  ELE
EBRERBRZEBBER % E
UWERTE - EERIEEFES
BEHREEER -

(i) F=EERCEN) BRBAEERE
FEANBSERE R —HEER
BEMBEEZRWRER - A FR
WEFME  BREREEFENE
HEEER -
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Details of impairment recognition is as below:

MEERZFHBET

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
R-B-Z-F R-T-—

+t=A=+—-B t-A=+—~H

HK$'million HK$'million

BEETT BEAT

Stage 1 F—BER 0.5 0.1
Stage 2 F_BER 21.7 432
Stage 3 FE=FEER 56.1 27.2
Total #mat 78.3 70.5

To ensure the adequacy of allowance for ECL on loan
receivables, the Group engaged an independent
professional valuers to conduct a valuation on the
allowance for ECL on loan receivables recognised for

each reporting period.

RERHEUERBEHREEBR2EER
RAKEEBBELEXMGEMESERS
MR RUERcBEREEBRRGE
1T1h1E -
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(IV) Additional impairment loss for the year ended 31 December

2022

Fully repaid during the year (1 loan)
FRBHER (1 F2ER)
Existing Stage 1 loans
BAEF-HEBRER

— With ECL impairment

- BSEMEEEERE
— With ECL reversal

- BGRHEEHERD
— No movement

— AT

Existing Stage 2 loans
REE_BEREN

— With ECL impairment

- BERHEEBERE
— With ECL reversal

- BEEMEEBRAD
— No movement

Existing Stage 3 loans
REE=EREX

— With ECL impairment

- BSRHEEBBERE
— No movement

- Apm

Newly granted Stage 2 loan
RS R E X

— With ECL impairment

- BERHEEBBRRE

RSMNRE B 18

No. of loans

EXEE

N/A A~

29

W) BEZZE-—F+-A=+—HILFE

Amount
Kok
HK$'million
BEBTT

(1.0)

0.2

7.1

5.2

(14.1)

24.5

0.1

Total
4ET

24

7.8
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Analysis of significant impairment on certain customers forthe #HE-T-_—_F+-A=+—HIEFEHFH

year ended 31 December 2022 are presented below:

Impairment amount

ETEPZERBEZONMIZET

Detailed reasons for additional impairment

WESEE BINEAE 2 7 R E
HK$'million
BEBTT
Existing Stage 2 loans
RBEE_EBER
Customer A 2.9 Reduction in value of securities as collateral
EPA Rz EREE T
Customer B 1.6 Reduction in value of securities as collateral
=P B ERmZ EHREE TR
2 others customers 0.7
HEtmaEP
5.2
Existing Stage 3 loans
REF=BEER
Customer C 12.8 No repayment despite repeated demands, considered
%P C credit impaired
ZREKRTIIRENR  BIEEERE
Customer D 8.5 Reduction in value of securities as collateral and not
=P D responsive
ERmo BREET®KETEEE
Customer E 3.2 Reduction in value of securities as collateral and not
EPE responsive
K@ BREET®ALELEE
24.5

In summary, aggregate ECL impairment was approximately — #F& LXFal - FRBEHEEERREZ &

HK$30.0 million (2021: HK$25.7 million) while aggregate ECL
reversal was approximately HK$22.2 million (2021: HK$6.3

84 430,000,000 L (Z & = —F
25,700,000 L) * MIBEZEEERERD 2

million), resulting in net ECL impairment of approximately A8 %8 47 /322,200,000/8 7T (= F = — F :

HK$7.8 million (2021: HK$19.4 million) during the year.

6,300,000/ 70) * BB HBEHEESER
B B5#A7,800,0008 T (T - —%F:
19,400,000 7T.) ©
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The Group has put efforts on implementing our credit control
policies and procedures to review our clients’ creditworthiness
and credit limits from time to time so as to minimize our
credit risk exposure. The Group's credit control policies and
procedures are principally based on the doubtful unsecured
exposure having assessed the fair value of the clients’
collaterals held, the evaluation of collectability and aging
analysis of the client accounts. The Group will take all
necessary legal actions against the relevant clients to follow up
the settlement of the outstanding loans. Details of the
impairment loss on the client receivables had been disclosed

in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Placing and underwriting services

Meanwhile, the Group offers placing and underwriting services
to our clients, and acts as placing agent and underwriter for
Hong Kong listed companies’ fund-raising activities. For the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's placing and
underwriting commission was approximately HK$4.3 million as
compared with approximately HK$15.5 million for the same
period last year. The Group will continue to put efforts to
capture the opportunities towards the local initial public

offerings and other fund-raising exercises.

Overall, the brokerage and financing businesses recorded a
profit after tax of approximately HK$22.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 as compared with a profit of
approximately HK$50.9 million for the same period last year.
The deterioration of the performance in 2022 was mainly due
to the Group did not secure as much placing and underwriting

business from the capital market as last year.

AEBRNEREEEERRRER - KA
BRENTFNEEERRERER  BUSSK
B EERRBERE AREZEEER
BRMEEFDEZREREFARE AR
REDHBEREEFERRz 2 TE ¥
E R PRI 2 AT B A BUA K BR Bk 9 AT o R
SERAEETEPRIR— B EERITE
AIREREEE R Z WK - BRAEYEF R
RBEEBERZFBNGEE Y B RKM 26
WEE -

I & K 615 AR 7%

N REBAEFPIREEERBERY
VWAZREBLTRAREISEEEH 2 EE
REEB#HEB BE2_ZT_—_F+_7
=S+—RLEFE AEESG I REERBH
& %9 /34,300,0007% 7T - i & F [7 HA B 49
7$15,500,000/ 7T © A5 B 1§ E AR AR
NEBRABERAAHABEREMELTHA
RIN 2B o

BEME KLRREXBREBEE-T ==
F+ZA=1+—H1FE#15422,900,000
BT BREE B - i R HR R 8215 % F
#950,900,000/ 7T °» —E - —F z R IR EIR
FTEDHREEEFASET ARNEREH
ENRERBHEBAE -



32

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIZRERA T

Annual Report 2022 &£}

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EHEEsTs/ &9 T

Corporate Finance and Other Advisory Services

The Company through its indirect wholly owned subsidiary, VC
Capital Limited (“VC Capital”), provides corporate finance
advisory services to its clients. The Company through its
another indirect wholly owned subsidiary, VC Corporate
Services Limited, provides corporate services, including
company secretarial services, registered office and business

services, etc., to listed and private companies.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company's
corporate finance and other advisory services recorded
revenue and loss after tax of approximately HK$7.0 million
and HK$3.2 million as compared with revenue of
approximately HK$7.4 million and profit after tax of
approximately HK$0.5 million for the same period last year,

respectively.

Asset Management

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company's asset
management business, through its indirect wholly owned
subsidiary, VC Asset Management Limited, recorded an
operating loss after tax of approximately HK$1.7 million as
compared with a loss of approximately HK$1.6 million for the
same period last year, which mainly included the general

operating expenses such as staff costs.

As disclosed in the paragraph headed "Acquisition of Anli
Asset Management Limited and Anli Investment Fund SPC"
under the management discussion and analysis section, the
Company enhanced the asset management business through
the strategic acquisition. Following the relaxation of travelling
restriction between Hong Kong and Mainland China in early
2023, the team actively approached potential clients so as to
gain understanding of their needs, establish long-term
business relationship with them and finally provide the
personalised investment and wealth management services

which can create greater value to them.

CEREREMERREER
ARREBEFEZR2ENBERARERRES
RAR(MEERE]) MEEZFRELER
BERARE ARRBEEES—MEEE2E
MBARERWERKBRAR S LM R
ARRREGERY - BREARMERS
M EE N ERSEE -

HE-_ZT-_—F#+-_F=+—HIEEE K
NEZ DA & H b B8 AR %7 9 Bl 8%
15 W % 497,000,000 7T & B Bt 12 E5 1B 49
3,200,000 7t - 2R AF R B 5l = UK
% #97,400,0007% 7T K Bk B 12 4 A1 49500,000
BT

EEEEER
HE-_T-—"F#+-_F=+—HIEEE K
AR REMEEZENBAREREEER
ERAAKEZEEEEEBHED
1,700,000 T2 R L EE  ER X
A BB 8213 B5 1B 491,600,0008 7T - £ 2
BEEIRAE —REERT -

HMMERENREAON] —HATKRERE
BEEEEABMRA A KA Investment Fund
SPC]—B AT TR - A A REBREEUE M
RABEEBEK BEDTHBEPBEAM 2
WHHABREE-_S-_ZFVRE BE
EREREREBRGEAEERRS  BEUT
BMESEZHE BURHBEBKBE &K\
BRERBYEMAATEZRARVEEER
% AEFAIEEXNEE-
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Insurance Brokerage

The Group, through Experts Management Limited, an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary, was engaged in the provision for
insurance brokerage service. Experts Management Limited
owns insurance broker company licence and is entitled to
conduct long term insurance business. During the year, Experts
Management Limited recorded revenue of HK$384 (2021:
HK$10,000) with a loss of approximately HK$502,000 (2021:
HK$746,000).

Proprietary Trading

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held equity securities
listed in Hong Kong of approximately HK$300.6 million (31
December 2021: HK$423.5 million) as financial assets
held-for-trading, which was stated at market value. The fair
value of these listed equity securities represents about 37%
of the Group's total assets as at 31 December 2022 (31
December 2021: 42%). The global capital market plummeted
during the year 2022, resulting in substantial realised and
unrealised loss recognised. Nonetheless, travelling restrictions
relaxed worldwide due to effect of COVID-19 being subsided
poses hope of strong rebound as signaled towards end of
2022.

The Group invests mainly through purchases in the secondary
market. The management follows strictly the internal securities
investment policy and seeks the approval from the Board,
when necessary, so as to enhance the financial returns to the
shareholders and limit the risk exposure associated therewith.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was net
purchase in securities investment of approximately HK$33.8
million (2021: HK$186.3 million).

AEBEBEBEE2ENE R Experts

Management Limitedf¢ % 12 @it & b £ 42 AR
ﬁk Experts Management Limited# & (R & 48

CARIER  WHEETRIARRER - F
A+ Experts Management Limited#%13 W25 A
384T (ZF = —% : 10,0008 L) KERE
#)502,000% 7T (=T = — % : 746,000/
JT) e

HEEBEXK
R-ZB-_—H+-_A=+—8 A&EHAF
REBLTZBRAER (BREEBEMBE

) #J300,600,000/8 c (ZE=Z—F+= A
=+—H : 423,500,000/ 7T) * JyiZ A
R ZELTRAZFSFNR_Z__F+=A
=T —HZAFEEREEBEELNI7% (=
S —F+ZA=1—H :42%) - 2H%E&
AMBER_E__FH2K AMBERERLN
BERRARFIREE - A - BRCOVID-19
MEEELERIE  2RSHHEARRGAE
FE EAME_T__FREEHETAEE
58 S IR 58 H) 1= 5% ©

AEBXTZEHZNF_MBGBEEMELER
B -EREBRRETRAPELFRERE I
ENERERLRFBESTSME  BEF
FBR B 755 120 3 &) [R] BF R PR | EC AR A /LB o 0
BHE_Z-_—_F+-_A=1+T—RHLFE #F
FIWE 2 FEEEHL /33,800,000% 7T (=
T = —1F : 186,300,000/ 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately HK$250,000 (2021: HK$284,000)
from the proprietary trading business. Meanwhile, the Group
recognised net loss of approximately HK$171.7 million
(including a realised loss of approximately HK$14.2 million
and unrealised loss of approximately HK$157.5 million) on
the trading investments for the year ended 31 December
2022 as compared with net gain of approximately HK$32.9
million (including realised loss of approximately HK$16.7
million and unrealised gain of approximately HK$49.6 million)

for the same period in 2021.

Below is an analysis of the financial assets held-for-trading
held by the Group as at 31 December 2022:

Industries

7%

Energy R
Information technology RS
Consumer goods and services HE R IR
Metals and minerals B REY
Financials TR
Industrials T%

BE_ T " F+-A=+—HIEE K
SEBEEEXBHSKEK250,000% 7T
ZEZ— 4 :284,0008L) c B —FHE
AEBREBEE-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—81t
FEREERABERBEBFAED
171,700,000 T (B2 E#REELD
14,200,000 Tt R K& |/ EIELDY
157,500,000 7T) - MR —ZE=-—FHH#A
B% 15 W 35 0F B £932,900,000/8 7T (BIEE #
IR K518 416,700,000 T R A B R F L
49,600,000 7T) °

AEEBR - ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HEKE

BZUHBEESTAOT :
Unrealised
gain (loss)
Market value Percentage for the
as at to the year ended 31
31 December Group's December
2022 total assets 2022
BE
—E-=
+tZRA=+-H
R-ZB-Z EAEE ILFEZ
+=ZRA=t+-H BEE - E10 6
ZThiE B (B18)
HK$' million HK$" million
BEET BEAT
51.8 6.4% (35.7)
140.6 17.4% (106.1)
39.5 4.9% 2.7
7.0 0.9% 1.9
37.7 4.6% (4.6)
24.0 3.0% (15.7)

300.6 37.200 (157.5)




VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZR#ZRAER AT

Annual Report 2022 £

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &M EsTsh &9

While the performance of different industries did vary, the
Group cautiously monitors the investment portfolio and shall
be determined to make any strategic moves. The loss incurred
during year 2022 was in line with the plummet of global
capital market. Overall, the Group's proprietary trading
business recorded loss after tax of approximately HK$173.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: profit

after tax of HK$31.7 million).

Sale and marketing of digital assets

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
recorded GMV and revenue of approximately HK$363.1
million and HK$2.1 million (2021: HK$1.3 million and
HK$6,000) respectively. Revenue from sales and distribution
of Q Coins amounted to approximately HK$2.0 million,
representing approximately 95% of the segment. The
remaining revenue attributable to this segment was from sale
of digital collection (Mainland China’s version of NFT) and
X-Box game pass. As a result, this segment recorded loss after
tax of approximately HK$8.2 million (2021: HK$3.2 million).

Unallocated administrative costs

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the unallocated
administrative costs amounted to approximately HK$23.4
million as compared with approximately HK$38.4 million for
the same period last year, which mainly included the
unallocated corporate operating expenses. The decrease in the
unallocated administrative costs of approximately HK$15.0
million in 2022 was mainly attributable to the absence of loss

on disposal of subsidiaries in 2021.

BETEATENREZ2ZE  EAKEFAR
BRIEEHRE R TFEIEDEMRBEEE -
TR CFERBERE2KERTIZEYK
ZERBERF -EEME  AEEZEEEER
FBERBE_T__F+_-_A=+—HIF
fE 815 49173,700,000% 702 B Fi £ 51 (=

T —F : BR%EFIZ1,700,00087T) °
BN EEHEREEXEYK
REEZE_ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—HItFE "

AEBEZEERRRBERRKZE S A
363,100,000/ 7T %2,100,0008 7t (= &
— —4 : 1,300,000/ JT 26,000/ JT) ° 8
E ko Qs 2 Wi #) £2,000,000%8 7T+ ¥
DE 2 B4 A95% ° b5 3B 2 H R R
B 6 & U R & (R B ANFT) &X-Box
game pass ° Bk kD ZBERIS BR T 1R B 18
#18,200,000/% 7T (=& — — £ : 3,200,000
BIT) o

RO BATHR A

HE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+T—HLFE X
DT A %) A23,400,0007 70 + T X F
7] # Bl 47 538,400,000 L - TEBERS
RrELLEHT — - —F 7 RkDEBTR
B AN R 4> 915,000,000/ 7T+ + BRI &
M-_E-_—FREFHEMBRA 2 EIE -
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Income tax (credit) expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised
income tax credit of approximately HK§74,000 (2021: income
tax expenses of HK$10.9 million) which included current tax
expenses of approximately HK$31,000 (202 1: HK$9.6 million)
and deferred tax credit of approximately HK$105,000 (2021:
deferred tax expenses of HK$1.3 million). The current tax
expenses was made for the provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax
charge in relation to the profitability generated from the
brokerage and financing businesses. The deferred tax (credit)
expenses was recognised mainly in relation to the convertible
bonds issued by the Company and unrealised gain on
financial assets held-for-trading for the proprietary trading

business.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the finance costs of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$3.2 million (2021:
HK$2.3 million), out of which approximately HK$0.6 million
(2021: HK$1.4 million) was incurred pursuant to the effective
interest expense of convertible bonds issued by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2022, together with
some finance costs incurred in relation to the Group's
brokerage and financing businesses and interest expenses on

lease liabilities.

Headcount and employee information

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total of 72
employees (31 December 2021: 69), which excluded 9 self-
employed account executives for brokerage services (31
December 2021: 15), and 60 and 12 (31 December 2021:
67 and 2) were located in Hong Kong and the PRC
respectively. Salaries and staff benefit costs (including the
Directors’ emoluments) and staff commission amounted to
approximately HK$40.9 million and HK$2.2 million
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2022 as
compared with approximately HK$36.4 million and HK$3.1
million respectively for the same period last year. The increase
in the salaries and staff benefits costs of approximately
HK$4.5 million in 2022 was mainly attributable to the

development of digital assets sector during the year.

FrEsi (%) B

HE-_T_—_F+_A=+—HLFE XK
SEBABMEHERL740008 7T (ZF
—— 4% : 13 F £10,900,000 T) &
FRIEANERERZ 31,000 (ZF=—
% : 9,600,000/ 7T) & IE IE 7 18 H £ 4
1050008 T (ZEZ—F RERERX
1,300,000 7T) - BNEAR A X Y Rt A8 42
RBEEXBRES RANMIEL 2 BEFEH
Xz fl - BRERIE (Be) A DEE5
KARFABETARKRES REEEEEK L
FEEBEVBERE 2 REH W iR -

b & B A

BHE_ - —"F+-_A=+—RHIEE K
B ZRE K AL /3,2000008 T (ZF
— —% :2,300,000/% 7T) ' & # 4600,000
B (ZT = —4%F : 1,400,000 7t) Jh 5t &
RARBE-Z-__F+-A=+—BLF
EmETARRES CERFNERIME
o SERAEELLCRMEEBMEEZ
ETRMERARMEABZFEAS

EEABKREEEHR
R-E-_—F+-_A=+—8 A£EER
EHENEREE (ZEZ—F+ZA=+—8:
69%) PAEINARKLERB 2 EBERTP
F(ZE=-Z—FE+=-A=+—H:15%) -
EEHRDROAREE RI2ARHE I E
ZEZ—F+ZA=T—H:67TAREE
F2ARFHE) #HEZT-_—_F+=H
=+—BLEFE FeRBEIBAMKA (R
FEEMS) 4 540,900,000%8 L & B T
© #) /2,200,000 7T - EREFRAA 5
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The Group’s employees are selected, remunerated and
promoted based on their performance and qualifications. In
addition to basic salaries and participation in Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme, the Group also provides medical
coverage, sales commission, discretionary and performance
related bonus, discretionary share options and share awards to
its employees. Meanwhile, employees are provided or funded
to attend training and development programs which are

relevant to their works.

Liquidity and financial resources/capital structure

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group financed
its business operations and investments with internal
resources, cash revenue generated from operating activities,

convertible bonds and margin financing.

The Group adopts a prudent treasury policy. As at 31
December 2022, bank balances and cash were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi as to approximately
HK$29.8 million and HK$2.2 million (2021: HK$66.7 million
and HK$7.8 million) respectively. The Group intends to
maintain minimum exposure to foreign exchange risks and
those Renminbi is mainly for the PRC's operation need. All the
bank balances and cash were put in saving deposits and

current accounts as at 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group obtained margin
financing facilities from certain brokerage firms in the amount
of HK$17.0 million (2021: HK$20.1 million) and margin loans
obtained amounted to approximately HK$18.5 million (2021:
HK$15.3 million).

AEEESNTE  FHOOKTRBADRE
WEZRBRARERME - BREAT S R
HRBEEIN AEETHHERERERHTE

BiRR - HERS  BBRVEAL NEE
R RZEERND - I AEBTEREER

R EBEE TR ZIFI RERRE

RBESRUBER EEXELE
BE_Z__F+_A=+—RHLFE K
E@MW%’Q?@ KREEBEE 2RI

woARREFRRISRE  RHEBE
ERKRERHEES -

AEEENFENERBR R-2T =
TZA=1T—B UBLTEBEZRITEHRK
RERUARBEBEZRITEHRRBE DR
#929,800,0007% Jt K 2,200,000 7Tt (= &
— — % : 66,700,000/ T & 7,800,000/
70) c AKRBEBNBEIINERR - MZEFEA
REEHREBESFEDNATRLERTEMR
ﬁo%:%::$+iﬁz+*E'A%ﬁ
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As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group did not hold
any banking facilities.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's bank balances and
cash, net current assets and shareholders’ equity (other than
clients’ segregated accounts) amounted to approximately
HK$32.3 million (31 December 2021: HK$74.5 million),
HK$693.0 million (31 December 2021: HK$890.7 million)
and HK$747.7 million (31 December 2021: HK$926.9
million) respectively, representing decrease of about 56%,
22% and 19% respectively as compared with that of 31
December 2021. Current ratio, expressed as current assets
over current liabilities, remained robust at about 13 times as
at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: 17 times).

As at 31 December 2022, the total numbers of issued
ordinary shares of the Company were 2,078,601,598 (31
December 2021: 2,078,601,598).

Charges on group assets

As at 31 December 2022, trading securities with fair value of
approximately HK$73.0 million (31 December 2021:
HK$106.4 million) were pledged with certain brokerage firms
to obtain margin financing.

Foreign exchange exposure

It is the Group's policy for all operating entities to use
corresponding local currency as much as possible so as to
minimise exchange related risks. For the year ended 31
December 2022, majority of the Group's principal businesses
were conducted and recorded in Hong Kong dollars with the
growing digital assets business in the PRC. Impact from foreign
exchange exposure mainly Renminbi was thus immaterial and
no hedging against foreign currency exposure had been
necessary. In view of the operational needs, the Group will
continue to monitor the foreign currency exposure from time
to time and take necessary action to minimise the exchange
related risks.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Group
did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

El EIN S ﬂﬂ?ﬁvﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ%ﬁo

RZEBEZZF+-A=+—8 AEBEZR
TEBERES  RBEEFEARRE#EZ
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Save as the legal actions taken by the Group as mentioned in
the section “Brokerage and Financing” above, so far as known
to the Directors, there was no other litigation or claim of
material importance in which the Group is engaged or pending

or which was threatened against the Group.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's gearing ratio,
expressed as total borrowings (being the margin loans, lease
liabilities and liability portion of convertible bonds) over
shareholders' equity, was approximately 5% (31 December
2021: 49%).

Significant investments held, their performance and
future prospects

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's held the

following significant investments:

Financial assets held-for-trading

Included in the financial assets held-for-trading as at 31
December 2022 was the Group's investment in 53,982,000
shares or approximately 8.09% of IBO Technology Company
Limited (Stock Code: 2708) (“IBO Technology”) with fair value
of approximately HK$84.8 million, which amounts to
approximately 10.5% of the Group’s total assets. IBO
Technology and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in sale
of Radio Frequency lIdentification (“RFID") equipment and
electronic products (collectively the “intelligent terminal
products”), provision of system maintenance services,
development of customised softwares and provision of
coordination, management and installation services of smart
cities. The investment cost was approximately HK$93.9
million. During the year ended 31 December 2022, its share
price has decreased by approximately 36.9% and the Group
recorded unrealised loss of approximately HK$51.5 million,
and no dividend was received from it. The Group was
optimistic about the future prospect of IBO Technology's RFID
equipment and smart terminal products under the gradual
development of 5G environment, and intends to hold the

investment with an aim for long term capital growth.

FEXTECEREXRS —HAHAEH
R OERTHN  RESZAA > AEEY
BESREHARTHXIXBEGHARERD
ZEMBEBRFRHRE -

EESELE
RZTE-_—F+-A=+—R AEEZE
EBELEX EEAER(RREBELER A
EEEBERAIBMKRES BB D) (HRER
mH BN (ZE=Z—F+=ZA=+—8:
4%) °

FBEARKRE ERBERARRE

BHE_T-__F+_A=1T—HIEFE &K
SEB/ATIEAKRE :

HIEEBEERE

R-_ZT-_—F+_A=+—H8 BEEEH
BEEEEASEHYAMERNBERAF
(RZEERS :2708) (X ERE]) 2
53,982,0000% sk #18.09% % 5 2 1% & » H A
F{E#) 584,800,000/ ¢ ' h AL EBEE
#4910.5% - IR REAMBEAR F 2/ E
HESIAE PR (IRFD)) RETER (&
WIEgmEm])  BRERGEERS
MEETRHAHERREEEERTHA EER
ZRR® - B2 REKARL /93,900,000
BT oRBE_ZE-_—_F+-A=+—81t
FE - ERETEL36.9% AL B E
8715 K & I E5 18 4951,500,0007% 7+ W R &
IR E - ESCRIRRMZ B HERT - A% E
¥ AR Z RFIDER 5 & 59 BB 480 2 2 Bl
SRILR  UTHREGSA LMIKRE  BK
BEREEARER -



40

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIZRERA T

Annual Report 2022 &£}

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EHEEsTs/ &9 T

Included in the financial assets held-for-trading as at 31
December 2022 was the Group's investment in 17,354,000
shares or approximately 2.98% of HG Semiconductor Limited
(Stock Code: 6908) (“HG Semiconductor”) with fair value of
approximately HK$51.4 million, which amounts to
approximately 6.4% of the Group's total assets. HG
Semiconductor and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the design, development, manufacturing, subcontracting
service and sales of light-emitting diode (“LED") beads and
LED lighting products in the PRC. The investment cost was
approximately HK$110.7 million. During the year ended 31
December 2022, its share price has decreased by
approximately 59.3% and the Group recorded unrealised loss
of approximately HK$59.0 million, and no dividend was
received from it. The Group is fully aware of the development
and widespread adoption of electric vehicles as one of the
solutions for environment protection and intends to hold its

investment in HG Semiconductor for long term capital growth.

Included in the financial assets held-for-trading as at 31
December 2022 was the Group's investment in 97,382,000
shares or approximately 5.26% of China Nuclear Energy
Technology Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 611) (“China
Nuclear”) with fair value of approximately HK$49.7 million,
which amounts to approximately 6.19% of the Group's total
assets. China Nuclear and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in engineering, procurement and construction
("EPC") and consultancy and general construction, power
generation and financing. The investment cost was
approximately HK$62.7 million. During the year ended 31
December 2022, its share price has decreased by
approximately 41.4% and the Group recorded unrealised loss
of approximately HK$35.1 million, and no dividend was
received from it. The Group considers the continuous growth
of the global population and the challenges of climate change
result in renewable energy becoming indispensable in future.
The Group intends to hold its investment in China Nuclear for

long term capital growth.
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Material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

Save as the acquisition of Anli Assets Management Limited
and Anli Investment Fund SPC disclosed above, the Group's
did not have any material acquisition or disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures duing the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Future plans for material investments or capital
assets and their expected sources of funding in the
coming year

As at 31 December 2022 and as at the date hereof, the
Group had no other known plans with regard to material
investments or capital assets and their expected sources of

funding in the coming year.

Meanwhile, as at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have
any significant commitments contracted but not provided for
in respect of purchase of property and equipment. Details of
the Group's commitments are disclosed in Note 35 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS
FU Yiu Man, Peter
Chairman & Executive Director

Mr. Fu, aged 67, joined the Group in July 2016 and has been
appointed as the Chairman and Executive Director in March
2018. Currently, Mr. Fu is the chairman of the Executive
Committee and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Fu was an independent non-executive director
of Beijing North Star Company Limited (Stock Code: 588), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong, from May 2015 to May 2021.

Mr. Fu obtained a bachelor's degree from Wharton Business
School of the University of Pennsylvania in the U.S. He has
served in various senior positions in BNP Paribas, Peregrine,
Baring Securities, UBS, Citigroup Inc., CCB International and
CCB International (China), etc. He served as the vice-president
of GCL-Poly Group since November 2013. For the period from
March 2014 to June 2016, Mr. Fu had been re-designated as
the vice-president of GCL Oil and Gas Company. He was
responsible for overseas finance and M&A business for the oil
and gas projects of the company. Mr. Fu has almost 40 years

of experience in financial management, securities business.

WONG Kam Fat, Tony

Vice Chairman & Executive Director

Mr. Wong, aged 60, has profound management experience in
working with charities and in the education industry as well as
possessing over 25 years of management experience in the
printing industry. Mr. Wong was a director of China Public
Procurement Limited (Stock code: 1094) from 12 July 2007
to 4 September 2009 and China Fortune Financial Group
Limited (Stock code: 290) from 11 September 2009 to 26
November 2015, both of which are companies listed on the

main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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LIN Hoi Kwong, Aristo
Executive Director

Mr. Lin, aged 52, joined the Group in January 2014 and has
been appointed as the Executive Director in April 2015.
Currently, he is a member of the Executive Committee and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lin is the
Honorary Secretary of Hong Kong Skating Union Limited (the
associate member of the Sports Federation and Olympic
Committee of Hong Kong) and the Honorary President of the

Building Healthy Kowloon City Association.

Mr. Lin holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration
and a Master of Science Degree in Marketing. The Institute of
Crisis and Risk Management awarded Mr. Lin as Fellow of
Certified Risk Planner in November 2019. He has over 20
years' experience in corporate development and business

strategy.

LI Cindy Chen
Executive Director

Ms. Li, aged 53, has been appointed as the Executive Director
in September 2021. Ms. Li graduated from the Shenzhen
University, majored in Chinese Literature, in 1989 and
obtained International MBA from Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics and MBA from Webster University in
1999. Ms. Li had held senior position in a variety of
companies including Shenzhen China Motion Telecom,
Shenzhen Hongbo Communication Co. Ltd.,, Newman &
Associate Consulting Ltd.,, Wuhan Shun Qi Investment Ltd.,
Faye Consulting Ltd. and Shenzhen Han Hua Investment Co.
Ltd. Ms. Li has extensive experience in business operations
and has extensive business connections and industry
resources in communications industry, internet technology,

internet financial technology and new payment industry.
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ZHANG Nu
Executive Director

Mr. Zhang, aged 41, obtained bachelor degree of International
Business and Trade from Si Chuan Normal University majored
in 2004 and master degree in Software Engineering from East
China Normal University in 2016. Mr. Zhang had held senior
position in a variety of companies including but not limited to
sales director of South China of Shenzhen Digital China Co.,
Limited, general manager of Shenzhen Lan Yu Bo Chuang
Technology Co., Limited, vice president of Fujian Jiu Ze Culture
and Broadcasting Co., Limited and vice president of Beijing
E-Sports Culture & Technology Co., Limited. Mr. Zhang has
over 10 years' experience in sales management of the
Mainland and overseas well-known brands’ electronic
consumer products and internet related products, and is
familiar with channel sales and major customers’

development.

WONG Chung Kin, Quentin
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Wong, aged 51, joined the Group as Independent
Nonexecutive Director in March 2012. Mr. Wong is the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. He has set up his own practice, Quentin Wong &
Co. Certified Public Accountants (Practising) since 1 January
2005, and set up Quentin Wong & Co. CPA Limited in 2020.
Mr. Wong was an independent non-executive director of China
Trends Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8171), a company
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, from
November 2016 to August 2021 and Creative Enterprises
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3992), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, from
November 2018 to October 2021.
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Mr. Wong is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and The
Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors. Meanwhile, he is a
member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
& Wales. Mr. Wong holds a bachelor of Arts degree in
Accounting and Financial Management from University of
Essex and a master degree of Science in Internal Auditing and
Management from The City University, London. He has over
15 years working experience in audit and accounting gained
from a sizeable international firm and has had over 10 years

of practicing experience.

SIU Miu Man, Simon, MH
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Siu, aged 65, joined the Group as Independent
Nonexecutive Director in October 2016. He is the chairman of
the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Currently, Mr. Siu is an independent non-executive director of
Excalibur Global Financial Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
8350), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong. He is also a director of DBG Technology Co.,
Ltd. (Stock Code: 300735), a company listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. Meanwhile, Mr. Siu is also a director of a
consultancy firm and engineering firm. He was an
independent non-executive director, and later on redesignated
as an executive director, of Asia Energy Logistics Group
Limited (Stock Code: 3571), from August 2016 to March 2018
and from March 2018 to November 2018, respectively. Mr.
Siu was also an independent non-executive director of Sheung
Yue Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1633) from
October 2016 to January 2018. Both companies above are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He had
served in many public listed companies as senior
management and has over 25 years of managerial experience
in general management, commerce, banking, finance, real

estate development and construction business.
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Mr. Siu is actively participating in public affairs and charitable
activities. He is the vice president of the Association of Hong
Kong Professionals and the Hong Kong Real Property
Federation, the honorary president of the Hong Kong Kowloon
City Industry and Commerce Association and the chairman of

the Building Healthy Kowloon City Association.

Mr. Siu graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Polytechnic Associateship in Building Technology and
Management and a Master of Science in Electronic
Commerce. He is a corporate member of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers, Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
(General Practice Stream), Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors (General Practice Stream) and Chartered Institute of
Arbitrator. Mr. Siu is an Authorized Person under the Hong
Kong Building Ordinance of the Government of the HKSAR. He
is also a Registered Professional Engineer (Building Stream)
and a Registered Professional Surveyor (General Practice

Stream).

AU Tin Fung, Edmund

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Au, aged 65, graduated from the Business Management
Department of the Hong Kong Baptist University in 1982. He
obtained the Master of Business Administration Degree from
Upper lowa University in 2006 and the Honorary University
Fellowship from Hong Kong Baptist University in 202 1. Mr. Au
is the founder and a director of FY Compliance Consulting

Limited.
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Mr. Au had worked in senior positions in a variety of
companies licensed under the Securities and Futures
Commission and the Insurance Authority. He was an
independent non-executive director of China Fortune Financial
Group Limited (stock code: 290) from December 2005 to
May 2006, an independent non-executive director of China
Public Procurement Limited (stock: 1094) from August 2007
to September 2009; and an independent non-executive
director of CCIAM Future Energy Limited (stock code: 145) in
October 2009 and redesigned to executive director from
October 2009 to September 2011.

Mr. Au is currently a member of Entrepreneur Committee of
Hong Kong Baptist University Foundation. He was also the
Honorary President of Hong Kong Real Estate Agencies
General Association Limited in 2017 and the vice president of
Hong Kong Kowloon City Industrial & Commerce Association
Limited from 2010 to 2012.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
LAI Yick Fung
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary

Mr. Lai, aged 52, joined the Group as chief financial officer in
April 2018. He has been appointed as the Company Secretary
of the Company in May 2018. Mr. Lai obtained a Master of
Science Degree in Financial Management in the University of
London and a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy in The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is an associate member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
fellow member of The Chartered Governance Institute in the
United Kingdom and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Mr. Lai was an executive director of China Eco-
Farming Limited (Stock Code: 8166), company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, from July 2015 to
March 2018. Mr. Lai had worked for an international
accounting firm and a number of listed companies in Hong
Kong and the United States as senior management and has
over 20 years of experience in auditing, accounting, financial

management and company secretarial practice.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Value
Convergence Holdings Limited (the “Company”) believes that
good corporate governance provides a framework that is
essential for effective management, a healthy corporate
culture, successful business growth and enhancing
shareholders’ value. As such, the maintenance of a high
standard of corporate governance has been and remains a top
priority of the Group (the Company and its subsidiaries). The
Group is committed to promoting and maintaining the highest
standard of corporate governance, with the objectives of (i)
the maintenance of responsible decision making; (ii) the
improvement in transparency and disclosure of information to
shareholders; (iii) the continuance of respect for the rights of
shareholders and the recognition of the legitimate interests of
shareholders; and (iv) the improvement in management of

risk and the enhancement of performance by the Group.

COMPLIANCE OF THE CODE PROVISION OF THE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the financial year
ended 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE STRATEGY, BUSINESS MODEL AND
CULTURE

The Group's corporate strategy is to enlarge the revenue base
through fostering core businesses, meanwhile tapping into
new and potential markets with expanded business initiatives.
Leveraging its deep customer knowledge and comprehensive
portfolio of financial products and services, the Group is
committed to unleashing its strengths as a professional
financial service provider. The Group also manages to address
the challenges ahead and strive for continuous improvements
in its operations, so as to remain flexible and agile to adapt to
the market changes, thus bringing long-term sustainable

returns for its shareholders.
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Adhering to the corporate strategy, the Group endeavours to
create enterprise value as it enhances its business model by
applying prudent commercial principles despite volatility within
the industry, global economy, financial markets and investor
sentiments. The Group is also committed to developing a
positive and progressive corporate culture, and is always
striving for promising business growth and enhancing
shareholders’ value. As such, maintaining the highest standard
of corporate governance has been and remains a top priority

of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance functions set out in code provision A.2.1
of the CG Code:

1) to formulate and review the Group's corporate
governance policies and practices;

2) to review and oversee the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Group;

3) to review and oversee the Group's policies and practices in
compliance with any requirements, guidelines and rules
that may be imposed by the Board or which may be
incorporated into any constitutional documents of the
Group or which may have been provided by the Listing
Rules, applicable laws and other regulatory requirements as
well as by applicable institutional governance standards;

4) to formulate, review and oversee the code of conduct
and the compliance handbook (if any) of the
employees and Directors of the Group; and

5) to review the Group's compliance with the CG Code as
adopted by it from time to time and the disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report as set out in the
annual reports of the Company.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company has a division of functions reserved to the
Board and delegated to the management. The Board provides
leadership and approves strategic policies and plans with a
view to enhance shareholders’ interests while the day-to-day
operations of the Company are delegated to the management
with proper supervision from the Board. The Board reserves
for its decisions on all major matters of the Company,
including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, corporate governance, material
transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and
other significant financial and operational matters. Each
Director has a duty to act in good faith in the interests of the

Company.

i. Board Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of 8 Directors, with
5 Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter
(Chairman), Mr. Wong Kam Fat, Tony (Vice chairman),
Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo, Ms. Li Cindy Chen and Mr.
Zhang Nu; and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin, Mr. Siu Miu Man,

Simon, MH and Mr. Au Tin Fung, Edmund.

Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association, any
Director so appointed shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting. In
accordance with this article, Mr. Wong Kat Fat, Tony and
Mr. Au Tin Fung, Edmund shall retire, and being eligible,

offer themselves for re-election.
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Pursuant to Article 97 of the Articles of Association, one
third of the directors for the time being shall retire from
office, thus becoming eligible for re-election at each
annual general meeting of the Company. The Directors to
retire every year shall be those who have been longest in
office since their last election. In accordance with this
article, Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter and Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong,
Aristo shall retire at the AGM, and being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

Pursuant B.2.3 of Part 2 of the Corporate Governance
Code, if an independent non-executive director serves
more than 9 years, his further appointment should be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by
shareholders. Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin has served
as independent non-executive Director for more than 9
years and shall retire at the AGM, and being eligible, offer

himself for re-election.

Biographical details of the retiring Directors have been set
out in a circular, which will be sent to shareholders
together with this Annual Report, to assist shareholders to

make an informed decision on their re-elections.

Independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors, all of whom
are independent of the management of the Group's
businesses, are highly experienced professionals with
substantial experience in areas such as legal, accounting
and financial management. Their mix of skills and
business experience is a major contribution to the future
development of the Group. They ensure that matters are
fully debated and that no individual or group of
individuals dominates the Board's decision-making
processes. In addition, they facilitate the Board to
maintain a high standard of financial and other
mandatory reporting and provide adequate checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders and

the Company as a whole.
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The Company has established mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board,
including without limitation by reviewing that the
independent non-executive Directors have appropriate
qualifications and expertise from time to time with
sufficient time commitment to the Group, that the
number of independent non-executive Directors comply
with the requirements of the Listing Rules, and that
channels are established (including without limitation by
questionnaires or at Board meetings) to assess and
evaluate the independent non-executive Directors’
contribution and views. The implementation and
effectiveness of such mechanisms will be reviewed by

the Board on an annual basis.

All the Independent Non-executive Directors are not
appointed for specific terms but subject to re-election
requirements under the Company's Articles of
Association. Under Article 97 of the Company's Articles of
Association, all Directors, including non-executive
Directors, are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election in the Company's annual general meeting and
each Director is effectively appointed under an average

term of 3 years.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin has served as independent

non-executive Director for more than 9 years.
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The nomination committee of the Company has assessed
the independence of Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin
during a meeting held in December 2022, where the

following were discussed:

«  Throughout his directorship with the Company, he
has not been involved in the daily operation of the
Company nor in any relationship or circumstances
which would affect his independent judgement and
he has been able to provide independent and

professional views to the Company'’s affairs.

+  He has participated in Board meetings and Board
committee meetings to offer impartial advice and
exercise independent judgement, and has attended
general meetings of the Company to gain a

balanced understanding of the Shareholders’ views.

«  The continuous appointment of Mr. Wong Chung
Kin, Quentin as an independent non-executive
Director will help to maintain the stability of the
Board as he has, over time, gained valuable insight

into the business strategy and policies of the Group.

«  He has never engaged in any executive management
of the Group. Taking into consideration the
independence nature of his roles and duties in the
past years, he is considered to be independent
under the Listing Rules despite his years of services

with the Company.
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In view of the professional qualifications and extensive
experience of Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin in the
financial advisory field, the Board believes that he is
capable of providing constructive contributions in relation

to the Company's affairs.

The nomination committee of the Company is satisfied,
and the Board is of the view that Mr. Wong Chung Kin,

Quentin is independent.

The Company is of the view that all Independent Non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the

guidelines in 2022.
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Securities Dealings by Directors and Relevant
Employees

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities dealings on terms as set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the "Model Code"). Having made specific enquiry
of the Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard of dealings and
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors as set out in the Model Code in 2022.

The Board has also established a “Code of Securities
Dealings by Relevant Employees” for relevant employees
of the Company to regulate their dealings in the
securities of the Company so as to comply with the
directors’ obligations under code provision A.6.4 of the
CG Code.

Continuous Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director receives a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction package to
ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the
Company's operation and business as well as his/her
duties and responsibilities of directors under statutory
regulations and the Listing Rules. The Company Secretary
also provides the updates on the latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and

regulatory requirements to the Board from time to time.

Meanwhile, the Directors are provided with monthly
updates on the Group's financial performance, position
and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each

Director to discharge their duties.
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Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. During the year, each Director had
participated in continuous professional development by
attending seminars/workshops/reading materials on the
following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills and had provided the training records to the

Company.
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Topics on Training

Name of Directors EEpng covered "ot
@R
Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter R @
Mr. Wong Kam Fat, Tony HIRBAL €))
Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo TR A (@) & (b)
Ms. Li Cindy Chen FREL (@)
Mr. Zhang Nu REXLE (@
Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin E/NES S (@) & (b)
Mr. Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH B SCEE - H (a
Mr. Au Tin Fung, Edmund BAEXLE (@

Note:

Topics on training covered (a) Regulatory and corporate

governance updates; and (b) Finance related issues.

Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance (“D&O Insurance”) coverage on
Directors’ and senior management's liabilities in respect
of legal actions against them arising out of corporate
activities of the Company. The D&O insurance will be

reviewed and renewed annually.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a
year and additional meetings are held as and when required
to discuss significant events or important issues. At least 14
days notice is given for regular Board meetings to all Directors
enabling them to attend and reasonable notice will be given
in case of special board meetings. Agenda accompanying
board papers are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before
each regular board meeting. The Group ensures that
appropriate and sufficient information is provided to Board
members in a timely manner to keep them abreast of the
Group's latest developments thereby assisting them in

discharge of their duties.

The Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the
Company attended the board meetings to advise on statutory
compliance, accounting and financial matters of the Group. All
businesses transacted at the meetings were documented and
maintained in accordance with applicable laws and

regulations.

In 2022, the Board had held a total of 5 meetings. The details
of the attendance record of each member of the Board are
provided in the section "ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE
DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE
MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS" below.

PROCEDURE TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO SEEK
INDEPENDENT PROFESSIONAL ADVICE

To assist the Directors to discharge their duties to the
Company, the Board has established written procedures to
enable the Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice, at the Company's expense,
in appropriate circumstances. No request was made by any

Director for such independent professional advice in 2022.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Management Functions

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group
to the board committees and the management. Both the
Board and the management have clearly defined
authorities and responsibilities under various internal
control and check-and-balance mechanisms. The Board
has established in writing which issues require decision
of the full Board and which can be delegated by the

Board to the board committees or management.

Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and to
facilitate effective management, certain functions of the
Board have been delegated by the Board to various
board committees, namely, executive committee, audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee. The committees review and make

recommendations to the Board on specific areas.

Each committee has its defined scope of duties and
terms of reference and the committee members are
empowered to make decisions on matters within the
terms of reference of each committee. The terms of
reference of the board committees are given at the
Company's website under the section “Corporate

Governance”.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee is made up of certain Company's

Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter (Chairman)

and Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo and the Company's Chief

Financial Officer and Company Secretary (non-voting capacity),

namely, Mr. Lai Yick Fung.
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It oversees the implementation of the Company's strategic
objectives and risk management policies and the business and
operations of all of the business units of the Group.
Meanwhile, it is also responsible to develop, review and
monitor the Group's corporate governance policies and
practices. It holds meetings from time to time to discuss the
Group's financial and operational matters and other new
projects. Other details of the roles and functions of the
Executive Committee are given at the Company's website

under the section “Corporate Governance”.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is made up of the Company's
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wong
Chung Kin, Quentin (Chairman), Mr. Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH
and Mr. Au Tin Fung, Edmund. Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin
is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has the appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or related financial management
expertise, as requested by the Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are (a) to review
the Group's financial statements and published reports; (b) to
provide advice and comments thereon to the Board; and (c)
to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
Other details of the roles and functions of the Audit
Committee are given at the Company's website under the

section “Corporate Governance”.

In 2022 the Audit Committee had held a total of two
meetings, among other matters, to review the Group's final
results for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2022. The details of
the attendance record of each member of the Audit
Committee are provided in the section "ATTENDANCE
RECORD OF THE DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETINGS, BOARD
COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS" below.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is made up of the Company's
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Au Tin Fung,
Edmund (Chairman), Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin and Mr.

Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH.

The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the
Board on policies and structure for remuneration of directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration, assesses performance of and determines the
remuneration packages for executive directors and senior
management and makes recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of non-executive directors. Other details of
the role and function of the Remuneration Committee are
given at the Company’s website under the section “Corporate

Governance”.

In 2022, the Remuneration Committee had held one meeting,
among other matters, to review the remuneration package of
the Directors and senior management of the Group. The
details of the attendance record of each member of the
Remuneration Committee are provided in the section
“ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE DIRECTORS AT BOARD
MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND GENERAL
MEETINGS" below.
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Remuneration Policy

The formulation of the Group's remuneration strategy and
policy is based on the principles of equity and market
competitiveness so as to drive staff to work towards the
mission of the Group and to retain talents. As a long-term
incentive plan and with the aim of motivating Directors
and employees in the continued pursuit of the
Company's goal and objectives and to recognise their
contributions to the Group, the Company has adopted
the share option scheme under which the Company may
grant share options to the Directors/selected employees/
eligible persons to subscribe for the shares of the
Company and two share incentive award schemes,
namely, The VC Share Purchase Scheme Trust and The
VC Share Award Scheme Trust, under which the
Company may grant awarded shares to the Directors/
selected employees (Directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries are not allowed to participate in The VC
Share Award Scheme Trust).

Emoluments of Directors

The emoluments of the Directors are determined with
regard to the performance of individuals, the Company's
operating results and market standards. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration
Committee has (i) considered and reviewed the salary of
Directors and senior management of the Group; and (i)
considered and reviewed the discretionary bonus
payments entitlement for Directors and senior

management of the Group.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is made up of the Company's
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Siu Miu
Man, Simon, MH (Chairman), Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin
and Mr. Au Tin Fung, Edmund.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board; identifies individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorship; assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and makes recommendations to the Board
on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for

directors.

Other details of the role and function of the Nomination
Committee are given at the Company's website under the

section "Corporate Governance”.

The Board has adopted the Nomination Policy which sets out
the criteria, process and procedures for the Nomination
Committee to recommend suitable candidates for directorship
with a view to ensuring that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the

requirements of the Group's business.

When making recommendations regarding the appointment of
any proposed candidate to the Board or re-appointment of
any existing member(s) of the Board, the Nomination
Committee considers the following factors in assessing the
suitability of the proposed candidate(s): (a) reputation for
integrity; (b) accomplishment, experience and reputation in
the industry and other relevant sectors; (c) commitment in
respect of sufficient time, interest and attention to the
Company's business; (d) diversity in all aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural/educational and

professional background, skills, knowledge and experience in
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assessing and selecting proposed candidates for directorship;
(e) the ability to assist and support management and make
significant contributions to the Company’s success; and (f)
compliance with the criteria of independence for the
appointment of an independent non-executive director as

required under the Listing Rules.

The following nomination procedures shall be followed:

—  The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall obtain
background information about the candidates from Board
members (if any), for consideration by the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee itself may also

nominate candidates for consideration.

— In the context of appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board, the Nomination Committee shall undertake
adequate due diligence in respect of such individual and
make recommendations for the Board's consideration

and approval.

— In the context of re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation, for the proposed

candidates to stand for re-election at a general meeting.

— The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand for

election at a general meeting.
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In 2022, the Nomination Committee had held one meeting,
among other matters, to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board of the Company, independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors and the Board diversity
policy. The details of the attendance record of each member
of the Nomination Committee for 2022 are provided in the
section "ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE DIRECTORS AT
BOARD MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND
GENERAL MEETINGS" below.

Board Diversity Policy

The Nomination Committee has adopted a board diversity
policy, the main purpose of which is to achieve diversity on
the Board. Based on the policy, the selection of candidates for
board membership will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited, to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of services. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board. Details of the Board
Diversity Policy are given at the Company’s website under the

section "Corporate Governance”.

As at 31 December 2022, the workforce consists of
approximately 62% male and approximately 38% female. The
Human Resources and Administration Department shall review
the workforce in diversity perspective and advise the
Nomination Committee should any gender diversity issues

arise.

The Nomination Committee was of the view that the
Company's Board Diversity Policy was suitable for the size of

the Company.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE DIRECTORS AT
BOARD MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS
AND GENERAL MEETINGS

EXZEER ESTZEEEERR
RAEBZESHELR

Attendance record of Directors in 2022

CECCFEEHERE

Audit Remuneration  Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee 2022 AGM/
Name of Directors Expg Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting EGMs
S -
RRBF
ENZEEE FMWZEEE REZEE KE/RE
Ezee3 EE g3 S REXE
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter R EE 55 NATER  NATER  NATER 1/1
Mr. Wong Kam Fat, Tony (Note 1) &RE &4 (A1) /3 N/ATEB  NATER  NATER 1/1
Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo EEIAE 55  NATER  NATER  NATER Al
Ms. Li Cindy Chen ZRUT 55  NATER  NATER  NATER 1/1
Mr. Zhang Nu KERAE 5/5  NATER  NATER  NATER 1/1

Independent Non-executive Directors 7 F#1TEF
Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin FNRLE 5/5 2/2 11 1/1 11
Mr. Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH BYEE W 5/5 2/2 1/1 1/ 11
Mr. Au Tin Fung, Edmund (Note 2) ~ BRRL %4 (#/:22) 3/3 11 1/1 /1 N/ATER
Mr. Wong Kam Choi, Kerry (Note 3) & 838154 - wn (#7:23) 1/1 1/1 NATER  NATER  NATER

Notes:

1. Mr. Wong Kat Fat, Tony was appointed as Vice chairman and an
Executive Director on 19 April 2022.

2. Mr. Au Tin Fung, Edmund was appointed as an Independent

Non-executive Director on 28 June 2022.

3. Mr. Wong Kam Choi, Kerry, MH resigned as an Independent Non-
Executive Director on 16 April 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. The Company's
consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with all relevant statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for
ensuring that appropriate accounting policies have been
adopted and applied consistently, and that judgements and

estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements and the reporting responsibilities of the external
auditor are set out on pages 114 to 115 of this Annual

Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
i. Responsibility
The Group has established Risk Management Policy to:

a. define the roles and responsibilities of the relevant

parties in the risk management process;

b. provide a practical framework to the management

for mitigating various risks; and

c.  promote risk awareness within the Group.
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The Directors and the Board Committees have an
oversight role to determine that appropriate risk
management processes are in place and that these
processes are adequate and effective. The Directors
should determine the level of risk that the Board is willing
to accept in pursuit of its business objectives by
considering whether the risk against reward ratio is
appropriate. Management should be responsible for the
identification, assessment and mitigation of material risks
faced by the business unit(s)/group function(s) which
they are responsible for. The management should also
regularly conduct review and monitoring of the Group's
compliance with the risk management process, system

and internal control.

The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to safeguard the Shareholders’ investments and
the Group's assets; to maintain proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information; and to
ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
It aims to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement, fraud or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to

achieve the Group's business objectives.
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The Board Committees review the following annually: (a)
the changes, since the last annual review, in the nature
and extent of significant risks (including ESG risks), and
the Company's ability to respond to changes in its
business and the external environment; (b) the scope
and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of risks
(including ESG risks) and of the internal control systems
and the work of internal audit; (c¢) the extent and
frequency of communication of monitoring results to the
Board (or board committee(s)) which enables it to
assess control of the Group and the effectiveness of risk
management; (d) significant control failings or
weaknesses that have been identified during the period.
Also, the extent to which they have resulted in
unforeseen outcomes or contingencies that have had,
could have had, or may in the future have, a material
impact on the company's financial performance or
condition; and (e) the effectiveness of the processes for
financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance.

Process used to identify, assess and management
of significant risks

The Group's risk management process involves the
identification, evaluation, response, monitoring and
reporting of risks. After risks that may potentially affect
the Group's business and operations are identified by the
management of the Company, the Board will perform risk
assessment by prioritising the identified risks to
determine key risks exposed to the Group and discuss
measures to mitigate such key risks. Besides, existing risk
mitigation measures are subject to regular monitoring by
the management of the Company, which will review the
Group's risk management strategies, and report such

results and make appropriate suggestions to the Board.

If material internal control defect was noted, the
Company conducted continuous tracking for the
improvement of internal control defects, and counseled
and supported the persons in charge of internal audit

function to ensure good rectification results.
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N

Management Supervision

The Board has assigned the Executive Committee to
oversee the implementation of the Group’s internal
control and risk management (including ESG risk) and to

monitor the business and operations continuously.

The Executive Committee and management have defined
the organizational structure of the Group with clear
reporting lines and authorities. Competent personnel are
recruited to facilitate the establishment and maintenance

of the risk management.

System and procedures are in place to identify, control
and report on the major types of risks. The management
endorses policies, procedures, codes and guidelines to
mitigate significant inherent risks embedded in the
operational and financial activities. The “Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics” is formulated and communicated to
all staffs with the aim of cultivating high integrity and

ethical values within the Group.

¥

=
=

EEEEE
EXZgCRRATZEGEESREASR
BzARNEERRARERE (BFERE
HeakERAR)  URHEERER
NBIE -

Nﬁ

TZEeRERECHBEAECAER
# EJZWT% %‘JIET/E Mﬁm/ﬁéﬁ&mu*ﬂi&
EEHE  WEBBEBEAB ARG

ERERFRRER -

REBERTA I E IR F LA - 25 K
ERETE2EMER EEEREIZ
KR - 127~ TR M $E 5| REDAUBUE R &
LB ESPHEZEREARR - B
BERCSHELMEEBE TEZMWME

o

BT RERTHD  BRAEAKEGE
=RF 2 B KB REEXIE -

69



70

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT %% 43R

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRZRER AT

The Group operates multiple lines of defenses to effect a
robust control framework. At the first level, the operating
business and support units are responsible for the day-
to-day management of risks inherent in the various
business activities. The second line of defense sets the
policy and guidelines for managing specific risk areas,
provides advice and guidance in relation to the risk.
Internal audit function forms the third line of defense
which evaluates significant risk exposure and contributes
to the improvement of the risk management and control

systems.

Internal Audit Function

The Group has in place an internal audit function within
the Group. The annual internal audit plan is reviewed and
approved by the Audit Committee. During the year under
review, the Group has engaged an independent
professional adviser (“Internal Control Adviser") to
perform independent appraisal of the adequacy and
effectiveness of certain subsidiaries’ risk management
(including ESG risk) and internal control system for the
year. The Internal Control Adviser reports directly to the
Audit Committee. The Internal Control Adviser
independently reviews and assesses the design and the
effectiveness of the major subsidiaries’ system of internal
control by adopting a risk-based audit approach, focusing
on major processes and activities which are quantitatively
or qualitatively significant to the Group. The Internal
Control Adviser reports all significant internal control and

risk management matters to the Audit Committee.
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Audit Committee Supervision

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems. The Audit Committee has been assigned by the
Board to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and internal control procedures of the Group.
The Board also, through the Audit Committee, has
conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the
Group's system of risk management and internal control
covering all material controls, including financial,

operational and compliance controls.

The Audit Committee conducts regular meetings with
Senior Management, the Internal Control Adviser and
external auditor to review the financial statements and
auditor's reports on financial and internal control matters.
The Audit Committee reports to the Board on significant
internal control matters, suspected frauds or irregularities,
alleged infringement of laws and regulations, which come

to their attention.

The Audit Committee, through the Internal Control
Adviser, has conducted comprehensive risk assessments
and internal control reviews on the design and the
effectiveness of the Group's system of internal control for
the year ended 31 December 2022, which covers the
key controls for mitigating the major risks associated with
the significant processes. During the year under review,
no major issue but areas for improvement have been
identified.

The Audit Committee has considered that the risk
management and internal control systems are
appropriately designed, effective and adequate. The Audit
Committee has also assessed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications, experience, training programmes and
budget of staff of the Group’s Finance Department and

considered that it is adequate.
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v. Inside Information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the

Group:

a. has developed Inside Information Disclosure Policy
in relation to the disclosure of inside information
about the Group companies, its officers and
substantial shareholders. The disclosure can
communicate such information to investors for

investment decision on equal and informed basis;

b. has established Corporate Communications Policy
for responding to all media related inquiries,
interviews and conference on the corporate issues.
Authorized persons are assigned to act as
spokespersons to speak on behalf of the Group and

to respond to external enquiries; and

¢.  has included in its Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics a strict prohibition for all employees of the
Group on the unauthorized use of confidential or
inside information.

ANTI-CORRPUPTION AND WHISTLE-BLOWING
POLICIES

The Group has adopted an anti-corruption policy to govern
acceptances of advantages by employees and a whistle-
blowing policy to provide guidance to employees to external
stakeholders to report concerns about any suspected or actual

improprieties relating to the Group.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has considered the general principles that it
currently intends to apply when recommending dividends for
approval by the shareholders or when declaring any interim
dividends. The actual dividend that the Board may
recommend or declare in respect of any particular financial
year will be subject to the factors outlined below as well as
any other factors deemed relevant by the Board. Dividend

may be distributed either in cash, or in the form of shares.
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The dividend policy is as follows:

« In determining the dividend payment ratio in respect of
any particular financial year, the Board will take into
account a desire to maintain and potentially increase
dividend levels within the overall objective of maximizing
shareholder's value over the longer term, and;

« If an annual dividend in respect of a financial year is to
be paid, the dividend would generally be paid in form of
an interim and a final dividend.

In considering the level of dividend payments, if any, upon

recommendation by the Board, various factors will be taken

into account, including:

«  the level of cash and retained earnings;

«  the expected financial performance;

« the projected levels of capital expenditure and other

investment plans;

«  the taxation consideration;

«  the possible effects on the Group's creditworthiness;

«  statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

« any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to

declare or distribute any dividend in any financial year.
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AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2022, audit and non-audit

services provided by the external auditors of the Company, are

B AT =
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as below: R
SHINEWING CCT & Beyond
(HK) CPA Partners Financial
Limited CPA Limited CPA Inc Total
EXRFH
(B8) HESHED Beyond
EhlES 00 Financial
FRERAXTA ARAF CPA Inc et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FTHERT THET THERT
Audit services EZRB
Audit of the consolidated ERAEBEE
financial statements of the —E-—F+—-A
Group for the year ended 31 =+—HIFFEZ
December 2022 and the e M BmE R
review of the preliminary FEHLrEEEE
announcement of the result —E-—_F+=-HA
of the Group for the year =t+t—HIEFEZ
ended 31 December 2022 NEEE R 1,380 - - 1,380
Audit of certain subsidiaries of ¥ AN & E & T B A 7
the Group for the year ended #THZE—_ZT-—
31 December 2022 +=ZA=+—H1
FEZEZ — 150 - 150
Audit of a subsidiary of the NEERAREAER—
Group as a special purpose BB RREITZE
audit for a period Z(EARRRIBMNE
%) 60 - - 60
Audit of a subsidiary of the HHESEZ —HNE
Disposal Group for the year NEETHREZT
ended 31 December 2021 ——%=A=+—H
I FE 2B - - 117 117
1,440 150 117 1,707
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is a full-time employee of the
Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company's
affairs. The Company Secretary reports to the Board and is
responsible for advising the Board on governance matter. The
Company Secretary has confirmed that he has taken no less

than 15 hours of relevant professional training in 2022.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the value of providing current and
quality information to its Shareholders, both individual and
institutional. It also recognises the importance of maintaining
continuous communication with Shareholders and constantly
looks for ways to ensure the Group maintains an open and

ongoing dialogue with the existing and potential Shareholders.

i. Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company has adopted a shareholders’
communication policy to ensure an effective ongoing
dialogue with Shareholders. Such policy shall be reviewed
by the Board on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness, which is confirmed by Shareholders’
participation in the Annual General Meeting. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has
reviewed and are satisfied of the implementation and
effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication policy
on the basis that sufficient channels of communication
has been maintained with the shareholders. Details of
the Shareholders’ Communication Policy are given at the
Company’s website under the section “Corporate

Governance”.
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The Company’s Website

The Company's website at www.vcgroup.com.hk provides
comprehensive and most updated information about the
Company, including financial results, announcements,
circulars, composition of the Board/Board committees
and their respective terms of reference, biographical
information of Directors and Senior Management, and
other corporate documents such as Atrticles of Association

and other policies adopted by the Company.

Annual General Meeting

The Company regards the annual general meeting
("AGM™") an important event as it provides an opportunity
for the Board to communicate with the Shareholders.
Notice of AGM and related papers are sent to the
Shareholders at least 21 clear days before the meeting.
The Company supports the CG Code's principle to
encourage Shareholders’ participation. Questioning by the

Shareholders at the AGM is encouraged and welcomed.

Enquiries

The Company Secretary responds to letters and
telephone enquiries from Shareholders/investors.
Shareholders and investors are welcome to raise
enquiries through the Company’s email contact
info@vcgroup.com.hk or by mail to our Company
Secretary at 6th Floor, Centre Point, 181-185 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of General Meetings

Under Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance"”), Shareholders of the Company who
representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all
members having a right to vote at general meetings of
the Company may request the Directors of the Company
to convene general meetings. The requisition must state
the general nature of business to be dealt with at the
meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionist(s) and
deposited at the registered office of the Company at 6th
Floor, Centre Point, 181-185 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong. Shareholders may include the text of a
resolution that may properly be moved and is intended

to be moved at the meeting.

The Directors must proceed to convene a general
meeting within 21 days from the date of receipt of the
requisition. Such meeting should be held on a date not
more than 28 days after the date on which the notice
convening the meeting is given. If the Directors fail to
convene the general meeting as aforesaid, the
requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene the meeting. Any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three

months from the date of the deposit of the requisition.

For more details, Shareholders may refer to the

requirements as set out in the Companies Ordinance.
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ii. Putting Forward Proposals at General Meeting

Under Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance,
Shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the total
voting rights of all the members having a right to vote, or
at least 50 Shareholders who have a relevant right to
vote may (a) put forward proposal at general meeting;
and (b) circulate to other Shareholders written statement
with respect to matter to be dealt with or other business

to be dealt with at general meeting.

The requisition must be sent to the Company in hard
copy or in electronic form and must identify the
resolution of which notice is to be given. It must be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and be received by the
Company not less than six weeks before the annual
general meeting to which the request related, or, if later,

the time at which notice is given of that meeting.

For more details on the Shareholders’ qualifications, and
the procedures and timeline, in connection with the
above, Shareholders may refer to the Sections 580 and

615 of the Companies Ordinance.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no significant change in the constitutional documents

of the Company in 2022.

The consolidated version of the Company's Articles of
Association is given at the Company's website under the

section “Corporate Governance”.
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The Board (the “Board") of Directors (the “Directors”) of Value
Convergence Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to
present their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2022, together with the audited comparative
figures for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to

the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's business during the year including the
description of the Group’s business and its external
environment, business objectives and strategies, business
model and development and principal performance drivers are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement and the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 to 6 and pages 7 to 41

respectively of this Annual Report.

Further, the Management Discussion and Analysis also
contains the information about the Group's financial
performance analysis and financial position assessment,
number and remuneration of employees and remuneration
policies, particulars of important events affecting the Group
that had occurred since the year ended 31 December 2022

and the Group's likely future development in business.
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Environmental policies and performance

The Group encourages environment protection, complies with
environmental legislation and promotes awareness towards
environment protection to the employees. The careful use of
resources and adoption of the best practices across the
Group's business shows our commitment towards
environmental protection. The Group adheres to the principle
of Recycling and Reducing. Stationeries such as envelopes,
letterheads and business cards, as well as interim reports and
annual reports delivered to the shareholders are printed on
environmentally friendly paper. It also implements green office
practices such as encouraging double-sided printing and
copying. Obsolete computer equipments, after removal of data
storage devices, are either donated to charities or passed to
recyclers together with used computer consumables such as

ink and toner cartridges.

Compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
financial services business

The Group’s financial services business is mainly under the
supervision of Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC"),
including securities and options brokering and dealing, margin
financing services, corporate finance services as well as asset
management, and other authorities for the insurance
brokerage and money lending services. As such, the Group
has to comply with the rules and regulations of SFC and other
related regulators and authorities. In order to comply with all
these rules and regulations, the Group’s Compliance
Department has tailored-made some specific operation
manuals and implemented the internal control procedures to
regulate the Group's daily business activities. Regular testing
are conducted on the Group's operations to minimize the risk
exposures and take appropriate remedial actions, when
necessary. Meanwhile, the Group will engage independent
professional bodies to provide advices and assistance on the

Group's compliance issues, when necessary.
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In addition, the Group has adopted a more targeted approach
to customer due diligence through the use of a sophisticated
software provided by a third party financial service provider.
This simplifies and accelerates the customer due diligence for
the entire customer base of the Group, which includes
screening for money laundering, sanctions and threat finance
and also enables detailed monitoring of politically exposed
person relationships and networks and is also customizable to
identify a variety of specific third party risks, when necessary.
All these measures are important in increasing the efficiency
and effectiveness in dealing with the regulatory and
operational burdens and risks the Group’s regulated

businesses are facing.

Relationships with customers and suppliers and
major customers and suppliers

The Group understands that it is important to maintain a good
relationship with its customers and suppliers. To do so, the
Group delivers its financial services and products in
professional attitude to procure clients' trust, which help to
create new business opportunities to the Group. During the
year, there was no material and significant dispute between

the Group and its customers and/or suppliers.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the aggregate
revenue attributable to the Group's largest customer and five
largest customers combined are approximately 5% (2021:
16%) and 229% (2021:

total revenue. During the year, none of the Directors, their

30%) respectively, of the Group's

associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) have an interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers. For 2022, all the five largest
customers have 2 year to 3 years of business relationship with
the Group and none of them are listed companies in Hong
Kong. Besides, the Group had no major supplier due to the

nature of principal activities of the Group.
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Relationships with employees HES 2R
(a) Emolument policy and employee benefits (@) FHEEKIESEF

The Group understands that employees are valuable
assets, therefore it provides competitive remuneration
package to attract and motivate the employees. The
emolument policy of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. The Group's
employees are selected, remunerated and promoted on
the basis of their merit, qualifications, performance and
competence. Regular revision for each employee is
conducted annually. Meanwhile, the emoluments of the
Directors and senior management of the Group are
decided by the Remuneration Committee and/or the
Board, having regard to the performance of individuals,
the Group's operating results and comparable market

statistics.

Apart from the basic salaries and participation in
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, the Group also
provides medical coverage, sales commission,
discretionary performance-based bonus, discretionary

share options and share awards to all employees.

As above-mentioned, the Company has a share option
scheme and share award schemes as an incentive to the
eligible persons of the schemes, whom including the
Directors, employees and others of the Group. Details of
the schemes and the movements of the share options
and awarded shares granted to the eligible persons
during the year are set out in the sections of
“"DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES", “SHARE OPTION SCHEME"
and "SHARE AWARD SCHEMES" in this report.
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(b) Training and development

©

Employees of the Group are encouraged to attend
training and development courses so as to keep abreast
of their skills and knowledge. Our Compliance
Department organizes in-house training courses for all
employees of the Group, specifically for those are
licensed persons registered under the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Ordinance, and provides ongoing
compliance updates and regulatory requirements to them.
The Group also funds the Directors to attend continuous
professional development training including updates on
regulatory requirements and corporate governance
practices. Relevant employees are also funded to attend

external training courses which are relevant to their work.

Health and safety

In order to provide a safe working environment, offices’
workstations are regularly checked and maintained by the
Administration Department of the Group. Besides,
cleaning of carpets and air-conditioning systems are
regularly carried out so as to provide hygienic working

conditions for the employees.
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Principal risks and uncertainties of the Group

The Group's core businesses are (i) provision of financial
services comprising securities, futures and options brokering
and dealing, financing services and corporate finance and
other advisory services, asset management and insurance
brokerage; (ii) proprietary trading; and (iii) sales and
marketing of digital assets. Due to the nature of the Group's
business, the Group may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties associated with its key financial services and
products. It mainly divided into two categories, namely
operational risk and financial risks. To ensure implementation
of the appropriate measures in managing and monitoring
these risk exposures on a timely and effective manner, policies
and procedures are established by the Group. Details of the
key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group and the
ways on how the Group encounters these are given as

follows:

(a) Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed operational processes, people and
systems or from external events. In the other words, the
operational risk arises from non-compliance of policies
and procedures and lack of control. The Group has
established some operational policies and guidelines,
delegation of authorities and reporting requirements for
helping each employee of the Group to develop a set of
personal practices in performing their job to the highest
level. The operational policies provide detailed guidelines
for various functions of the Group in executing most of
the business transactions such as accounting and finance,
operations, legal and compliance, human resources,

information technology and administration.
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(b)

Meanwhile, detailed compliance and procedural manuals
and policies are designed for the major subsidiaries of
the Group which carried out the finance services
business. The internal policies and manuals aim to
ensure that the major subsidiaries of the Company
comply with all rules, regulations, codes and legislations
governing every aspect of the Group's regulated activities
at all times. All sales staff and/or investment
representatives are required at all times to fully
understand and follow the regulated requirements, which
will be updated from time to time in response to changes
of rules and regulations. Training programs and active
communications are continuously provided to promote
their awareness. Internal control procedures are applied
to monitor compliance of the Group’s policies and
guidelines. Appropriate disciplinary actions shall be taken
against the responsible staff, who is guilty of serious
misconduct. Further, for the proprietary trading business,
securities investment policy has been established
providing investment guidelines and reporting procedures

for the responsible persons to follow.

The Group’s Compliance Department and Internal Control
Adviser are responsible for identifying and monitoring the
key operational exposures and report regularly the
potential risk issues to the management and the Audit

Committee of the Group respectively.

Financial risks
In the course of business activities, the Group is exposed
to a variety of financial risks, including market, credit and

liquidity risks.

()  Market risk
The Group's market risk primarily includes currency
risk (foreign exchange rate risk), interest rate risk

and equity price risk.
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Currency risk — It is the Group's policy for each
group entity to operate in local currencies as far
as possible to minimize currency risks. Most of
the Group's principal businesses are conducted
in Hong Kong dollars which is also the
functional currency of the Company, with a
rising proportion of business in the Mainland
China resulting in certain Renminbi exposure.
Since the impact of foreign exchange exposure
is still minimal, no hedging against foreign
currency exposure has been carried out by the
Group for the year. The Finance Department
will manage and monitor the relevant risk from

time to time.

Interest rate risk — The Group is exposed to fair
value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate
accounts receivable from money lending
business, in which the risk is considered to be
insignificant as the majority of the amount is
carried at amortised cost. The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate accounts receivable
from brokerage and financing businesses such
as cash clients and margin clients, which is
mainly relating to the fluctuation of prime rate
or bank’s cost of funding arising from the
Group's interest-bearing financial instruments.
The Finance Department has prepared
sensitivity analysis on the exposure to cash flow
interest rates for the Group's interest-bearing
financial instruments on a semi-annually basis
and note that such exposure to the Group is

not significant.
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Equity price risk — The Group is exposed to
equity price risk arising from fluctuation in the
price through the Group's investment in listed
equity securities. Management regularly reviews
and monitors the Group's investment portfolio

so as to limit the risk exposure.

KA EEEE - RNEERER
ETIERAEFESRE ZEBRK
i mE R A ERRR - BB
Egxfia hERARE
ZIREBMEE - FEARGIATE Y
Z Rk -

(i) Credit risk () 1=E &Rz
AEEZEERBAERAZIRZS
HFREBRTEAESEAEEEL
WBBELzRR - ZREBREEKRE
THREBMUEEZEHLES :

The Group's credit risk is the risk of losses from a
borrower or counterparty defaulting on an obligation
which will result in financial loss to the Group. The
risk mainly arises from the following business

activities undertaken by the Group:

Financing from brokerage business — In relation
to the financing from brokerage business, the
credit risk arises on the margin portfolio and
clients’ trade settlement. When the market goes
downside, the possibility of doubtful debts will
arise. The clients may be unable or unwilling to
settle the sum owed. As such, credit
assessment and continuous management of
credit exposures are indispensable. The Group
has established the credit policies and
procedures setting out in details the structure
of the credit risk management, the credit
approval and monitoring mechanism, and the
issue for provision for doubtful receivables.
Meanwhile, the management of the Group has
delegated a team forming the credit committee
for setting the direction of the credit risk
management and to oversee the Group's
overall credit risk exposure. The credit
committee meets monthly to review the work
of the credit officer who is responsible for the
daily credit management activities, determine
and review the credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue

debts and receivables from the clients with
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shortfalls. Ad hoc discussions and meetings
may also be held by the credit committee
whenever necessary. Moreover, the Group
closely evaluates the borrower's credit rating,
financial background and repayment abilities.
The assessment is based on a closely
monitoring and evaluation of the collectability
of individual account and on management's
judgement from different aspects including the
current credit worthiness of the borrowers,
collateral value and the past collection history

of each individual borrower.

Money lending - All individual loans are
currently assessed and approved by the Group's
management. The Group closely evaluates the
borrowers’ credit rating, financial background,
repayment abilities and the value of securities
collateral. The assessment is based on a close
monitoring and evaluation of the collectability
of individual borrower and on management's
judgement from different aspects including the
current credit worthiness of the borrower,
collateral value and the past collection history
of each individual borrower. The management
of the Group has delegated a team forming the
credit committee for setting the direction of the
credit risk management and to oversee the
Group's overall credit risk exposure. The credit
committee meets monthly to review the status
of individual borrowers and determine if any
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts and receivables from the clients. The
Finance Department is responsible for the daily
monitoring of the borrowers including the
adequacy of the collateral value and any default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments
in accordance with the contractual terms, and
promptly report to the credit committee, when

necessary.
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Furthermore, the Group has monitored its concentration
of credit risk in different aspects. The Group's
concentration of credit risk by geographical locations is
mainly in Hong Kong. The Group has policies in
monitoring both client concentration risk and stock
concentration risk. The Group regularly performs stress
tests on stock concentration to evaluate the Group's
credit risk exposure and capital adequacy in the event of
abnormal and significant changes in market condition. As
at 31 December 2022, the Group has concentration of
credit risk on the accounts receivable as the aggregate
balances with the five largest clients representing
approximately 599% (2021: 62%) of total accounts
receivable. Four of these clients’ balances are within the
credit limits granted by the Group and meet the loan-to-
value ratio. Further, the fair values of the securities
collateral held by the Group for these four largest
customers are in excess of the relevant carrying amounts
or has no overdue amounts as at 31 December 2022.
Regarding the remaining one customer, demand letters
had been issued and other actions shall be followed
when necessary. Accordingly, the Directors consider that
the Group's credit risk is closely monitored. The Group

has no other significant concentration of credit risk.

(i) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the potential that the Group will be
unable to meet its obligations when they fall due.
The Group's liquidity risk management includes
making available standby banking facilities and
diversifying the funding sources. The Group's
operations are mainly financed by internal generated
cash flow and margin loans. In managing the
liquidity risk, it is important that the Group maintains
an adequate level of cash and credit facilities to

finance the Group's daily operations.
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Indeed, the Group’s major subsidiaries are regulated
by SFC, which are subject to SFC's liquid capital
requirements. Under the liquid capital requirements,
the regulated subsidiaries must maintain the
minimum liquid capital, which shall in excess of
HK$3 million or 5% of their total adjusted liabilities,
whichever the higher. The Finance Department
monitors the Group's major funding positions on a
daily basis so as to ensure adequate financial
resources are available to meet the Group's financial
obligations as well as to comply with SFC
requirement. It is believed that the Group has
adequate working capital to meet its financial
obligations and the regulated subsidiaries have no
non-compliance with the liquid capital requirements

during the year.

(c) Occurrence of any natural disaster or outbreak of
contagious diseases such as COVID-19 could adversely
affect the Group's business and operations. The Group
implements business continuity plans including “Work
from Home" and “Flexible Working Hours", and ensures
all safety measures as required by the Hong Kong

Government are fully implemented.

For more details about the principal risks and
uncertainties in which the Group are facing and also the
relevant risk management objectives and policies, please
refer to section “Financial Review” contained in the
Management Discussion and Analysis and notes 36 and
37 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
264 to 289 of this Annual Report.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 and the Group's financial position at that date are set
out in the Group's consolidated financial statements on pages
119 to 122 of this Annual Report.

No interim dividend was paid to the Shareholders during the
year (2021: Nil). The Directors do not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: Nil).

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 20 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE
AWARDS

Details of the movements in share capital, share options and
share awards of the Company during the year are set out in
notes 33 and 34 respectively to the consolidated financial

statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

The Company has not entered into any equity-linked

agreement during the year ened 31 December 2022.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year ended 31 December 2022. Neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the

Company's shares during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, the Company has no reserves
available for distribution to shareholders (2021: Nil).

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to approximately HK$3,000 (2021: HK$100).

FIVE YEARS' FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated
assets and liabilities of the Group of the past five financial
years as extracted from the audited consolidated financial
statements is set out on page 304 of this Annual Report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated

financial statements.

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the

date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. FU Yiu Man, Peter, Chairman

Mr. WONG Kam Fat, Tony, Vice chairman
(appointed on 19 April 2022)

Mr. LIN Hoi Kwong, Aristo

Ms. LI Cindy Chen

Mr. ZHANG Nu

Independence Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Chung Kin, Quentin
Mr. SIU Miu Man, Simon, MH
Mr. Au Tin Fung, Edmund (appointed on 28 June 2022)

Mr. WONG Kam Choi, Kerry, mH (resigned on 16 April 2022)
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Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association of the
Company (“Articles of Association”), any Director so appointed
shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election at that meeting. In accordance with this article, Mr.
Wong Kat Fat, Tony and Mr. Au Tin Fung, Edmund shall retire,

and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Pursuant B.2.3 of Part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code, if
an independent non-executive director serves more than 9
years, his further appointment should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders. In accordance with
this code provision, the continued appointment of Mr. Wong
Chung Kin, Quentin should be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by shareholders, and being eligible, offer

himself for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 97 of the Articles of Association, one-third
of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but
not less than, one-third, shall retire from office. The Directors
to retire every year shall be those who have been longest in
office since their last election. In accordance with this article,
Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter and Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo shall
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. Fu Yiu
Man, Peter, Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo, Ms. Li Cindy Chen and
Mr. Zhang Nu are also directors in certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Other directors of the Company’'s subsidiaries
during the year and up to the date of this report include Mr.
Leung Chi Ho, David, Mr. Leung Chi Wai, Chris, Ms. Ho Wing
Man, Ginny, Ms. Chan Tik Man, Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Ms.
Tsui Dick Yee, Daisy, Mr. Wong Chi Ming, Mr. Ma Chi Keung,
Ms. Tong Suk Yin, Ellen, Ms. Jie Chao, Ms. Zhong Ying, Mr.
Sam Hon Fai, Mr. Zhang Peng and Ms. Li Xiaowen.
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STATUS OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors concerning their
independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Rules of Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The Company considers all of the

Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE
GROUP

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and
senior management of the Group as at the date of this report

are set out on pages 42 to 47 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Directors who are proposed for re-election at the AGM has
a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than

statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements, no contract of significance in relation to
the Group's business to which the Group was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITITES

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities (to be fullest extent permitted by
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)) which he/she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/
her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance

coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the share option scheme and share award schemes
disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the Director is interested in any
business apart from the Group’s businesses, which competes
or is likely to complete, either directly or indirectly, with the
Group's businesses which is required to be disclosed pursuant
to the Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests of the Directors and
their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations,
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ"), or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by the Directors of Listed Issuers (the

“Model Code"), were as follows:
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Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company

(a) Ordinary shares of the Company

Annual Report 2022 &£}
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(@) ARAElz EHER

Number of shares

R EE
Personal Spouse Corporate Approximate%
interest interest interests Total of shareholding
e L
PN £ EEER EEER #et [Epi)4
Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter 20,000,000 - — 20,000,000 0.96%
) 3@
Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin 500,000 - - 500,000 0.02%
FNERAE
(b) Share options of the Company (b) A FlZBRE
Number of share options
RREHE
Approximate
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding at % of total
at 1 January during during during 31 December issued
Name of Director 2022 the year the year the year 2022 ordinary shares Date of grant Exercisable period  Exercise price
Rogozf
R-gzcf t28 LS
-A-A St-B EERER
E3ii HRTE  RERRE  REAGR  HERXN HRTE  BRASM RERH il ke
HKS
BT
Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo 7,700,000 - - - 7,700,000 0.37% 27 July 2020 26 July 2023 0.26
EEIEE CECRELACTHA CECRELACTLAE
]
M. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin 1,228,000 - - - 1228000 0.05% 27 July 2020 26 July 2023 026
BNBEE “ECRELACTLH CECREYACTLEE
ZECZELACZTAR
Mr. Siu Miu Man, Simon, v 1,228,000 - - - 1,228,000 0.05% 27 July 2020 26 July 2023 0.26
BYTEE CECRELACTHA ZEIRELACT4AE
S = g Bk
Total #3f 10,156,000 - - - 10,156,000 0.47%
Notes: Het -
1. As at 31 December 2022, the Company's total issued . RIEBEZZF+ZA=+—H ARAZE

ordinary shares was 2,078,601,598.

2. During the year, no share options disclosed above were
cancelled.

3. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out under the
section of “SHARE OPTION SCHEME" in this report.
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Petst 8] —#5 -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of
the Directors and their respective associates had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had been
entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

BREXFEEEN RZTEZ_F+=A
=+—H EZRFEEFSEIHBHBALIRAR
NAIREEEEE (RELFRBAEKRNE
THEBZEER) 2BRH BERNDIEESE
FoBERENALRRRRERESRBERK
BIE352167F B 2 Z s it I 2 () 4 2 304
B RREZETAE BITMEARA A K
RFT 2 A EESRE -

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN THE FTERRREADARG 2 EsS
SHARES OF THE COMPANY
Long positions in the shares/underlying shares of REQABRG HERGZEFR
the Company
Approximate
Number of % of total
Number of  underlying  Aggregate issued
Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares held ~ shares held interest ordinary shares Notes
HERT
gzl LERAY
% 5/ EEME FrERn#E R #A BREE BOBEI it
Mr. Chung Chi Shing, Eric Beneficial owner 368,352,000 1,228,000 369,580,000 17.78% 2
EEREE EREAA
Anli Holdings Limited Beneficial owner - 246,457,178 246,457,178 11.85% 3
ZERRARARA ERBERA
Mr. Wong Wai Hong Beneficial owner 140,000 - 140,000 0.01%
aRFEEL ERBEEA
Held by controlled corporation - 246,457,178 246,457,178 11.85% 3
REEERE
140,000 246457178 246,597,178 11.860%
Notes: it -

1. As at 31 December 2022, the Company's total issued ordinary . RZF__FF+_A=+—0 AAFAZE

shares was 2,078,601,598.

BT E BB E052,078,601,598/% °

2. The underlying shares represent the 1,228,000 share options 2. HEBRGREARAR-_F_FFLA

granted by the Company to Mr. Chung Chi Shing, Eric on 27 July

2020.

Zt+ -t HMEEKEER D 21,228,0001
BE RS AE o

3. Mr. Wong Wai Hong is beneficially interested in 80.66% of Anli 3. RERALESHEAREZRARAAZ

Holdings Limited. As such, Mr. Wong Wai Hong is deemed to be
interested in the underlying shares of the Company held by Anli

Holdings Limited.

80.66% Mz - FIlt - EEEEERKR AR
ZEERBBARFE ZARAREBRG
B -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the
Company had not been notified of any other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which had been recorded in the register to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 14 June 2018, by passing an ordinary resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting, the Company adopted another
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). Summary of

the principal terms of the Share Options Scheme are listed below.

Summary of the Share Option Schemes

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Schemes
The purpose of the Share Option Schemes is to
recognise the contribution made by the participants to
the Group and also provide them an opportunity to have
a personal stake in the Company with the view to
motivating them to optimize their performance and
efficiency for the benefit of the Group and to attract and
retain or otherwise maintain ongoing business
relationship with them whose contributions are beneficial

to the long term growth of the Group.

(b) Farticipants of the Share Option Schemes

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at
its discretion, to make an offer for the grant of share
options to the employees or directors of the Group or
such other persons who are eligible for participation in
the Share Option Schemes to subscribe for ordinary
shares in the Company subject to the terms and

conditions stipulated in the Share Option Schemes.
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(c) Total number of shares available for issue under

(c) WRIZEAERE &) A] ZFT7TZRTABE

the Share Option Schemes

The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of outstanding share
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Schemes must not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue from time to

time.

The total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all share options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of approval of the
Share Option Schemes (i.e. 89,481,682 shares of the
Company, which represented approximately 10% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue as at 14
June 2018. The Company may seek approval of the
Company's shareholders in a general meeting for
refreshing the 10% limit under the Share Option
Schemes save that the total number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon the exercise of all
share options to be granted under the Share Option
Schemes under the limit as “refreshed” may not exceed
10% of the total number of shares of the Company in

issue as at the date of approval of the limit.

As at 31 December 2022, the total number of shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was
225,419,159, representing approximately 10.84% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue as at the

date of this Annual Report.

BEBREGEERE 2 MRITERER
BRTEKEA TEITZARARG 2
B BEETEBRBRARRITRE2EEE
T 230% °

RIE R ARG 8 TR 2 2 50 R IR
AT A] TR 1T 2 AR R AR D 42 81 -
EHTEEAMEBRETEERARD
AlAE2BEFTRMD 2100% (A
89,481,682 A Akt - =T — )\
FARATOBARARIBEITRMNBEL
10%) ° 782X 8] A 358 AN 2 A AR SR A AR
RAE LHEESBERE S Z10%R
B MREITENIRE TRBEERE
EBETELZ 2 HERERITERA T
BIIZARBIRNDBE - TEBBEME
ZBRBEEBARRR DD EITRMDZ
10% °

R-E-_—F+—-_A=+—H BEE
BREFEATEITZROEER
225,419,1590% - HE R AFHHHA
RABBITRG B 204910.84% °
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(d) Maximum entitlement of each participant

(e)

®

The total number of the shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the share options
granted and to be granted to any participant (including
both exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options)
in any twelve months up to the date of the grant to such
participant shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting of the

Company.

Time of exercise of share option

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, any share option
may be exercised in accordance with its terms at any
time during a period to be determined and notified by
the Board to each grantee, save that no share option may
be exercised more than 10 years from the date on which
the share option is deemed to have been granted and
accepted in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme. The Board may provide restrictions on

the exercise of a share option during the option period.

Payment on acceptance of share option

Pursuant to the Share Option Schemes, HK$1.00 is
payable by the grantee to the Company on acceptance of
the share option within 7 days from the date of grant of

the share option.
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(g) Basic of determining the subscription price of share

(h)

option

The exercise price per share option under the Share
Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion, but in any event shall be at least the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date when share option is
offered; and (ii) the average closing prices of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately

preceding the date on which share option is offered.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will continue to be in full force
and effect for a period of 10 years commencing on 14
June 2018 (save that the Company, by ordinary
resolutions in general meeting or the Board, may at any
time terminate the operation of the Share Option
Scheme). After termination, no further share options will
be granted but the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme shall in all other respects remain in full force and
effect and the share options which are granted during the
life of the Share Option Scheme may continue to be
exercisable in accordance with their respective terms of

issue.

(5) ETHERERBERE

RIEBIRES - BOBREZITERE
EHEES2RNBET  EERNOM
TRERTIMEFHNESE - (DAQ
FIR D IR 2 AR E B B R AT A 3R
RO Y T E - KA R R
ERREEREE AN OMEEX BT
ZATHBERPHAF G HIE -

(h) BB &2 FerFH]

BREAESA T N\FXRATHEA
Bttt FREB T RN RER (AR
RARBERAGBBZ EBRERN
EEenBERRIEBRIESBIZERE)
RILR - A SBREBEBRES SR
PR - ERBBUERT B 2 IR A B A
T EDE+RRARIER - ARER
BB MR TG 2 B A 4
BRBEZB ZEITHRRTIATRE -
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Movement of Share Options B ESE
As at 31 December 2022, 54,844,000 share options of the W -_ZT - -+ - A =+—H H#5F
Company were outstanding. Details of the movements of the 54,844,000 AN A & 2 # B #E 5 5 R 17 1& »
share options during the year are as follows: BRENRFEAZEBHNT :
Number of share options
hEsR
Redlassified Erercised Lapsed  Outstanding at
Outstanding at Granted during during during 31 December Share options
Category of participants 1 January 2022 during the year the year the year the year 022 Date of grant duration Exercise price
HZBIZE
H-gozg t2hzt-8
SEERH -R-BHATE  RERRN WEAERAR  MEARR  RERKN HATR RHAH BREZAR fikE
HKS
B
Directors 11,384,000 - - - (1,228,000) 10,156,000 27 July 2020 27 July 2020 - 26 July 2023 0.26
g% TECRECACTHA TEIRRLACHERR
ZROEREEACTAR
Substantial Shareholder=<? 1,228,000 - - - - 1,228,000 27 July 2020 27 July 2020 - 26 Juy 2023 026
IERR “EIRELRCTH TRORRLACTLAR
“RIZEEACHAA
Employees 36,060,000 - - - (300,000) 35,760,000 27 July 2020 27 July 2020 - 26 July 2023 026
8 CRIRELACTHA ZTCRELAITLAE
“EZELACTAA
Other elighle person 7,700,000 - - - - 7,700,000 27 July 2020 27 July 2020 - 26 July 2023 0.26
EhaERAL “EIRELACTLE ZEIREYACTEAR
ZBIZELACTAE
Tod 3 5372000 - - - (1518000) 54844000
Notes: Het -

(1) Commencing from the date of grant up to the date faling on 3 (1) REHEREAPEEEHR=FIHEA "
years from the date of grant of the share options, all shares BBARRETE T 2 P IR AT BB RS T -

comprised in the share options can be exercised at any time.

(2) Being Mr. Chung Chi Shing, Eric. (2) BMERERKEAE -
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Details of the grant of share options to the Directors of the
Company are disclosed in the sub-headed “Long Positions in
the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company” under the
section of "“DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES" above.

During the year, no share options were cancelled under the

Share Option Scheme.

SHARE AWARD SCHEMES
On 31 March 2008, the Company adopted two share

incentive award schemes, namely The VC Share Purchase
Scheme Trust (the “Share Purchase Scheme”) and The VC
Share Award Scheme Trust (the “Share Subscription Scheme”)
(the Share Purchase Scheme and the Share Subscription
Scheme collectively are referred to as the “Share Award
Schemes”). Summary of the principal terms of the Share

Award Schemes are listed below:

Summary of the Share Award Schemes
(a) Purpose of the Share Award Schemes

The purpose of Share Award Schemes is to attract skilled
and experienced personnel, to provide incentives for
them to remain with the Group and to motivate them to
strive for the future development and expansion of the
Group by providing them with the opportunity to acquire

equity interests in the Company.

(b) Farticipants of the Share Award Schemes

The Board may, subject to the rules relating to the Share
Award Schemes, from time to time at is absolute
discretion select any employee of the Company or its
subsidiaries to be a participant in the Share Award
Schemes. However, director of the Company or any
subsidiaries and any other connected person of the
Company are not allowed to participate in the Share

Subscription Scheme.

ERARRRESERBRIEZFE TR E
NIEZRRM BERNDREREE 2 ER]
—EHR[RERRFRG REERKRMD 2 FE]
Z DB B EE o

F B (] BB ROREAR SR R AR R 8 1R e 3 o

1 &R B Et &
RZFETZNF=ZA=1+—8  ARAERHAM
Ay R ET 8 DR RERKRDBER
ER(ROBEFE) MERRKD ER
sEEFE (TR REFE ) (RHBEE
KRB RETEI GRS I B tE]) -
Petn BB ET 8l 2 TR IEHMEHIIMT

Rt RE B E
(a) Kir2ER itz B AY
Hﬁfﬁ”ﬁﬁb*zﬂ‘ﬁﬁé_i@%ﬁ%—1H)l?%$
PRS2 EE - W BT e RE
%ﬁz}\ibw\zﬁ%l CRERBERSE
BEUHAREE  ARSBRER N
BAEEZRRERNMEHFER -

(b) K7 ZRsE 22 HEE
R RE T I BRMRARRT - EF
SRR EENBERERRASENE
REZEREE 2 EE EE RS - A
e ARFHEAMMERARZEERA
RAZEAEMEEA T TE2ER
nREAE -
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(e

Duration of the Share Award Schemes

The Share Award Schemes have a term of 20 years from
the date of adoption, i.e. 31 March 2008. The Board may
by resolution terminate the operation of the Share Award
Schemes at any time provided that such termination shall
not affect any subsisting rights of any selected employee.
If, at the date of such termination, the trustee holds any
shares which has not vested, then the trustee shall within
21 business days of receiving notice of such termination
sell such shares and remit the proceeds of sale (after

deductions) to the Company.

Scheme Limit

The scheme limit of the Share Purchase Scheme and
Share Subscription Scheme is 2% and 1% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue respectively
from time to time (excluding shares which have already

been transferred to employees on vesting).

Grant of the Awarded Shares

For the Share Purchase Scheme, the Board or the trustee
of the scheme (as the case may be) shall either (1) set
aside a sum of money or (2) determine a number of
shares which it wishes to be the subject of a bonus or
award under the Share Purchase Scheme. Where a sum
of money has been set aside (or a number of shares has
been determined), it shall pay (or cause to be paid) that
amount or an amount sufficient to purchase that number
of shares to the trustee (or as it shall direct) from the
Group's resources as soon as practicable following such
funds being set aside. Within 15 business days of
receiving the amount sufficient to purchase that number
of shares, the trustee shall apply the same towards the

purchase of shares on the Stock Exchange.

©

(@

(e)
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For the Share Subscription Scheme, the Board or the
trustee of the scheme (as the case may be) shall at its
discretion either (i) determine a notional cash amount or
(i) determine a number of shares (the “Number of
Awarded Shares”) which it wishes to be the subject of an
award under the Share Subscription Scheme. Where a
notional cash amount has been determined by the Board,
the Board shall determine the maximum number of
shares (the “Relevant Number of Shares”), rounded down
to the nearest whole number which could be purchased
with such notional cash amount on the Stock Exchange at
the market price prevailing on the date of the award. The
Company shall pay (or cause to be paid) an amount of
either (i) the Relevant Number of Shares (where the
Board has determined a notional cash amount) or (ii) the
Number of Awarded Shares (where the Board has
determined such number) to the trustee (or as it shall
direct) from the Group's resources as soon as practicable
in accordance with the rules relating to the Share

Subscription Scheme.

No payment shall be made to the trustee of the Share
Award Schemes (the “Trustee”) and no instructions to
subscribe for shares shall be given to the Trustee under
the Share Award Schemes where any member of the
Board is in possession of the inside information in
relation to the Company or where dealings by Directors
are prohibited under the Model Code as set out in the
appendices to the Listing Rules or any applicable laws
and regulations or any internal code of conduct in
securities dealing adopted by the Company from time to

time.
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Vesting of the Awarded Shares

Vesting of the shares will be conditional on the selected
employee remaining as an employee of the Company or
the subsidiary until the vesting date. The Board also has
the discretion to stipulate such other conditions in
respect of a particular employee which will apply to the
vesting of the shares. Any shares held by the Trustee on
behalf of the selected employee of the Share Award
Schemes shall vest in accordance with the timetable
determined by the Board at its discretion. An award will
lapse where the Company or the business division by
which the selected employee is employed ceases to be
part of the Group or in the event the selected employee
does not deliver the notice of exercise within the
prescribed time limit to the Trustee for the purpose of

exercising his rights to receive the vested shares.

Where shares which are referable to a selected employee
do not vest or are not acquired by selected employees in
accordance with the procedures abovementioned, the
Trustee shall hold such shares or any income deriving
therefrom exclusively for the benefit of all selected
employees of the Group as the Trustee determines in its
absolute discretion, after having taken into consideration

recommendations of the Board.

Trustee of the Schemes

The Company shall have the power exercisable by deed
to appoint or remove any person as a Trustee. The
minimum number of trustees shall be two individuals or
a body corporate. The Trustee has the power to exercise
at its discretion all voting rights attached to any shares
held. Pursuant to the scheme rules, the Trustee is
obligated to exercise its power with the objective of
maximizing the benefits of the participants of the Share
Award Schemes and shall not be subject to influence

from any party.

@

®
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Outstanding Awarded Shares

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were no
shares awarded by the Company to any employees of the
Company and/or its subsidiaries and outstanding under the

Share Award Schemes.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are disclosed in

note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the related party transactions fall under the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected

transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's audited
consolidated financial statements and results for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and is satisfied that these have
been prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards and fairly presented the Group's financial positions

and results for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Information on the work of the Audit Committee and its
composition are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”

on pages 59 and 71 of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance Report is set out on pages 48 to
78 of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
under the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
December 2022.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 have been audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
annual general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. SHINEWING

(HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of
Value Convergence Holdings Limited
Fu Yiu Man, Peter

Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong
30 March 2023
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TO THE MEMBERS OF VALUE CONVERGENCE
HOLDINGS LIMITED

ERZRERAT

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Value Convergence Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 119 to 303, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
17/F, Chubb Tower, Windsor House, BB RE
311 Gloucester Rd,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B i EEfiR &

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B EEfiR &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment allowance on accounts receivable from

money lending services

Refer to note 26 to the consolidated financial statements and

the accounting policies on page 159 to 166.

The key audit matter
HRESSR

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had accounts
receivable from money lending services with carrying
amount of approximately HK$223,019,000. The
Group has identified loans based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
R-TE-—_F+-A=+—H > EBEXEEXERE
AR 75 2 FE W BR 3 2 BRI fE 49 /3223,019,000/8 7T °
EEEREEVSHERRELITMEREL MK
HEBORBRMBRER -

The assessment of impairment for accounts
receivable from money lending services involves
significant management judgements and estimates
on the amount of expected credit loss at the
reporting date.

AR B MERRTS 2 UWBR R 2 RER S R E IR B
HRERBEREEBESBEEL ERAE &G
it

FARELXSE(#)
B R 75 Wi BR RKORL (B 22 18

FR2EGRAMBERRMF26 R FEI159BEF
166 B 2 5K °

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RPN ETNMEREZEE

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
assumptions and critical judgements of the Group's
forward-looking expected credit loss ("ECL") model used
to estimate the impairment loss.
BANEARTFEETER EEEAGKRERER
FARELEREEEE ((RBEEBE]) EXAAN
R M I -

We obtained an understanding of the Group's credit risk
management, practices and key controls over the
application of the impairment methodology, and
assessed the Group's impairment provisioning policy in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 9, including
an evaluation of management judgement on i) the use
of reasonable and supportable credit risk information
that is available without undue cost or effort; and ii) the
staging criteria for determining if a significant increase in
credit risk has occurred.

BHMEESY EXEEERRERE FHERME
AEZEBRBEREROTE LT E S£EERE
ERVBMELERNEOFRRTE 2 MEREHRR - BT
HEREH)EABAMNE N U ERARLSE B A E
BZABERAXKHNEERRER  Ki)EEEEMR
BB BREIE NG D EBIREEL 2 2K -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B i EEfiR &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

RREZEE(H)

Impairment allowance on accounts receivable from BB BR 7 PE W BR OB B 48 ()

money lending services (continued)

The key audit matter
BRBETTEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RPN ESTNMEREZEE

We tested the appropriateness of the Group's
determination of significant increase in credit risk and
the basis for classification of exposures into the three
stages. Our testing included the checking to loan
overdue information, and considering the stage
classification determined by the Group.

BAEAS ESEEECEERARETBREZFLZINK
RSB A-ZERERNEESSSHE - RMAH
BREBREERAREN TEE SEEEETHER
-

DR e

We have evaluated the Group's estimation methodology
of expected credit losses, and checked the parameters
to external data sources where available, including the
price volatility of selected underlying collateral, valuation
of the collateral and other sources of cash flows, and
developed a reasonable range of expected cash shortfall
for comparison with the Group's assessment.
BMEFE EXEENTEHEEERMGE A Tk
SR RENIINBERFREE R ETEEER D
ZEREY BERRAERRSRENHEMKIR I
HIEABEHENTERE B NE SEENTMG
YELLE ©

We also assessed the financial statement disclosures
relating to the Group's exposure to credit risk.
BONETEHEE E£EEEYHEERBRNMBHRE
W -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B EEfiR &

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (continued)

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income

Refer to note 24 to the consolidated financial statements and

the accounting policies on page 157.

The key audit matter
HRESSR

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, comprising unlisted equity investments, of
approximately HK$22,592,000.

i FH+ZA=+—0 AEEFAERQF
EIREMERMEEMBRAREE M BEEREI
bR & #922,592,000/8 7T ©

— s — —

=

We have identified the valuation of the investment
in unlisted equity securities included in the financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income as a key audit matter since significant
judgements and estimates, including use of
significant unobservable inputs, have been used in
the fair value estimations by the management at the
end of the reporting period.

BT AR R FED R R EHAM 2 ERAREE
ZHBEEANZIELTIRAZBFKRE 2 HEBDA
BREFFE AAEREEMRARBEHRZA
FERRKAERHG LGS BREATITERE
AR -

AREZEE(H)
BAVEIRREEMEZEABRARERE
ZUMBEEZGE
FLMGEAMBRRME24REI57TEZE
K o

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RPN ETNMEREZEE

Our audit procedures were designed to challenge the
reasonable of judgements and estimates, including
selection of valuation technique and use of significant
unobservable inputs adopted in the fair value estimation
by the management.

BB FE EHHE R 2 AR LE R
BRENEBEMFTAFEZBIETE Z HERMN K
PR 2 BRI AT B S8 ABUR -

We have also reviewed the methodology and the input
data used with reference to the latest market data.
BPMEZ2REHNTISEE W AR 27 ERE
ANBUE o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B EEfiR &

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and our agreed
terms of engagements, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis

of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B i EEfiR &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

« lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors of the

Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B EEfiR &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to

continue as a going concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

«  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B i EEfiR &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor's report is Mr. Wong Chuen Fai.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Chuen Fai

Practising Certificate Number: P05589

Hong Kong
30 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME GZ4&#EXREM2ERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T_—_H+_A=1t—HLHEE

2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
lligza FTERT FHET
Continuing operations BERKEXER
Revenue Yoz 5 73,281 90,554
Other income H A WA 5 3,168 1,726
Other (losses) gains B (BE) x 7 (162,306) 33,184
Impairment losses on accounts J& W BR 3 2 R 1B B 18
receivable, net R 26 (10,212) (3,324)
Reversal of (impairment losses) on Hh fE W R R 2 B
other receivables, net EiERE CREEE)
FER 27 5,123 (129)
Staff costs B TR 8 (43,062) (39,475)
Commission expenses HeHx (3,019) (5,704)
Depreciation of property and equipment % MREIFE 20 (1,018) (2,539)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEERE 22 (7,055) (7,284)
Finance costs BE B 11 (3,236) (2,275)
Other operating expenses HEMgEEMx (29,926) (25,296)
Share of profit of an associate DG EEE R E) 2 % A 96 194
(Loss) profit before tax BRTEAT (& 18) & 7 (178,166) 39,632
Income tax credit (expenses) e () 12 74 (10,859)
(Loss) profit for the year from SEREXEBFE
continuing operations (E18) i A 14 (178,092) 28,773
Discontinued operation BRIEREEL
Loss for the year from discontinued ERIEREEBZFE
operation BB 13 - (21,979)
(Loss) profit for the year FE(EE) = A (178,092) 6,794
Other comprehensive expenses for FEAEMEPEAX
the year
ltems that will not be classified HietgnBzBak
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIER
Fair value change of financial assets at & A F(EI B K 7E H b
fair value through other PHEHBAREE 28
comprehensive income BEEZAFEEE 24 (581) (6,344)
Exchange difference on translation of MEBINEEZER
foreign operations Z5E (571) -
Total comprehensive (expenses) FE2AE (A WA

income for the year ek (179,244) 450
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 48 EEEREM2ERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T_—_F+_A=t—HLEE

2022 2021
= —F-—F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
&t FERT FHET
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: JA N ALEIEFE (B18)
A
Owners of the Company ZN/NECIE ZE DN
— Continuing operations —REREER (178,091) 28,779
— Discontinued operation —ERIEREES - (13,591)
(178,091) 15,188
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR
— Continuing operations —FREEEL ©) (6)
— Discontinued operation —BRIEEEED - (8,388)
() (8,394)
(178,092) 6,794
Total comprehensive (expenses) LTATESZE(FX)
income for the year attributable to: CONCE
Owners of the Company EN/NSIE SN
— Continuing operations —REREXER (179,262) 22,435
— Discontinued operation —ERIEBEES - (13,591)
(179,262) 8,844
Non-controlling interests FErE R
— Continuing operations —FEREER 18 (6)
— Discontinued operation —ERIEREE - (8,388)
18 (8,394)
(179,244) 450
(Loss) earnings per share (HK cents) F&R (B58) &F GBI 16
From continuing and discontinued FENMDRIEREER
operations
Basic R (8.57) 0.81
Diluted i (8.57) 0.81
From continuing operations FEREET
Basic R (8.57) 1.54
Diluted e (8.57) 1.53
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Z&8MBHRAR

As at 31 December 2022
RZBZZF+=ZA=+—H

2022 2021
—E=-= T —%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HiaF FExT FAET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Goodwill EES 17 2,016 2,016
Trading rights R 5 18 - -
Other intangible assets HEMEpEE 19 1,246 1,246
Interest in an associate REERB 2w 23 777 681
Property and equipment E IS E L] 20 2,275 2,981
Statutory deposits EERE 21 1,518 3,063
Rental and utility deposits e KBRS 1,608 2,116
Right-of-use assets EREEE 22 8,775 15,830
Financial assets at fair value BAFEINEREER
through profit or loss REBZMBEE 25 18,100 -
Financial assets at fair value BEAFEHRRELM
through other comprehensive EPEHBRAREIEZ
income WBEE 24 22,592 23,173
58,907 51,106
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 713 -
Accounts receivable JE WLBR 3R 26 394,081 382,291
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTRIE - ke RHEAM
receivables FEUAR X 27 22,296 58,663
Financial assets at fair value BAFEINEREER
through profit or loss REECZHKEE 25 300,595 432 469
Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 28 32,309 74,536
749,994 947,959
Current liabilities REEE
Accounts payable JE 1~ BR K 29 5,235 21,177
Accrued liabilities and other JEEraE R E A ER
payables BRI 29 18,162 6,698
Margin loan payables JEIREBEEER 29 18,470 15,321
Convertible bonds Al #2 J 1B 31 5,912 -
Lease liabilities HEAE 22 5,308 6,983
Tax payable JE #1518 3,952 7,089
57,039 57,268
Net current assets MEBEETHE 692,955 890,691
Total assets less current liabilities #EERRBERE 751,862 941,797
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Z&8MEIHkAR

As at 31 December 2022
RZBZZF+=ZA=+—H

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—%
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
g3 THERT FET
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Convertible bonds Al A % E 5 31 = 5,278
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEAE 30 97 202
Lease liabilities HERE 22 4,115 9,423
4,212 14,903
Net assets EEFE 747,650 926,894
Capital and reserves BEXRFE
Share capital [N 33 1,760,344 1,760,344
Reserves i (1,012,706) (833,444)
Equity attributable to owners of the ZAATHEH AEBIEER
Company 747,638 926,900
Non-controlling interests FIERER 12 (6)
Total equity ERERE 747,650 926,894

The consolidated financial statements on pages 119 to 303
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 30 March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter
MR EE
Director

EF

FI9BEEFIZEMHF 2 XA MFHREL
E_—F=-A=1+HR#ERETN

7 wET

Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo

JIESRERRE

EEILAE
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY ZF&# X8 8K
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BHE-_T-_—_F+-A=+—HLEFE

At 1 January 2022 RoZ-25-A-8
Loss for the year EREE
Other compreensive expenses for ERER2ERR

the year

Fairvalue loss on fnencil essets at farvalie — ATEFBRALR
through ofher comprehienshe income (note 24)  2EMAFREZEREEL
DYEBR M)

Exchange diference on tenslaton of foreign
operations

Attrbutable to owners of the company

Share
capitel

ey
k3000

=
B

1760344

Capitl
Teserve

arfiR
k3000
it

(note q)

KLARRARR
Investments
Exchange  revaluation  Share option
resere Tesere fesene
e

EifE  EREE  RREER
HIGOD  HKSO00  HKSO00
TEL TR TER

- (84461 4739

- (581) -

(550) - -

Total
@i

HK§ 000
ThL

92600
(178091)

(581)

(550)

123

Total
5]

Hk§000
TEL

92689
(1780%2)

(381)

(571)

Totel comprehensive (expenses) income FEREERMALE

for the year

Tranfer of share option resene wpon lapse of - BB AT R BRERE
share options

(590) (581) -

- - (135)

(17926)

(179244)

At 31 December 2022 i
tzf=1-8

1,760,344

123758

() (1800)  46u

747638

747650
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Attrbutable to owners of the company

LTINS
Convertible
Convertble  Investments Share bond issued Non-
Capital bonds  revaluation option Other  Accumulated bya  controlling
Share capital resenve fesenve fesenve fesenve Teserve losses Total  subsidiary interests Total
il PE
TER R& ¥49
Ba  EARE  BHER  EMEE  BRERR  HABE  2HER & BRES HERER it
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TEn Thn ThT ThT TR TR ThL T T T T
(note g) (note b) (note 31)
(Hits) (W) i)
{1 Janry 2021 HOED-E-A-B 160295 378 1046 (78117 g1 (67 (3123) 839258 8 (634) 838704
Proft (oss) for the year EEEE - - - - - - 15,188 15,188 - (8394) 6,79
Other comprehensive expenses — FEEB2EHR
for the year
Fairvlue loss on inancil assets AT EFIERAL K
atfarvalue through other %WA%E B2HH
comprehensive income EEDTERR
(note 24) (i) - - - (6:344) - - - (6:344) - - (6,344)
Totel comprefensie (expenses)  EE27 (5%
incame for the year WABE - - - (6344) - - 15,188 8844 - (8394) 450
Issue of shares upon exercise of BT EBREREIRG
share options (note 33b) W) 11,162 - - - (2739) - - 8424 - - 8424
Reversal of convertble bonds —— BEWRRERREE
resenve (note 31) 1) - - (1039%) - - - 10398 - - - -
Release of defered ta abites ~ HTEREREELHH
upon settlement or cncellston~ AEELHEEE
of convertible bonds - - 1487 - - - - 1487 - - 1487
Transfer of share option resenve
upon [apse of share options - - - - (21378 - 21374 - - - -
Disposal of subsiiaries (note 36) - - - - - - - - - 9022 9022
Redemption of convertble bonds
issued by & subsidiery - - - - - - - - (%) - (%)
Release of deferred tax liabltes
on redemption of convertble
bonds - - - - - - - - 15 - 15
Issue of shares by top-up BAEBRAAARER
placement and subscription M ABMEARA
(note 330) (330 69,936 - - - - - - 69936 - - 69,936
Transaction costs atirbutebleto ~ REEME{IRRHES
iste of shares by placement 2 RERA(HE5)
(note 330) (1,049) - - - - - - (1,049) - - (1,049)
At 31 December 2021 NoE--f
+2A71-F 17603 1378 1565 (14l 473 (067 (788 9260 - 6 02689
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HE_Z__F+_A=+—HILFE
Notes:
(a) Capital reserve

(b)

Pursuant to a scheme of capital reorganisation, which became
effective on 28 May 2003, the High Court of Hong Kong had
approved the reduction of the capital of Value Convergence
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and the cancellation of the
Company's share premium account. The credit arising from the
reduction of the share capital account and cancellation of the
share premium account, after eliminated against the
accumulated losses, in the aggregate amount of
HK$123,758,200 was transferred to a capital reserve account of
the Company. Such capital reserve account will not be treated as
realised profits, and shall be treated as an undistributable
reserve of the Company until and unless the creditors of the
Company as at the date of the sanction are fully settled. In view
of the fact that the Company had already fully settled the
relevant debts due to the creditors, the Company is of the view

that the reserve is distributable to the Company's shareholders.

Other reserve

Other reserve represented the differences between the purchase
considerations and the amounts acquired from non-controlling
interests arising from acquisitions of the remaining equity
interests of 9.90% and 8.84% in VC Capital Limited and VC

Asset Management Limited respectively completed in year 2012.

(b)

BER-_ZTZT=FRAA -+ N\BERZEAR
BHAFE - BARFERIERRERER
BRAR([ARQE]) BRARFHARAZ K
17 35 (B R o BB RR 7N BR 2 v 88 AR 19 Vi (B BR P
EECZERBRFTEBEBYHEEZAEAR
123,758,200 70 * EBA KRR B 2 BRI
B - ZEARBERTSWRAEEREF -
MR ABRARZ A D REE  AERR
FARARZESE R ZEMNEEBHER
Bl BERAABERBENEREEAZ
BRAEL WMARRRE  LEHBEATDIK
FAQNBRE

H AR #

HibE B EAFZERER Y BB EARE
BRAGDNEREEETEBRAGBSEAK
29.90% [ 8.84%% A #E %5 2 fE B (B B A
WEZEzENEE AEKRBER =2
—ZFTK
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2022 2021
—EBC-C—F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEEE
(Loss) profit before tax BrEiAT (518 & T
— Continuing operations —FREKEER (178,166) 39,632
— Discontinued operation (note 13) —BERIEEEER
(Hii13) - (21,964)
Adjustments for: FHEIEE -
Interest income from authorised institutions KB RA AR
A (120) (1o1)
Other interest income H A A S UA (829) (477)
Interest expense on the convertible bonds Al IR B 5B R X 634 1,447
Interest expense on margin loan payables JERHRE & ERA R
B3 1,974 533
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEABMSMXZ 628 320
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR EE - 107
Gain on disposal of an associate = RN - (74)
Share of profit of an associate DREEE R R 5 A (96) (194)
Depreciation of property and equipment MERREBINE 1,018 2,544
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 7,055 7,284
Fair value change on derivatives financial TETRMEBEZAF
instruments b3 - 4,735
Unrealised loss (gain) on financial assets RIEEEVKEEZ
held-for-trading HIREE (W) 157,480 (63,913)
Fair value change on financial assets at fair BAFEIERERER
value through profit or loss mEREIMBEE
N {EEE (500) (299)
Gain on acquisition of financial assets at fair WiE =~ AR &
value through profit or loss EESREE B
BEZ W (9,040) -
Impairment loss on accounts receivable, net JFE W BR R BB & 1
R 10,212 3,324
(Reversal of) impairment loss on other H IR 2 (B [El)
receivables, net B 18 % 88 (5,123) 7,532
Loss on disposal of property and equipment HEMERRBZ
&8 - 47
Reversal of provision for long service FHARB & FRE
payments/annual leave payments I 4 2 B2 - (104)
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2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Operating cash flows before movements in HEERERPRI o LE
working capital REenE (14,873) (19,621)
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEOgmmd (713) 96
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable FEWBR Rz (3B ) R (10,610) 36,832
Increase in financial assets at fair value BRAFEIEREERR
through profit or loss RREZMIEEAEZ
3 hn (61,607) (112,254)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other TERFHRIE - ke RAEAM
receivables & Mo Bl R 2 Ol 24,561 48,106
Decrease (increase) in rental and utility ek KEZRE 2D
deposits (#0) 508 (1,844)
Decrease in accounts payable JE 1< BR 3K 2 R (15,942) (26,887)
Increase in margin loan payables ENRBEERZ M 1,175 14,788
Increase in accrued liabilities and other FE T B & K H A FE A BR
payables K2 K 12,822 342
Cash used in operations REmBRE (64,679) (60,442)
Bank interest received EER 1T A B 120 570
Income tax paid EAPER (3,304) (4,925)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHARSER (67,863) (64,797)
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2022 2021
= —F-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZEE
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERATEIER
through profit or loss = REE 25
BE (10,000) -
Proceed from disposal of financial assets at tﬂ’iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ
fair value through profit or loss BRERECHBE
EZ RS 3RIR 37,441 -
Purchase of property and equipment BE %%&‘“1% (327) (2,012)
Proceeds from disposal of property and HEMERZREZE
equipment RIE - 4
Proceeds from disposal of an associate i Eﬂfﬁ ERBZE
I8 - 4,000
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries ﬁ’iﬂfﬂ? Al P15
NI 5,000 -
Payment of statutory deposits ﬁmﬁz%ﬁ b3 (241) (34)
Refund of statutory deposits EEREERR 1,786 1,152
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of o B B A B A AR
subsidiaries ZIREMAFE - 1,949
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZHMBERESFE 33,659 5,059
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEED
Proceeds from exercise of share options 1T B AR 4 2 P 1S 3K0R - 8,424
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIRD 2 RIS RUR - 69,936
Payments for transaction costs attributable to * A B E TR
issue of shares by placement FREE 2 XS - (1,049)
Payment for the redemption of convertible XEE AR ES 2
bond IR - (255)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEEHERE (7,611) (6,982)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING MEES (A RERE
ACTIVITIES gL (7,611) 70,074
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND RekBREeEEEREZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS (R 4) 8B F 5 (41,815) 10,336
Effect of exchange rate changes EXEH) 25 (412) -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE FOAZRERREEE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR HH 74,536 64,200
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF FRZATRREEE
THE YEAR HE 32,309 74,536
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BE_T_—_F+-_A=1+—HILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited company incorporated
in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section to the annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set
out in note 41.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following amendments to Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
which are effective for the Group’s financial year
beginning 1 January 2022:

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost
of fulfilling a Contract
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018 — 2020
cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material effect on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior periods and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

—REHR
AARA—FREBREMRIZ ARE
RAF  HRHBREERAR S AR
AT (BRFF)) L AR R EMBE
BREEEE I i NERAA A
BR— B R -

AKARZEBEBEBINETER - EHE
NAIZ EBEBEHNHI 41 ©

RRAMEMRESEITERUE
BEEA(HEMBREED])

RAFEE  AEBEERKBATHSE
e rg ((EEGtAg]) R
IR AEE T -_—_F—F—BH%
ZHBFRERZEETERMBRE
ER(TEEMHRELER]) :

BEAMBHREEN —T-—FXA
F1655 2 125] —tH#%EZ
COVID-1948F3
e Em
BEAMBHmELER FRBESIERZ
FEI|2ABE] 5t
BEABGFER] W - BB RE

FE165% Z1EFT =R EE R
EATER 2 WA
BB G ER BEAHO-ET
FITIRZAEFT BHZRA
BEVHHRELEL —FT-NFE
pACTI —E-TFEEH
FBEMBHRSE

R 2 F 2 U

RAFERBEETEBMBERE LR
HARME BT REASE 2 HBERER
MR R Sbr A M B mRTE 2 RE
FHRVEBEATE -
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BE-_E-—F+-_R=+—H1tFE
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective.

HKFRS 17 (including Insurance Contracts'
the October 2020
and February 2022
amendments to

HKFRS 17)

Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and
HKFRS 16 Leaseback?

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current and

the related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation
5(2020) Presentation of
Financial Statements —
Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause?

Amendments to Non-current Liabilities with
HKAS 1 Covenants?

Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Policies!

Practice Statement 2

Amendments to Definition of Accounting
HKAS 8 Estimates'

Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets
HKAS 12 and Liabilities arising from a

Single Transaction'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the above new and amendments to
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and
the financial position of the Group.

2. RAFEGREBTERME

BEEAN(EBMBHREER ]
(&)

B M8 A 1B 14 R A Rz A R R B
AIEBMBE®REER

AR E YR ATERA AT 2 B/MAE K

R IR RSB R BB M IS RS %
a2l :

BAMBRE RERE 4
AERIZE175%

(BRE-_Z_ZTF

TARZE==

F-AZ

BERVBRE

HERFE175% 2

1B5T)

BEMBHREER SHRERRGH 2
F169 2 (1EE] HEa®E?

EBTBIRE REHEEBEN
AEBIFE 105 K& A A B ER
BB GFTER ZEENER
285 Z1EF] B

BB ER BaEsBEAERE
F18E 2 185] HIEREBULE

EREESHE
HEET (=2
—EE)[H R
K22V —{ER
AEETHREK
EEEHRZEH
BT o]

BB G ER BT 75 22 49 16 15 2 3
B8 2 1E5] B & &2

BB ER CIHBRZEE
FIREEE
B 7% R &5 X R
BB NEE2/

&7]

BB G ER AT ZESE
B8R ZEF]

EECEER HME-—SHELY

F125R 2 EFT BENBERM
ZAEEFR IR

! R-ZE-_=F—A—HsUNERARZ
FEHAM AR -

2 RZE-NFE—A—Bg BRI
FEEHRAEK -

3 REST RS ABREG Y FEEERE
R e

ARAREREY - KA L8 M L&
BRI EBMBRESEN U AKREZE R
IR EEANZE -
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BE_Z__Ft+_HA=1T—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBEE

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”) and the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants in the principal
(or most advantageous) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price)
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Details of
fair value measurement are explained in the accounting

policies set out below.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.

BARBRENEETAGHAAGRE
M2 BB REEAEL - B R
AR BBRABIIMZFES LRI
(TEm A (BB D AR 852
ZERBEER -

MINTF G BRAA - A B®mE
THEBELRAERRR  EETERE
BhREREHRZAFEFE -

FELRA—REEENRRIBERE B MR
BN zREZRTFE:-

AFERERFEANMBL2EEREE
(BN THE2EFRGHIES
THAHEEER KR EEEEERAS
MNzEBREIRLEE) MAwmZER
A A BB RS A A M ERE
e ATFEHABEZHBRTITXMEHEZE
TR AR RE -

TESRTBRHEINAOT -
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BHEZ
38

E__Ft+_HA=1T—HLHFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company

«  has power over the investee;

« is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

«  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control

listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the

date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

TESFEE (&)

REE%E

REMBHRREBARA RARAFE
BZERBARENBE AR ZMBHRE -
MARBFENTIER B AESES
1 -

- HWEREHEBED

- HA2EWRESEHmMAE]E
HzRBRIEEANELRZIERN
K

- AIHEERESEREOUNZERD
i o

B FE RSB L ZTHIEHIE R
EE-HEINLHRES FAEESE
A EE D H BT RA R -

BRI ZHEAARRARENGA M
Epl =N TZTM%@%%'H%$%I
REBHEMBERB ZEHIRERFA L
ﬁﬁg'EW%%%ﬁﬁ%W%Lﬂz
WARFX VB AEERGZESZEZ B
HEFAGEBEEMNEME2EKRARK
BEEAKEAEZEHEBNBARZH
AL -

BRakEtE2EmERAZSEKN TR B
RARBHEA ANIEERER - B A
EZEEH&J\@%E%%EAZK’AT%EA
NoEfR i - BRI B 2 G B IE R
BomELBMER -
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting

policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

Business combinations or asset acquisition

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The concentration
test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross
assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar identifiable assets. The gross
assets under assessment exclude cash and cash
equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting
from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the
concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets
is determined not to be a business and no further

assessment is needed.

Assets acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies
and recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price
first to financial assets and financial liabilities at the
respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair
values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does

not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

TESFEER (F)

mEEE (&)
B EE @ E A R SRR
AR UEHSEHRERAEE
BB — B -

AEBARRBZMBEEERERE  #
@ WA RXRBAERAKERKE ZH
RGNBEERE  —HREAARKEE

HEH -

EBREHAEENRE
AEEARBEXZBTERERASET
EAR - fREHNARFEREENG
ik — AN EESBALIF—H
X5 REMBRBZREEZR/REBY
RFEEFR-BEABNEES—HE
Uz BREE ANAKRTEANRAZ
R -BHEZBEETBRRE LA
TEEEBER BRERBEEAREEL
MERBEZHZETHELZEE - [
EEREARAZER  AIZALTBLE
EWIF—BEY BHABENGE-

BENE
AEERKBE-EIEREKRZEER
BER HALSRZFEELAES
BZAFESBEEIEENHEER
MEalE MREIFEERABNE
BERHEBZHYRATE BBEER
BORZHEMABRNEERAE Bt
Aok 71| S T 5B P P 2 1 ) T BRI B E K
FrAfEZ BRIFBAIAE - WERXFZT
CEAHELAZERE RS -
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisition
(continued)

Business combinations

Acquisition of businesses are accounted for by applying
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in
a business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs incurred
to effect a business combination are recognised in profit

or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair

value, except that:

« deferred tax assets or liabilities arising from the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the
business combination are recognised and measured

in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes;

« assets or liabilities related to the acquiree's
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 19 Employee

Benefits;

3. TEEEBE(E)

EBREHREERE (F)

EBAEG

EBWBRABRBEAR - REBKAH
TEEZRENRATFENE AFVE
BASEMBERZEERNRBERRZA
FE - AEERREEST 2R EE AR
AEZBERAEER/BRERKET Z
THEMBTIRARZEEAE - B
BREEBAGMELE Z WERBRAT

RUCHE B8 - P UREE 2 T s Bl B B K PR
AEZABDRATFERR  HETIE
R

- REBAHPUBZEENRAEZ
BEMELAZEEHRBEEXAR
TREBEEGHEREI1250 A
R LG E

- BERKBAIREGANZHERZE
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisition
(continued)

Business combination (continued)

« liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of the acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with the share-based payment
transactions of the Group are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy

below);

« assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held-for-sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that

standard; and

« lease liabilities are measured at the present value of
the remaining lease payments as if the acquired
lease was a new lease at the acquisition date,
except for leases for which (a) the lease term ends
within 12 months of the acquisition date; or (b) the
underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets
are measured at an amount equal to the lease
liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared

with market terms.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisition
(continued)

Business combination (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or

loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests, unless as required by another
standards, are measured at acquisition-date fair value
except for non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event
of liquidation are measured either at fair value or at the
present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net

assets on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from a business combination is carried at

cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
("CGU") (or groups of CGU) that is expected to benefit

from the synergies of the combination.

A CGU (or groups of CGU) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU (or groups of CGU) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the CGU (or groups of CGU). Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed

in subsequent periods.

The Group's policy for goodwill relating to an associate
that included in the carrying amount of the investment is

set out in “investment in an associate” below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control of those

policies.

The Group's investment in an associate is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method, except for the investments classified as held for
sale in which case it is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations. Under the equity method,
investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost.
The Group's share of the profit or loss and changes in
the other comprehensive income of the associate is
recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive
income respectively after the date of acquisition. If the
Group's share of loss of an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, which determined using the
equity method together with any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in
the associate, the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are provided for,
and a liability is recognised, only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or

made payments on behalf of the associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)

If an associate uses accounting policies other than those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, adjustments are made to make the
associate’s accounting policies conform to those of the
Group when the associate’s financial statements are used

by the Group in applying the equity method.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment,
any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate is recognised as goodwill and is

included in the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 36 Impairment of assets
issued by the HKICPA are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group's investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associate is recognised in consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investors' interests in the associate. The Group's share in
the associate’s gains or losses resulting from these

transactions is eliminated.

The Group applies HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments issued
by the HKICPA, including the impairment requirements,
to long-term interests in an associate to which the equity
method is not applied and which form part of the net
investment in the investee. In applying HKFRS 9 to long-
term interests, the Group does not take into account
adjustments to their carrying amount required by HKAS
28 — Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures issued
by the HKICPA (i.e. adjustments to the carrying amount
of long-term interests arising from the allocation of losses
of the investee or assessment of impairment in
accordance with HKAS 28).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and

which represents a separate major line of business.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, which
comprises the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation and the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the

measurement to fair value less costs to sell.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:
« Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

« Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in

the contract

+ Step 3: Determine the transaction price

« Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract

+ Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the

entity satisfies a performance obligation
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular

performance obligation is transferred to customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series

of distinct goods or services that are substantially same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is

met:

« The customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's

performance as the Group performs;

«  The Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is

created or enhanced; or

+  The Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or

services.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer, excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties, discounts and sales

related taxes.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that

consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration from the customer. A
contract liability would also be recognised if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases,

a corresponding receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities

of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Principal Versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to
provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group

is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a

customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service
by another party. In this case, the Group does not control
the specified good or service provided by another party
before that good or service is transferred to the customer.
When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue
in the amount of any fee or commission to which it
expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the

specified goods or services to be provided by the other

party.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

The Group recognised revenue from the following major

sources:

«  Brokerage commission and other related fee from
dealing in securities and futures and options

contracts

+  Underwriting, sub-underwriting, placing and sub-

placing commission

. Arrangement, advisory, referral fee and other fee

income
. Interest income

. Dividend income from financial assets held-for-

trading

«  Sales and marketing of digital assets

Brokerage

The Group provides broking and dealing services for
securities, futures and options contracts. Commission
income is recognised at a point in time on the execution
date of the trades at a certain percentage of the
transaction value of the trades executed. The Group
provides custodian and handling services for securities,
futures and options customer accounts. Fee income is
recognised when the transaction is executed and service
is completed (i.e. at a point in time), except for custodian

service fee which is recognised over time.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Corporate finance and other advisory services

The Group provides underwriting, sub-underwriting,
placing and sub-placing services to customers for their
fund raising activities in equity and debt capital markets.
Revenue is recognised when the relevant underwriting
and placing are completed. Accordingly, the revenue is

recognised at a point in time.

The Group also provides corporate advisory services to
corporate clients for their corporate actions. The Group
considers that all the services promised in a particular
contract of being a corporate advisor are interdependent
and interrelated and should be therefore accounted for
as a single performance obligation. As there is
enforceable right to payment for the Group for the
performance of services completed up to date based on
the contracts with customers regarding corporate advisory
services, the revenue is recognised over time based on
the stage of completion of the contract, the services
transferred to customers up to date. The Group provides
corporate secretary services to customers. Revenue is
recognised over time or at a point in time with reference
to the detailed terms of transactions as stipulated in the
contracts entered into with its customers and

counterparties.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Asset management

The Group provides asset management services to
customers. The customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefit provided by the Group, hence the
revenue is recognised as a performance obligation
satisfied over time. Asset management fee income is
charged at a fixed percentage per month of the net asset
value of the managed accounts under management of

the Group.

The Group is also entitled to a performance fee when
there is a positive performance for the relevant
performance period and it is recognised at the end of the
relevant performance period, when it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is subsequently

resolved.

Sales and marketing of digital assets

Revenue from sales and marketing of digital assets is
recognised at a point in time when control of digital
assets is transferred to customers. The Group facilitates
upstream digital assets suppliers to sell digital assets to
downstream users. The Group does not control specific
digital assets prior to the purchase by the downstream
users. Thus, the Group is acting as an agent and

recognised the revenue on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing
Definition of a lease
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys

a right to control the use of an identified asset for a

period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at
inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with
respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee,
except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value
assets. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease unless another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which

economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at that date. The lease payments are
discounted by using the interest rate implicit in the lease.
If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses

its incremental borrowing rate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

Lease payments included in the measurement of the

lease liability comprise:

« fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed

payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

«  variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the

commencement date;

«  the amount expected to be payable by the lessee

under residual value guarantees;

«  the exercise price of purchase options if the lessee

is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

«  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an

option to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability (using the effective interest method) and by
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease

payments made.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

Lease liability is remeasured (and with a corresponding

adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

«  the lease term has changed or there is a significant
event or change in circumstances resulting in a
change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease

payments using revised discount rate.

« the lease payments change due to changes in an
index or rate or a change in expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate
(unless the lease payments change is due to a
change in a floating interest rate, in which case a

revised discount rate is used).

« a lease contract is modified and the lease
modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease, in which case the lease liability is remeasured
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the

modification.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)
Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement
of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made
at or before the commencement date and any initial
direct costs, less lease incentives received. Whenever the
Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and
remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is
located or restore the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a
provision is recognised and measured under HKAS 37
"Provision, Contingent Liabilities and a Contingent Assets”.
The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset,

unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
They are depreciated over the shorter period of lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset. The
depreciation starts at the commencement date of the

lease.

The Group applies HKAS 36 to determine whether a
right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any

identified impairment loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property and equipment

Property and equipment is stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes

in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an
item of property and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value, except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from
contracts with customers issued by the HKICPA.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at

FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the
net amount presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured
in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value

through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") and
FVTPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for

managing them.

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets subsequently at
amortised cost if both of the following conditions are

met:

«  the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order

to collect contractual cash flows; and

«  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are

subject to impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Amortised cost and effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating

interest income over the relevant period.

For financial assets other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. assets that are credit-
impaired on initial recognition), the effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
excluding expected credit losses, through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-
adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by
discounting the estimated future cash flows, including
expected credit losses, to the amortised cost of the debt

instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at
which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross
carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost
of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss

allowance.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Amortised cost and effective interest method (continued)
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortised cost and at FVTOCI. For financial assets other
than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the

financial asset.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, the Group recognises interest income by applying
the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from initial recognition. The
calculation does not revert to the gross basis even if the
credit risk of the financial asset subsequently improves so

that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is

included in the "Other income” line item (note 5).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to
designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI.
Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity
investment is held-for-trading or if it is contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business

combination.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve. The cumulative gain or
loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of
the equity investments, instead, they will be transferred

to retained earnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “Revenue” line

item in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL. Specifically:

« Investments in equity instruments are classified as at
FVTPL, unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is neither held-for-trading nor a
contingent consideration arising from a business

combination as at FVTOCI on initial recognition.

+  Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised
cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria are classified as at
FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet either
the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if
such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases. The Group has not designated any
debt instruments as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they
are not part of a designated hedging relationship. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset. Fair

value is determined in the manner described in note 37.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TEESFHE(E)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) eREE (&)
Financial assets (continued) B BEE (&)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset is held-for-trading if:

« it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling it in the near term; or

< on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has evidence of a recent

actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

« it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a
financial guarantee contract or a designated and

effective hedging instrument).

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses ("ECL") on accounts receivable, and financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The amount of
expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of

the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts
receivable from dealing in securities transactions,
provision of corporate finance and other advisory services
and contract assets. The expected credit losses on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions
at the reporting date, including time value of money

where appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when
there has a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increase in the likelihood or risk of

a default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost

or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly since initial recognition:

« an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’'s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

« existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor's ability

to meet its debt obligations;
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEFBE(E)

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) eREE (&)

Financial assets (continued) B BEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (continued) P EERE (&)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued) EERREZEME)

+ an actual or expected significant deterioration in the - BEBRAKEXEERIAHEET
operating results of the debtor; 1t s

significant increases in credit risk on other financial - E-EBAERMEREBRZEER
instruments of the same debtor; P 8 = 80

« an actual or expected significant adverse change in - BEBAZEE KLBEIRMNREE
the regulatory, economic, or technological B TEHREERAAEL  mE
environment of the debtor that results in a BMARBHISEBABTERREELZ
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its EERAIS

debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the NE L FT AR - e LN e A
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset AR (AR EFERNELEE
has increased significantly since initial recognition when MEREERREREN METHE
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, FEARRAHBEIR)  KXEH
(except for term loans where a longer period of “past BBREMBEEZEERRBTFHER
due” has been applied by the directors of the Company BREEN  BRIFEEESBERASE
in view of the nature of the operation of the business ERBERBERER -

and practice in managing the credit risk), unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A financial instrument is determined to have low credit
risk if i) the financial instrument has a low risk of default,
i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term, and
(iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers a
debt instrument to have low credit risk when the asset
has external credit rating of “investment grade” in
accordance with the globally understood definition or if
an external rating is not available, the asset has an
internal rating of “performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and there is

no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are

generally not recoverable:

«  when there is a breach of financial covenants by the

debtor; or

« information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due, (except for term loans where a
longer period of “past due” has been applied by the
directors of the Company in view of the nature of the
operation of the business and practice in managing the
credit risk) unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more

lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

+  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

. the lender of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession that the lender would not otherwise

consider;

+ it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

« the disappearance of an active market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised

in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the

reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted

at the original effective interest rate.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account, except for financial assets that are
measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and
does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial

asset in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds

received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss. In
addition, on derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Group has elected on initial
recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but

is transferred to retained earnings.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability

and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group
entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of

direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Company’'s own equity

instruments.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial
asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the
continuing involvement approach applies are measured
in accordance with the specific accounting policies set

out below.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised

costs

Financial liabilities that are not 1) contingent consideration
of an acquirer in a business combination, 2) held-for-
trading, or 3) designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the

amortised cost of a financial liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is

recognised in profit or loss.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both
the liability and conversion option components are
classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’'s own equity instruments is

classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest of similar non-convertible debts. The difference
between the gross proceeds of the issue of the
convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the loan notes into equity, is

included in equity (convertible bonds reserve).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Convertible bonds (continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components (continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible bonds reserve until the embedded option is
exercised. Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance stated in convertible bonds
reserve will be released to the accumulated losses. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon

conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised
over the period of the convertible bonds using the

effective interest method.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from (loss) profit before
tax as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income because of items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associate, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are

expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the year which the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount

of its assets and liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle current tax liabilities and

assets on a net basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to

the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms due to

application of the initial recognition exemption.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current tax and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity respectively.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESIBEKR(E)

(continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors, employees and other
eligible persons. Equity-settled share-based payments to
employees and others providing similar services are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at

the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share option reserve). The Group measures the
recharge based on the fair value of the equity
instruments of the Company at the grant date and
allocates that recharge to each subsidiary based on the
proportion of services received. At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting condition.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a

corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss. When the share
options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in the share option reserve will be transferred to share
capital. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve

will be transferred to accumulated losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESIBEKR(E)

(continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Shares awarded to directors and employees

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of shares awarded at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (awarded

shares compensation reserve).

When The VC Share Purchase Scheme Trust (“Trust”)
purchases the Company's shares from the open market,
the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presented as shares held for share
purchase scheme and deducted from total equity. No
gain or loss is recognised on the transactions of the
Company's own shares. When the Trust transfers the
Company's shares to grantees upon vesting, the related
costs of the granted shares vested are reversed from
shares held for share purchase scheme. Accordingly, the
related expense of the granted shares vested is reversed
from awarded shares compensation reserve. The
difference arising from such transfer is debited/credited

to accumulated losses.

When the share awards are forfeited before the vesting
date, the amount previously recognised in awarded
shares compensation reserve will be reversed

immediately in profit or loss.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group's share-
based payment transactions, leasing transactions, net
realisable value of inventories and value in use of
property and equipment for the purpose of impairment
assessment, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised
the fair value measurements into three levels, based on

the characteristics of inputs, as follow:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly

observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at
fair value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective

fair value measurement.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the

grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefits costs
Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
"MPF") are recognised as an expense when employees

have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion

of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after

deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities" carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that another HKFRS requires or

permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on property and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets (other
than impairment of goodwill set out in
accounting policy of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property and equipment, right-of-
use assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of CGU for which a reasonable and consistent

allocation basis can be identified

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication

that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates

of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on property and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets (other
than impairment of goodwill set out in
accounting policy of goodwill above)
(continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of CGUs,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of
CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of
CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of
its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment loss is

treated as a revaluation decrease under that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on property and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets (other
than impairment of goodwill set out in
accounting policy of goodwill above)
(continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or the
CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated using
the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to

make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and bank balances comprise cash (i.e. cash on hand and
demand deposits) and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents
are short-term (generally with original maturity of three
months or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash
equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-
term cash commitments rather for investment or other

purposes.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision

affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
directors of the Company have made in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
and disclosures made in the consolidated financial

statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Principal versus agent consideration

The Group is considered as an agent for its contract with
customers relating to the sales and marketing of digital
assets as the Group did not obtain the control over digital
assets before passing on to customers taking into
consideration indicators such as the Group is not
primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise and not
exposed to inventory risk. When the Group satisfies the
performance obligation, the Group recognises a
commission revenue in the amount it expects to be
entitled. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group recognised commission revenue relating to sales
and marketing of digital assets amounted to

HK$2,062,000.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Estimated impairment of accounts receivable

The impairment provisions for accounts receivable are
based on assumptions about ECL. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, bases on the
number of days that an individual receivable is
outstanding as well as the Group's historical experience
and forward-looking information at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in these assumptions and
estimates could materially affect the result of the
assessment and it may be necessary to make additional
impairment charge to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. As at 31
December 2022, the carrying amount of accounts
receivable from securities transactions, futures and
options contracts transactions, provision of corporate
finance and other advisory service, money lending
services and selling digital assets approximately
HK$167,218,000, nil, HK$3,770,000, HK$223,019,000
and HK$74,000 (2021: HK$177,316,000, HK$16,000,
HK$2,230,000, HK$202,729,000 and nil) respectively,
net of accumulated impairment losses of approximately
HK$7,873,000, nil, HK$2,945,000 HK$78,362,000 and
nil (2021: HK$6,773,000, nil, HK$1,650,000
HK$70,545,000 and nil) respectively.

4.

REe AR AT FIRES
ZEBRR (&)

fl 51 BB W BR SRR {E

EWEEFREREBHABBEBEERS
BZBRREREE ARERELZER

A% R 38 R 11l 30 5 M 1) P M R IR R (B
BHEUARASEBTERINERS

HRZATEEER Mk ERENE &
ABUR o It FRF LA HIRE(E AT ae
BREZETNGER  HERGREERR
H@iwﬂz)\%f’ﬁﬂj%ﬁﬂ\ﬁ@ CRZE
::¢+ A=+—H B5XRH52E
Hﬁzﬁfm -HERBES f@x%ZﬁéuﬁzﬁE
. }mﬁ %mﬂéﬁﬂmﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%zr
HﬂzﬁE- B RRTS < R W BR FRUA K S &
BHEEZBBERZEEMES RN A
167,218,000/ 7T ~ & ~ 3,770,000/ 7T
223,019,000/% 7t 274,000/ 7T (=&
— % 177,316,000/ 7t * 16,000/
7T~ 2,230,000/ 7T + 202,729,000/ 7T
k&) HRZ2FREEBEED LD
7,873,000/ 7T * & - 2,945,000/ T °
78,362,000 T R (Z T = — 4 :
6,773,000/ JT * #& ~ 1,650,000/% JT »
70,545,000/ 7T I &) o
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BHEZ
4.

E__Ft+_HA=1T—HLHFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2022, no deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of certain tax losses of
approximately HK$665,734,000 (2021:
HK$484,414,000) and deductible temporary difference
of approximately HK$6,302,000 (2021: HK$6,175,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisable of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where
the actual future profits generated are less than expected,
or changes in facts and circumstances which result in
revision of future taxation profits estimation, a material
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would
be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which

such a recognition takes place.

Estimated fair value of convertible bonds
investment and financial assets at FVTOCI

As described in note 37, the directors of the Company
use their judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique for financial instruments not quoted in an
active market. Valuation techniques commonly used by
market practitioners are applied. For convertible bonds
investment and financial assets at FVTOCI, assumptions
are made based on inputs not quoted in an active market
adjusted for specific features of the instrument. If the
inputs and estimates applied in the model are different,

the fair value of these financial instruments may change.

4.

REesH AR AT ARES
ZEERR (&)

gt
RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—8 "  TEH
#41665,734,0008 T (=T = — 4 :
484,414,000 7T) 2 & THIEEE R
A 0% B B Z 58 496,302,000 7T (=&
= —4% : 6,175,000/ 7T ) HERIELEF B
BE B FE RN P SRR EETER o R
EFIEE EE 2 A B3 ZEURR AR
BEH TR &N ERT R E
o mMEBEREEZ RGN DRTER -
HENEE RARNE M BE AR R ERT
E%Mﬁﬂﬁwza& BT RE AR E X

EERIBEE - MR EE®RZH
MR EREER

THRRESREREAFEHIIRRK

EREZERARER 2 MEAE
2 tht A TE

A 37 P - R AR EREREH
B3 3 AR B W E Y SRR R
2 R AR

B2 (R B « R TR B A
R D F P8R RIE R A 2 A K B
B2 MR RN L ERER DS
HRIE 2 40 N R (9 TR S 1
BE) (R B o MR Z A
BERGH TR ARSERRERLD

FEATLEL -
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BE—
4.

E__Ft+_HA=1T—HLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Estimated fair value of convertible bonds
investment and financial assets at FVTOCI
(continued)

The carrying amounts of the convertible bonds
investment and financial assets at FVTOCI as at 31
December 2022 were approximately HK$18,100,000
(2021: HK$8,964,000), and HK$22,592,000 (2021:
HK$23,173,000). The directors of the Company believe
that the chosen valuation techniques and assumptions
are appropriate in determining the fair value of these

financial instruments.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue principally arises from the (i) financial services
which consists of the provision of securities, futures and
options brokering and dealing, provision of margin
financing and money lending services, provision of
placing and underwriting services, mergers and
acquisitions services, and other corporate finance related
advisory services, (ii) proprietary trading, (iii) insurance
brokerage service; and (iv) sale and marketing of digital

assets.

4.

REe AR AT FIRES
ZEBRR (&)

ATHRRESRE - TEMBEER
RAFEIERREHMEEZEBAR
BEZHBEE 2 M2 FE (&)
AR EFREARIZAFENERRE
Hith 2 EHRARBREZHBEER =T
T+ A=+ —HZEEES D
/18,100,000 T (=& = — % :
8,964,000/ 7T.) 222,592,000/ 7T (=&
——% 123,173,000 70) - ARAEE
R FEGERTRBRAEE LS
CRMEBZATFEMSBRE -

W & H AU A
W EBRAOE RS - 2R EHEIE
HES HELBREELLEE  ®#H
RECBERNERY  REEERE
HIRTS : A HFEWBIRT - REM
m%mﬂé*ﬁf‘ﬁ%ﬁ??ﬁﬁx (ihBEE=E
% (iR ELRSE : RBRBE
Eﬁ%’%&?&% °
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REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued)

5.

5. W@mREMEA (&)

Continuing operations BERKEXK
2022 2021
—EC-CF T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FiET
Revenue from contracts with customers & /& B % 3§ & % A
within the scope of HKFRS 15 HISHEEANREFT
JYEHzWE
Disaggregated by major services lines BREZRBES
— Brokerage commission and other related —E &7 - #i8 L H#E
fees from dealing in securities, futures BHIEELEAS R
and options contracts HAhiERA R A 6,792 13,587
— Underwriting, sub-underwriting, placing -8B H"EH EBEER
and sub-placing commission DEEME 4,256 15,529
— Arrangement, referral, advisory and other — %8 - 7 - B &
fee income H &R A 7,001 7,430
— Insurance commission income — R A2 A - 10
— Sales and marketing of digital assets —BIBEEHE MR 2,062 6
20,111 36,562
Revenue from other sources kB H A RR z W=
— Interest income from clients —REREFPZFBEWA 52,920 53,708
— Dividend income from listed equity —REDBRREAFED
securities classified as financial assets RRAEEEREE 2
at FVTPL WBEE ETRA
Bz BREKA 250 284
53,170 53,992
73,281 90,554

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers by timing of recognition

BEEFITNEHNRERE 2HR
i [ & 2

2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TAET

Timing of revenue recognition Wy 35 5 By
At a point in time P — {8 B i B 13,488 29,248
Over time R —BREER 6,623 7,314
20,111 36,562
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5.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of
transaction price allocated to the performance obligations
that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) is
approximately HK$1,825,000 (2021: HK$2,677,000).
The amount represents revenue expected to be
recognised in the future from corporate finance and other
advisory service. The Group will recognise this revenue as
the service is provided, which is expected to occur over
the next 12 months (2021: nil). The above amounts do

not include variable consideration which is constrained.

W R A (&)
BRXZEIRERGB2ENEE

RZZE-_—_F+_A=+—H8  28=E
KBIT(XBORBIT) Z2BHNERLZ
R EAFEH H1,8250008 L (ZF
——4% :2,677,0008T) - N IAATE
HIRA AR ORTERR 2 1 R & e H At A ) R
B2 Was o NEE R IR MRS R R
s  EFEABRARKI2E AR L
TEZ—FE) LB IAIBER
A 2 FTERE -

Other income Hug A
2022 2021
—E-CF T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET

Continuing operations HEREXER

Interest income from authorised institutions 8 B 32 7] #4#% ~ F B U A 120 101
Other interest income E R B A 829 477
Total Interest income F B UL A 4878 949 578
Government grants (note) S A8 B (M a2) 2,192 200
Sundry income HIBUA 27 948
3,168 1,726

Note: During the year 31 December 2022, the Group
recognised government grants of approximately
HK$2,192,000 (2021: HK$200,000) in respect of
COVID-19-related subsidies, of which amounted to
HK$1,480,000 (2021: nil) related to Employment
support Scheme and HK$552,000 (2021: HK$110,000)
related to Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource
Management Job Creation Scheme provided by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region under the Anti-Epidemic Fund. There are no
unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attached to
the receipts of those subsidies.

Wi BEZTZZF+=ZA=+—H1
F 0 AN E BCOVID-194H B ## B)
S HRBT/EEBN42,192,000/8 T (=
T~ — 4 :200,0008x) c £
1,480,000/ L (Z 2= —4F : #&) W
N [R5t %] 51 &) %552,0005% 7T (=
T - —4:110,00087T) FREB
BATHREBRFZHENEES T
CEBANEREEESEERM
TE RS E  WERER
MR R MR AEIE -
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BHEZ
6.

E__Ft+_HA=1T—HLHFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating businesses are organised and
managed separately, according to the nature of products
and services provided, with each segment representing a
strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different

from those of the other operating segments.

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which

are organised by different business lines.

Information reported to the Group’s Executive Committee,
being the chief operating decision maker ("CODM"), for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment is prepared on this basis. The Group has
identified the following six reportable segments under

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments as follows:

(i) the brokerage and financing segment engages in
securities, futures and options brokering and dealing,
provision of margin financing and money lending,

and placing and underwriting services;

(i) the corporate finance and other advisory services
segment engages in provision of corporate financial

advisory services and company secretarial services;

(i) the asset management segment engages in provision

of asset management services;

REBRKEXEBIRARHEE R LR
BeHEoREMNREE S088—
EREE R EL - HiR 2 B m MR
FrE ¥ 2 A KRRz B® - A RRE
fth i & o & o

N>

AREBUEBOBERELERR LT
FIRIEER DA

AASERTEES (AEBEERE
HE(XBEEBRRED)BEBRZERT
ARERD B ERRTE - Wik il E
BEE - NEEEREEBVHRELE
AlEssR & n I EE T AMEEAET
wEFEBWT -

() BREMBEXHOHBREES - H
ENBELNER  RHERES
BEMKE - AREE B HERY

(i) EEBMENMEMBREREES DB
TERHCEREBERSE LA A
WE R

(i) BECHERSBNERHEEE
BR
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(iv) the insurance brokerage segment engages in

provision of insurance brokerage services;

(v) the proprietary trading segment engages in trading

7 EER (F)
(v) REEREBHBRERHURBE
IR

(v) B2EEXBOBUERAES

of equity securities, debt securities and other BEHEEFLEMMEREREE &

financial products; and

(i) BISEEREREREB NN EE
HEBEBETFTVRREBBEEL
HERERMBRIAS

(vi) the sales and marketing of digital assets segment
engages mainly in earning commissions from
facilitating the sale and marketing of digital assets in
electronic platform.

HERDHBEREEMZIEH DR

An operating segment regarding the sale and distribution

of healthcare products was discontinued during the year HE_ZT-_—F+-HA=+—H JJ:EFZT
ended 31 December 2021. The segment information BRIERE - KM ER 2D HERT
reported in this note did not include any amounts for this BRENIBACRIEREEBEES 2 EM
discontinued operation, which were described in more S5 MR FE 130 F AR o

detail in Note 13.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. TEEHR (&)
The following tables presented revenue and results of TREJNBE_T_—_FR-_T_—F
these reportable and operating segments for the years TZA=T—BLEFEZFATHRERE
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. BN WS R EEER
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-S--_F+-A=1t—-HLEE
Corporate
finance
Brokerage  and other
and  advisory Asset Insurance  Proprietary Digital  Segment
Continuing operations RREBEEN financing ~ services management  brokerage trading assets total ~ Eliminations Total
i E

BER RAKER E R BE HREE
BEXE  REXE EERR  GERR  ERRR 3 L E L it
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO0O  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK§000
tEn  TEr  TEx  TRR  TEr  TEx  TEx  TEr  TEX

Segment revene AB%R 63,968 7,001 - - 250 2,062 73,281 - 7381
Infra-segment sales AHRHER - 8 - - - - 782 (18)) -
63,968 7,183 - - 250 2,062 74,063 (782) 73,281
Segment profit (loss) AN (B8 2,948 3115)  (1710) (502)  (113725)  (8,198)  (164362) - (164362)
Unallocated administrative costs & A BT BALA (23,440)
Fair value change of financel AT EFIEREEEE
assets at FVTPL REZHBEEL
INEEEE) 5,040
Gain on acquiston of financial ~ REHAFEFIERER
assets at FUTPL AEREZHRERY
i 500
Share of proft of an associate & A 7 2 57 %

Loss before tax (continuing R A8
operations) (FEEZEE) (178,166)




VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRERAA 193
Annual Report 2022 &3}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B 1SR R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__Ft+_HA=1T—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. THEFR (&)
Year ended 31 December 2022 (continued) BE_Z-_—_F+-F=+—HLFE
(%)
Other segment information H fth 2 7 & B
Corporate
finance
Brokerage  and other
and  advisory Asset Insurance Proprietary Digital ~ Segment

Continuing operations REREER financing ~ services management  brokerage trading assets total  Adjustments Total

bERE

BER RAKER BE Rl BE BERE
RERE RERE EERE  HERR RAERR 3 L L it
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO000  HKS00
tEn  TEr  TEn TR TR TEx  TEn  TEr  TEX

(note)
()

Amounts included in the meastre 3 €7 PEEHA

of segment profit o loss: LEE:
Net relised and unrealised FIEERYHERL

loss on financial assets BRERAR

held-ortrading B fﬁr%ﬁ - - - - - mm - I
Interest income from authorised ~ RERTEEZ

institutions HEWA (84) ) 6] - - - (109) m (120)
Stff costs BIfA 0439 4991 150 509 S I NeT W 43R
Commission expenses BefER 3,003 - - - 15 - 3,018 1 3019
Deprecition of property NERFERE

and equipment 58 330 - - - 61 449 569 1018
Impairment loss on accounts EUER

feceivable, net HEBESE 9,641 1,295 - - - - 1093 (724) 10212
Finance costs BERA 33,168 - - -4 - W (M43) 323
Amounts regularly provided to the  EEREFAEFAS

Group's Bxecutive Commitee B SBEHEAH

but notincluded in the measure ~ [BARK T K3t )\Z

of segment proft or loss: 28
Addiions to non-current assets ~ FRHAEFE 88 115 - - - - 203 124 0
Reversal of impairment loss EfbREEZ

on other receivables HEFERE - - - - - - - (G13) (1)
Depreciaton of ightofuse assets  EREAES & - - - - - - - 7,055 7055
Interest expenses on lease EEERZ

ebiites HERX - - - - - - - 628 628

Income tax expenses (credtt) FERRT (5%) 31 - - - - - 31 (105) (14)
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6. 7EEHR (&)

Year ended 31 December 2021 BE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HILFE
Corporate
finance
Brokerage  and other
and  advisory Asset Insurance Proprietary Digital  Segment
Continuing operations BEBEER financing ~ senvices management  brokerage  trading assets totel  Eliminations Total
bERE
B8R RELER -1 B RE  HELE
REEE  BEER  EEER Qg% EEER B AR Bl Ch
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK§'000 HK§'000
TR TR TEn TER TR TER TER TR TR
Segment revenue AEhE 82,824 7430 - 10 284 6 90,554 - 90,554
Intra-segment sales AHHHER - 333 - - - - 333 (3332) -
82,824 10,762 - 10 284 6 93,886 (33%2) 90,554
Segment proft (o5o) At (58) 50,889 455 (1,629) (146) 31,695 (3174 7749 - T7490
Unllocated administrative costs & AEA A (38351)
Fair value change of financiel ~ HAFEFIERERE
assets at FUTPL BREZYHERL
AYEZY 29
Share of profit of an associate ~ AEBERE 2R 194
Proft before tax (continuing BB AT
operations) (REEEEE) 39,632
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BE—
6.

T+ A=1+—HILFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER (E])
Year ended 31 December 2021 (continued) BHE_Z-—F+-A=1+—HILFE (&)
Other segment information Hit 5 & H
Corporate
finance
Brokerage  and other
and  advisory Asset Insurance  Proprietary Digital  Segment
Continuing operations REOEER financing ~ services management  brokerage trading assets total ~ Adjustments Total
bERE
SRR RELER 8E B BE  HEEE
RERH  REER  EEER  GR%¥R  EERR B AR Bl Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TEn TR TR TR TEn TER TR
(note)
(W)
Amounts included n the measure 5 E 5 HERRHAZ
of segment proft or loss: 2E:
Net realised and unrealised gain -~ FIEEEBHEE LR
on financial assets held-for- FRRAERNER
trading g - (20) - - (328%) - (3285) - (328%)
Interest income fiom authorised KA ATEEZF|E
insttutions BA (100) - - - - - (100) 0] (101)
Staff costs ETNE 8,573 6,510 1,554 755 - 459 17,851 21,624 39475
Commission expenses EERb 5,668 - - - 34 - 5,702 2 5,704
Depreciation of property and ESE Lz
equipment 202 68 1 - - - m 2,268 2,539
Impaiment loss on (teversel of YRR 2B EEE
impaiment loss) accounts (REEEEE)FE
receivable, net 2,705 (398) - - - - 2,307 1,017 3324
Finance costs BENA 33,787 - - - 1,634 - 35421 (33,146) 2275
Amounts regulary provided to e THRETEEEH
Group's Executive Commitee ZEERHENTE
but ot incuded in the measure ~ BHT A2 28
of segment profit or loss:
Addiions to non-curent assets  FETHEERE 49 1445 - - - 203 1697 17008 18705
Impairment loss on other LS 2 RE
recelvables B - (1,016) - - - - (1,016) 1,145 129
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  FREEENE - - - - - - - 7,284 7,84
Interest expenses on lease EERELZHIE
liiltes X - - - - - - - 30 30
Income tax expenses FERAR 9,59 - - - - - 9,594 1,265 10,859
Note:Adjustments include the unallocated administrative costs Hiat - HE Iﬁﬁ?z% ZRE (=
that are not directly allocated to the six (2021: six) T — ¢ )i%%ﬁﬁBZﬂi’ﬁ\

operating segments and also represent the intra-group

sales, finance costs and management fee which are

eliminated at consolidation.

EETTEAZEZK : ﬁt@l\%&ﬁ%ﬁ’s\%ﬁ\éf\
ERYEH2EEBAARREERE
BMEXKARERE -

195



196

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRER DT

Annual Report 2022 &£#§

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Z& MR RM

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BHEZ
6.

E__Ft+_HA=1T—HLHFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group's accounting policies described in
note 3. Segment profit or loss represents the profit
earned by/loss from each segment, before the deduction
of unallocated administrative costs, fair value change of
financial assets at FVTPL and share of profit of an
associate. This is the measure reported to the Group's
Executive Committee for the purposes of resource

allocation and performance assessment.

None (2021: one) of the customers accounted for 10%
or more of the Group's revenue for the year ended 31
December 2022. The Group's operations are mainly
located in Hong Kong (place of domicile). The Group's
revenue from external customers is mainly derived from
Hong Kong for 2022. Almost all of its non-current assets
and other than financial instruments are attributed to the

operations in Hong Kong.

Segment assets and liabilities are not presented as they
are not regularly provided to the Group's Executive

Committee.

DEER (E)
BEREDE 2 FETRRBEM I 2
$ EgitlRE—H - oHEREED
FTERER 2@ A B 2 518 - SR 30
ﬁ%%ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬂwﬁK B RAFEYERERE
BafRE VBEEZ A TFEES R
SR AR ZEF o TR K EH
TZEgWMEAHIREERRTERE
2 EAE o

HE_ZT_—_F+_-_A=+—HItHF
B UWE(ZZE=Z—F: —F)BFLPER
%H&z*m%@i%i%ﬁﬁz%‘%ﬁ
EERES (FHM) -RZT==
FrAEENIFEFPZRZERZREE
B AEEALT2AERDEE (K
MEBIINHEEBELERA -

HROHEERABLEEMERTA
SEHRTERES  RUEZIIBMER -
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7. OTHER (LOSSES) GAINS 7. Hith (B8 s
Continuing operations RERKEXK
2022 2021
—=E=-= T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Loss on disposal of property and equipment &% K& E 2 EIE - (47)
Net exchange (loss) gain EH (BR) ks #58 (135) 76
Gain on acquisition of financial assets at WA FEY R R
FVTPL EE=REREBEZHBE
B2 W 9,040 -
Fair value change of financial assets at BATEINRERERRE
FVTPL BREZMBEEZ AT
BEH 500 299
Net realised and unrealised (loss) gain on #H{EEEYPKEEZ
financial assets held-for-trading E#BRARER (BE)
Wz R (171,711) 32,856
(162,306) 33,184
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8. STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 8. BEIRA(BIEEEMS)
EMOLUMENTS)
Continuing operations BEKEXY
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Staff commission BETHe 2,216 3,118
Salaries and wages HFehIE 36,787 32,542
Termination benefit RILEBRNE 65 59
Staff welfare 8 TR 2,604 1,876
Recruitment costs B EE A AR 43 147
Reversal of provision of long service RERB S FR
payment/annual leave benefits wBANBEzEE - (104)
Retirement benefits scheme contributions & k4@ 5T & £ 3% 833 873
Discretionary and performance related BIERREERS R
incentive payments and provision of MmN & B E
gratuity 514 964
43,062 39,475
The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund REERITR-_ZZ-—F+ZARE(RE
Scheme (the "MPF Scheme") established under the GIEEA A N DR Svid: & /N
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in Bastdl ([eEestEll) - 5@t E
December 2001. The assets of which are held in ZEEHREEERESYHAFER -

separate trustee-administered funds.

Both the Group and the employees contribute a fixed AEBREEHREBESF S ZEER S
percentage of the relevant payroll to the MPF Scheme. Lo iE st 8l - XREEZ R L
The contribution by the Group is capped at HK$1,500 RAESREES A1,5008 T #HEATS

per employee per month and is expensed as incurred. REBEERTIER °
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BE_T_—_F+-_A=1+—HILFE

9.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9. EXME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 9 (2021: ENREMAARN (ZE=—F:9
9) directors of the Company were as follows: )EFEZMEMT
Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-B-_F+-A=1+-HLEE
Salaries Retirement
and benefits
other scheme Total
Fees benefits  contribution  emoluments
HeR RNEH
ne HitE R AR “Me
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Executive Directors HTES
Fu Yiu Man, Peter X - 2,040 18 2,058
Wong Kam Fat, Tony (note 5) IR (M5E5) 840 - - 840
Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo fezhishin - 960 18 978
Li Cindy Chen R 1,200 - - 1,200
Zhang Nu (note 4) ®E (fzt4) 1,080 - - 1,080
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Wong Chung Kin, Quentin g/ 216 - - 216
Wong Kam Choi, Kerry, M HIRE 0 wH
(note 6) (Hisz6) 62 - - 62
Siu Miu Man, Simon, H B mH 216 - - 216
Au Tin Fung, Edmund (note 7) BEHE(Hit7) 110 - - 110
3,724 3,000 36 6,760
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9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 9. EEM<E (&)

Year ended 31 December 2021
BE-S--F+-A=T-HLEE

Salaries Retirement
and benefits
other scheme Total
Fees benefits contribution emoluments
He R RINER
e Efiad AR gme
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER FAT
Executive Directors BITES
Fu Yiu Man, Peter X - 2,040 18 2,058
Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo 8L - 960 18 978
Tang Hao (note 1) BE(Wi1) 474 - - 474
Cheng Tak Yiu, Simon (note 2) PR i) 413 - - 413
Li Cindy Chen (note 3) FR(HH3) 313 - - 313
Zhang Nu (note 4) RE(ffi#4) 180 - - 180
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Wong Chung Kin, Quentin BINE 216 - - 216
Wong Kam Choi, Kerry, BRA - wH 216 - - 216
Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH B 216 - - 216
2,028 3,000 36 5,064
Notes: i -
1. Ms. Tang Hao was resigned with effect from 24 May 2021. . EEEER_FT-_-—FRA-+MA
BT -

2. Mr. Cheng Tak Yiu, Simon was appointed as Executive 2. BEREER_T-_-—F—HF=+H
Director of the Company with effect from 20 January 2021 REZERARINTEEFINR_-F
and resigned with effective from 24 May 2021. Z—FRAZT B REE-

3. Ms. Li Cindy Chen was appointed as Executive Director of 3. FREAIRZZEZ—FAAZ++AH
the Company with effect from 27 September 2021. BEZEARRAMITES -

4. Mr. Zhang Nu was appointed as Executive Director of the 4., REEAR-_FT_-—F+—-A—B#E
Company with effect from 1 November 2021. BEERRRABHITES -

5. Mr. Wong Kam Fat, Tony was appointed as Vice Chairman 5. ERBA4AR-_T-_—_EmWA+AE
and Executive Director of the Company with effect from 19 REZER/ARFEIZFERATES
April 2022.

6. Mr. Wong Kam Choi, Kerry, mH was resigned as 6. EWMHEE WHRZZTZZ_FMA M
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company with REFERRBBIIFNITES -
effect from 14 April 2022.

7. Mr. Au Tin Fung, Edmund was appointed as Independent 7. BHEXERZ-_Z-__FXA=ZTAN
Non-executive Director of the Company with effect from REEZERARBBYIFNTES -

28 June 2022.
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9. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Aggregate emoluments paid
to or receivable by directors
in respect of their services as
directors, whether of the
Company or its subsidiaries

undertaking

9. EEME (R)

Aggregate emoluments paid
to or receivable by directors in
respect of their other services in
connection with the management
of affairs of the Company or its

subsidiaries undertaking Total

ESRAREEEAQAEHR

EEHREZESRE EEFBE2HMEREE (THER
(FHRERADAREMNER ) ARRSEMEARE)
BEXARNER M EEE EXNSERZMEEE #t
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F —E_-= —E - —4F —E_-C —ET -4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET FER THET TER FET
3,724 2,028 3,036 3,036 6,760 5,064

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no
ordinary shares were awarded to the directors of the
Company under share incentive award schemes in
respect of their services provided to the Group. Further

details of which are set out in note 34.

BHE_ZTZ_—_HR-_FT-_—F+_H
=T—BIEFER  HEREKDEE
SEMARFEEFRAEERMZ RS
AR EREEER - FHE —FFEH
FMEEE34 ©
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR 10 BV R HEERSREERE

MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, one (2021: one) was the director of the
Company whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures in note 9. The emoluments of the remaining

four (2021: four) individuals were as follows:

[k

AEBAUKSHFMALS  —R (=
T_—F  —R)RARAEST HM
TEMERMFI - R THR(ZT - —
FrOB)ALTZHESEHWT

2022 2021

—=E-= —ET-—%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FET

Salaries and other benefits s LEMmEF 6,492 6,443
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IR AT B R 72 72
6,564 6,515
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BE-_E-—F+-_A=+—HItEE

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES' AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Other than the emoluments of directors disclosed in note
9, the emoluments of the highest paid employee fell

within the following bands:

10. B U B EHFEERSREEE
B < (&)
BRSO BEBEEE 2B S
EEZMEN T THE :

== #

Number of individuals

A
2022 2021
—=E-= T —%F
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7T £2,000,000/% 7T 4 4

The emoluments of key management personnel of the
Group, other than directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in note 9, are included in note
39.

The emoluments of senior management included above

fell within the following band:

AEBZIBERABZHE (TR
ARRES FFEZMEC RMEF
BER) MMM EE39

EXmBRzeREREBZMENFT
5 EE -

Number of individuals

A8
2022 2021
—E=-= —E %
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T £2,000,0007% 7T 1 1

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
no emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
the directors of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals of the Group as inducements to join or upon

joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of office.

HEZZ-_—_FR-FT=-_—F+=A
=+—RHLEFEAR  ARBAWEAARD
REFSASEERUESHFATIAR
FERERB S - YERINEEZAR S E SR AN
B2 RENSE R BB (E -
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11. FINANCE COSTS 11. BE KA
Continuing operations BERKEXK
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Interests on: INTEREZHE :
Convertible bonds issued (note 37) BBITAIRRES (F:231) 634 1,422
Lease liabilities (note 22) HEBEHM722) 628 320
Margin loan payables B RE S E R 1,974 533
3,236 2,275
12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSES 12. RSH (%)X
2022 2021
—EC-CF T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Continuing operations FEREET
Current tax: BVEAR I8
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBMEH - 5371
Under provision in prior year BEFEEBTR
Hong Kong Profits Tax FBMEFH 31 4,223
Deferred tax (note 30) EIEFLIE (H7730) (105) 1,265

(74) 10,859
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12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSES (continued)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates of Hong Kong
Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of profits of qualifying
corporation will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above
HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. Hong Kong Profits
tax of the qualified entity of the Group is calculated in
accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.
The profits of other Group entities in Hong Kong not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will

continue to be taxed at the flat rate of 16.5%.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT Law") and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of
the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008
onwards. No provision for Enterprise Income Tax has
been made as the subsidiaries in the PRC have no

assessable profits for both years.

Pursuant to the rules and regulation of the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income

tax in this jurisdiction.

12. FRE8 (B %) X (&)

BEEBNESHIMEREGE &8
1% % B #2,000,0007% 7T 3% F 2 L R B
8.25% -+ 8 352,000,0007% T ia F| 2
ER165% REEETEERERZ
EANGEREFEH MR EGE:
B AEEBHEMTAFANESHRRHE
HEEREAERAEERE X
16.5%% 7 °

BEREAREMBE Z S EMERE
(TEMBBED REEMBBEER
GOl FEMBARZHEE=ZZN
F—A—BEABE25% - ARFEFEBER
AR MEFEEEERTRFN - KNEE
A 4% B 10 3PS B VR H B -

REXRBRZES ((RBRXES])
BRI RRG - NE BB AN L RAE
B2 EAAFH -
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12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSES (continued)

The tax (credit) expenses can be reconciled to (loss)

profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: ™~

12. FrS % (B %) B ()
BLE (%) X R4 18
A 2 B BLAT (5 18) 3 ) ¥ AR o

m R EAME

2022 2021
—=E-= T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Continuing operations REBREXER
(Loss) profit before tax BRBEAT (BB & (178,166) 39,632
Calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 32 & B RS E16.5%
16.5% (2021: 16.5%) —T=—%F :16.5%)
itE (29,397) 6,539
Tax effect of share of profit of an associate 7 (R B & A Fl)& # 2
B & (16) (32)
Tax effect of income not taxable for MBIEM E BAHTR A
tax purpose LB E (1,995) (8,539)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for BBIEm S AR FET
tax purpose 2GR E 1,364 2,694
Under provision in respect of BEFERBTR
prior year 31 4,223
Tax effect of deductible temporary REER 2 AT IR R = 5
difference not recognised RGBT E 21 146
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax BRANERER  HIEEE
losses (776) (5,959)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERVIEEE L HHEE 30,694 11,952
Effect of two-tiered profits tax rates regime ~ F{S B M A& ) 2 2 & - (165)
Tax (credit) expenses for the year FEBBEER) A (74) 10,859
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BE—
13.

E__Ft+_HA=1T—HLFE
DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 9 December 2021, the Company entered into a sales
and purchase agreement with an independent third party
to dispose of its wholly owned subsidiary, VC Global
Investments Limited, (“VC Global"). Through this disposal,
51% directly held subsidiary by VC Global and its 51%
indirectly held subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Disposal Group”) were also disposed of accordingly, at a
cash consideration of HK$7,000,000. The Disposal Group
carried out all of the Group's sales and distribution of
healthcare products segment which represented a
separate major line of business of the Group. As a result,
it has been presented as a discontinued operation in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2021. The disposal was completed on 24 December
2021, on which date control of the Disposal Group was

passed to the acquirer.

The loss for the period from the discontinued operation

was analysed as follows:

Loss of sale and distribution of healthcare
products for the period E1a
Loss on disposal of sales and distribution of

healthcare products segment (note 38)

13. ERUEREXRH

RZB-_—F+ZANA ARFEF
NEZREVEBERE  NHEHZ2E
Bf B ‘2 RIVC Global Investments Limited
([VC Global ) - i®i@ 1t & - VC Global
HEFAES 1R 2 B AR R EMEE
FHAESIVRER ZWE AR (B IHE
SR HEEE PREKE
7,000,000/8 7T ° A E Z 3HE k7 #H
EERREMOTE2HBHALEEEL
E HEHRAKEE BEUCFEEHK
o BEmNI EERBE_ZTZ $
TZA=t+—BIEFEZGFEREER
R EBAREINNABEK LS %W
ERAEER _Z-_—F+-_A=-+MA
R M ESRE 2 ZEHIENF B ER
ZUEES -

EREREEBZHABEINOT

1/1/2021 —
24/12/2021
—E-—%F
—H—B=%
—E %
+ZAZ=+mMA
HK$'000

TETT

HERDHBEREEM BN
(21,872)
HEHERSHBERBEERD B

&8 (H17738) (107)

(21,979)
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

The results of the sales and distribution of health care

products for the period from 1 January 2021 to 24

13. ERIERE XK (8)
RZE-_—F—A—HEZE=-_—F
T AT NEHBHEEE R HEER

December 2021 were as follows: BERZEENT :
1/1/2021 -
24/12/2021
—E-—4F
—A—B8%
- —%F
+TZAZ+mAH
HK$'000
FAET
Revenue Wz 53
Cost of sales 5 & AR (53)
Gross profit EH -
Other income H A 99
Impairment on other receivables H b FE W SR IE 2 R B (7,403)
Other operating expenses Hih &M (9,793)
Fair value change of derivatives financial assets $TEM & E 2 A FEE (4,735)
Finance costs B & B AR (25)
Loss before tax Bk %1 A &5 18 (21,857)
Income tax expenses Frisfif < (15)
Loss for the period BN g 18 (21,872)
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

Loss for the period from discontinued operation had

been arrived at after charging:

Amount of inventories recognised as an expense
Staff costs — salaries, allowances, other benefits

and contributions to retirement benefits

scheme

Depreciation of plant and equipment

BRARAXZFESR

BRE &R

ME NMREITE

BERIEREXEK (&)
ERIEEEEB 2 ANEBEEENR T
BRI

1/1/2021 -
24/12/2021
—ET -4
—HA—B=&
- —%F
TZ-AZ-+mA
HK$'000
FHET
53

HiEH &
2,884
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 13. BRI REEK (F)

The information on cash flows incurred by the

discontinued operation is as follows:

AMERHEEEBHRELZRLRNE
ZERMT :

1/1/2021 —
24/12/2021
—ET - —4F
—H—B=%
—E %
+ZAZ=+mMA
HK$'000

TET

Net cash used in operating activities KEEBFARS FE (8,253)

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash from financing activities

REGESMARESFHE (53)

MERBAGREFRE 5516

No tax deduction arose on loss on disposal of the

discontinued operation.

The carrying amounts of the total assets and liabilities of
the discontinued operation at the date of disposal are

disclosed in note 38.

HEDRIEREERH 2 BRI &S KM
TRHR,

ERIEREEBRHERMZREER
HABZERMENRKEI8HKE -
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14.

15.

211

(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 14. £E (BF1E) &R
(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at after FEUEE) " N&NKR T &EEEZ
charging: i
Continuing operations BERKEXK
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Included in other operating expenses: BERAEMEERE
Auditor's remuneration Z ER A Bl & 1,707 1,300
Depreciation of property and equipment MEREZETE 1,018 2,539
Depreciation for right-of-use assets FREEENE 7,055 7,284
Entertainment and travel expenses (mainly FEBMZ RIS (X EH %
incurred for business development) BEEMES) 7,902 6,095
DIVIDENDS 15. RE
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended TERRNEBE T -__F+-_A=+—H
31 December 2022, nor has any dividend been IFFEXNREREMBRE - TEB R
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2021: EHRERBRTARE (ZEZ—F:

nil). ") -
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16. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. Bk (1) 2R
From continuing and discontinued operations BERCRIEREXER
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings RAGEAEANBERBERORIEREE
per share from continuing and discontinued operations BzBRERLES (BB BN IR
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on BIATEEFE :

the following data:

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
(Loss) earnings (B8 &R
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of basic and 5T & &I E AN I # 58
diluted (loss) earnings per share (E#E)BAMAZ
(E18) &7 (178,091) 15,188
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
'000 ‘000
TR T &
Number of shares R4 88
Weighted average number of ordinary A ETREAR (E18)
shares for the purpose of basic (loss) BN PR 2 & R AR
earnings per share T8 2,078,602 1,867,704
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BE#E L@ 2 £
— Share options — BB AE - 17,512
Weighted average number of ordinary Mt E GRS (B18)
shares for the purpose of diluted B TRz SRRk

(loss) earnings per share T8 2,078,602 1,885,216




VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRERAA
Annual Report 2022 &3}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B 1SR R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T_—_F+-_A=1+—HILFE

16. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings
per share from continuing operations attributable to the

owners of the Company is based on the following data:

16. B (BE) BF (&)

e LS
ARTREAE I EEE R 2 ER
EAREE (5 H) AR TR BT K
B -

Earnings figures are calculated as follows: BB FAHENT :
2022 2021
—E_-= —E -4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx FAET
(Restated)
(fE7))
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to the ZAN2Q R A A FE 15 F[Z
owners of the Company (E518) &7 (178,091) 15,188
Add: Loss for the year from discontinued m:BERIERERKEZ
operation FEEE - 13,591
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of basic and FiETEHBEKEEBK 2 &
diluted (loss) earnings per share from A B AR K e (B8 )
continuing operation BFFAZ (BE)&BF (178,091) 28,779

The denominators used are the same as those detailed

above for both basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share.

From discontinued operation

As at 31 December 2021, basic loss for the discontinued
operation is HKO.73 cents per share and diluted loss per
share for the discontinued operation is HKO.72 cents per
share, based on the loss for the year from the
discontinued operation of approximately HK$13,591,000
and the denominators detailed above for both basic and

diluted earnings per share.

BREANESE (BER) BB
BEE FRARR o

ERIEREER
RZZEZ—F+ZA=+—08 ' KEK
I &% 2 FEEHEL13,591,000/8
TREREAREERANMA 2 Fitsy
BitE  BERIEREEBZBRERE
BAERO7IEN  MERELEER
2 BREEEBAIAEAR0.728 -
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BHEZ
16.

17.

Z__F+_RA=+—HILEE
(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
From discontinued operations (continued)

The computation of diluted loss per share does not
assume the conversion of the Company's outstanding
convertible bonds since their exercise would result in a
decrease in loss per share (2021: increase in earnings
per share) for the year ended 31 December 2022. The
computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the conversion of the Company's options since their
exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share for

the year ended 31 December 2022.

16.

BR(EE) BF (&)
BRIEREEE (E)

EERBEEEBRITERKEARAR
Laﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬂﬂ MK ATEERE
MegERBE_ZT__F+_A
ES+-HEFEZEREBBERD (ZF
——F - HRAEFEM - AEERE
EEERTEREKAA 72%1&%8%
k- FAITEERREMNEEEHEEC
::¢+:H:+—E¢¢F‘§*Zﬁxﬁéﬁ
BRD o

GOODWILL 17. 58
2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET

Carrying value FREE
As at 1 January and 31 December R—A—B K

+ZA=+—8H 2,016 2,016
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out RETRERH ‘JIF‘?;EE“HEI—

above has been allocated to one CGU, comprising a
subsidiary in the provision of insurance brokerage

services.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
management of the Company determines that there is no

impairment on goodwill.

Em—ERERRECRBE KB
HRZREELEM (Téifﬁfﬁﬁiﬁ
) A e

REBEE_ZE-_—_FR-_ZFT-_—F+=-A
“t+—HIFEE ARAREEEBEETEYN
2 R E o
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BE-_E-—F+-_A=+—HItEE
18. TRADING RIGHTS 18. X5 #
HK$'000
FAT
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 and WZE-_—4—HA—H0-
1 January 2022 —E-—F+ZA=+—8K
—FE-—F—H—H 5,066
Write-off 181 85
At 31 December 2022 RZZEZZF+-HA=+—H (868)
4,198
Amortisation B
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 and RZ_E_—F—HA—H8-
1 January 2022 —E-—F+ZA=+—HEK
—E-—F—F—H 5,066
Write-off 181 &5
At 31 December 2022 RZZEZ=ZF+=-—A=+—H (868)
4,198
Carrying values IREE
At 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022 RZEFEZ—F+ZA=+—H8BK
—E-_—_F+-_A=+—H -

Trading rights are amortised over 10 years from 6 March
2000, the effective date of the merger of the Stock
Exchange, HKFE and Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited ("HKSCC").

VC Futures Limited, a subsidiary of the Company has
revoked its license for dealing futures contract under
section 195(1)(d) of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance during the year ended 31 December 2022

and the related trading rights was written off accordingly.

RSB = TEEE=ANA (BRH
EBBMIAREETRETARAR
(EBEE)) AR E) D TEBH -

=

AAFZHBARERBIHEBRAALE
RBE_T__F+_A=+—HILF
ERBEZESRBEGANE1950)() K
7SR HH AR WX GIEER - TR
2 R 5 RETNE e EE o

Ed=1
ga
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19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. Htt L EE
HK$'000
FHET
Cost DN
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, RN-ZE-—F—H—H -
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 —E_—Ff+ZA=+—8"
“E--F-A-BR
—E__HF+-A=+—H 1,538
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, R—FE-_—F—H—H"
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 —E--F+-A=+—8H"
T HF-A—AkK
—E-_H+-"A=1+—H 292
Carrying values FREE
At 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022 RZZEZ—F+ZA=+—HK
—E-_H+-A=1+—H 1,246
Other intangible assets represent club memberships with HBEERABRTEAIEAFHZ
indefinite useful lives and are tested for impairment ERERE WARTFEREERNRAE
annually by comparing their carrying amounts with their ERF R HEAREE & AU e & 5 A
recoverable amounts based on fair value less costs to ETREAR A TFERAAIHERNMT
sell. The fair value is determined using an observable BIOHMERHERETE  REE—
market price or recent market transaction price and no T —E-_—F+-_A=+—H
indication of impairment was noted during the years LEFEATEBRAETR -

ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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—E-—_F+-A=+—HILEFE
20. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 20. MERFHE
Furniture, Computer
Leasehold fixtures and equipment Motor
improvements equipment  and software vehicles Total
B -£BR  BHERHER
HEMERE # B4 RE -y
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR FAT TR TR THET
Cost s
At 1 January 2021 W-2--F—-F—H 5,688 4,678 7,301 1911 19,578
Additions NE 195 175 253 1,389 2,012
Write-off ik - (1072) (1732) - (2,804)
Disposal e - (363) (25) - (388)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBELA - - (86) - (86)
At 31 December 2021 R_F=-%
+-A=1+-H 5,883 3418 5711 3,300 18,312
Additions hE - 93 234 - 327
Write-off A - (5) - - (5)
Realignment EHRIE - (4) (14) - (18)
At 31 December 2022 RZB-Z%
+-A=+-H 5,883 3,502 5931 3,300 18,616
Depreciation ik
At 1 January 2021 R-E-—£-A-H 4014 3927 7,002 992 15,935
Charge for the year ERHET 1723 304 200 317 2,544
Write-off s - (1,072) (1,732) - (2,804)
Disposal LE - (325) (12) - (337)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAF - - ™) - )
At 31 December 2021 RZB--%
+-A=+-H 5737 2,834 5451 1,309 15,331
Charge for the year ERNRX 110 260 158 490 1,018
Write-off ik - (5) - - (5)
Realignment BHRE - (1 Q) - 3)
At 31 December 2022 W-Z-ZF
+ZA=+—-H 5847 3,088 5,607 1,799 16,341
Carrying values KA
At 31 December 2022 S
+-A=+-H 36 414 324 1,501 2,275
At 31 December 2021 R-Z--F
+ZA=+-H 146 584 260 1,991 2,981
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20. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 20. M B 04 (&)
The above items of property and equipment are T ERZEEE DAEHEERAT
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates FRFERE -
per annum:
Leasehold improvements Over the lease term not HEWEEE BB =F2
exceeding three years GizR=i
Furniture, fixtures and 20% B EEREE  20%
equipment
Computer equipment and 330 B R R 330
software
Motor vehicles 20% B 20%
21. STATUTORY DEPOSITS 21. ERIES
2022 2021
—TEC-CF T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
The Stock Exchange Bk 32 P
— Compensation fund deposit -EEEeERS 200 200
— Fidelity fund deposit —-HERERES 200 200
HKSCC BBEE
— Guarantee fund deposit - REESKSD 200 200
— Admission fee deposit —2HEERS 200 200
— Stamp duty deposit —HERirE 30 75
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Clearing EEHPEEEARAA
Corporation Limited ("HKFECC") ([BFHEEE]
— Reserve fund deposit —HEEeERS - 1,500

China Securities Depository and Clearing FRESEREE
Corporation Limited BEREMERTA 688 688

1,518 3,063
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22. LEASES 22. HE

(i) Right-of-use assets () EHEEE
2022 2021
—g=-= T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Leased properties HEW 8,775 15,830
The Group has lease arrangements for its office AEBEERBEFEME BIGBE
premises, staff quarters and car parking spaces. The MORBAEI L HERYE - B —R

lease terms are generally ranged from one to two B EMF -

years.

Additions to the right-of-use assets for the year ERYMEZHELN BE_T_——
ended 31 December 2021 amounted to FH+_A=t+—BUEFEZFRE
approximately HK$16,693,000 (2022: nil), due to BENE A16,693,0008 T (ZF

new leases of properties. ZITFE)

(i) Lease liabilities (i) HEE®E

2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Non-current ERE 4,115 9,423
Current mE 5,308 6,983
9,423 16,406

219
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22. LEASES (continued) 22. HE (F)
(ii) Lease liabilities (continued) (i) HEEE (&)

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Within one year —FR 5,308 6,983
After one year but within two years —FREMERN 4,115 5,897
After two years but within five years MERERLFA - 3,526
9,423 16,406

Less: Amount due for settlement within 5 : 1218 A RBEE

12 months (shown under 2 RIE (B
current liabilities) mEAET) (5,308) (6,983)

Amount due for settlement after 1218 A& 78458 2 %8

12 months 4,115 9,423

During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of
new lease agreements had entered by the Group
(2021: two) in respect of renting properties and
recognised lease liabilities (2021: approximately
HK$16,693,000).

(iii) Amounts due recognised in profit or loss

HE-ZT-_—_#H#+-A=+—HLt
FE - AKEVESRLHAMET L
TRAFAEHRZE (ZT=—F W
B) BT EBEREEARE (=T
——% : #916,693,000/ L) °

(i) REFERER BN RE

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Continuing operations BEREXR
Depreciation expense on EREEEZ
right-of-use assets FERX
— Office premises —WNEYE 4,283 4,720
— Staff quarters —BIES 2,772 2,564
Expense relating to short-term leases G HAIAERB 2 HAX 933 474
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEABZNERX
(note 11) (BizE11) 628 320
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22. LEASES (continued) 22. HE (&)
Others Hit
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the total HEz_Z_—_F+-_A=+—HBHLF
cash outflow for leases amount to approximately E-HEFMELECZARERENA
HK$8,544,000 (2021: HK$7,456,000). 8,544,000/ 7T (=& = —4F : 7,456,000
BIT) e
23. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 23. REERT 2R
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Cost of investment in an associate B E R E 2 IRE KA 360 360
Share of post-acquisition profit and other {4288 1& % F| R H b
comprehensive income ZEEA 417 321

777 681
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23. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 23, AR
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the details of the NRZEBEZ_Z_FR_E
Group's associate are as follows: e —
U

Proportion of ownership

Country of Principal place ~ Class of interests held
Name of entity Form of entity incorporation  of operation  shares held by the Group
E2: RS KRR
LR EEFS  EMRUER  EEME g3 FRERGLA
2022 2021

s RRRLA
200 201

Proportion of
voting power held

—E-Cf -“E--F -Z§-CE -“E--F

IREH

:—¢+—ﬂ
ENRFBH

Principal activities

Speedy Billion Holdings Incorporated  Hong Kong ~ Hong Kong ~ Ordinary 20% 20% 20% 20%  Operation of catering business
Limited
RESEERAA AT VA B R Be2hzs
24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 24. M AFEIEEREEEMHZ2EU
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AREEBZ2HBEE
2022 2021
—EC-CF T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TETT
Unlisted equity securities designated as 187 &% A FEYIE &
at FVTOCI (notes a & b) FHMEERAREEZ
Ik EMIRARE S (HiFakb) 22,592 23,173
Analysed for reporting purpose as M¥mE B D E
non-current assets FERBEE 22,592 23,173
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

Notes:

(@

(b)

©

According to the valuation as at 31 December 2022
performed by an independent professional valuer, the fair
value of these securities acquired was approximately
HK$22,592,000 (2021: HK$23,173,000), a fair value loss
of approximately HK$581,000 (2021: HK$6,344,000) was

recognised in other comprehensive income.

The amount includes the Group's investments in 5% and
5% of the unlisted equity securities issued by two private
entities incorporated in Hong Kong and the British Virgin
Islands respectively. Their principal activities are investment
holding in the PRC and operation of restaurants in Hong
Kong respectively. The fair value of both investments were

approximately to nil as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The investment in equity instrument is not held-for-trading.
Instead, it is held for medium to long-term strategic
purposes. Accordingly, the directors of the Company have
elected to designate these investments in equity
instrument as at FVTOCI as they believe that recognising
short-term fluctuations in these investments’ fair value in
profit or loss would not be consistent with the Group's
strategy of holding these investments for long-term
purposes and realising their performance potential in the

long run.

24 BAFEIRRERMEZEY
ARBEZMBEE (H)
Bt

(@

(®)

©

BEBYEEFEMR _T=__F
TZA=t+—B#ETZEE TR
BHZ N FEH22,592,0008 7T (= F
— —4F 123,173,000 7T) c REME
HA KRR ERRFEREL581,000
BIL(ZZEZ—F : 6,344,000 L) °

S EEEAEERMED R ES
REBEZBESFMA L ZIART
FTEE1TIE LT IR AN 78 55 2 5%38 & 5%
BB -ZERARZEEZEBH R AR
FPERETEREREBEEERE R
—EZ—F+=-A=+—HAK=E
Z—F®+ZA=+—H %ZSEKEZ
NEEHABEETT -

REARBZRELIFFEEE M
EERERAKBAEFHE - Bt - K
RAEECDBEBZERRAREZ
RERERBRAFEIEREHME
HBARRE  REZREERA NE
BEERAZEREZENATERY
HEAEERMBSEZSRERER
REREBZRERBRBE ORISR o
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25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

Details of financial assets at FVTPL are set out as follows:

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRER DT

Annual Report 2022 &£#§
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25. BDVFEIIRR ERRKREE
ZHBEE
BATEFIRRERSEREZHHE

EZHBHRHINMT

2022 2021
—EC-F —E %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Financial assets mandatorily measured at 38 fl3Z A F{EF Bk &
FVTPL EESREEZ
MG EE
Convertible bonds (note) ARIRE SR (B:) 18,100 8,964
Listed equity securities listed in Hong Kong R&S £ 2 EWARAR
& 75 300,595 423,505
318,695 432,469
Analysed for reporting purpose: MEmEB DN
— Non-current assets —JERBEE 18,100 -
— Current assets —nEBEE 300,595 432,469

318,695 432,469
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25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 25 MATEFEREEEAESE

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Note:

On 20 July 2020, the Company had acquired a 3-year 7.5%,
unsecured non-redeemable convertible bonds issued by IBO
Technology Company Limited (“IBO Tech” Stock code: 2708)
issued on 3 April 2019 for a principal amount of HK$5,760,000
at a consideration of HK$6,816,000 ("IBO Tech Convertible
Bond”) from an independent third party. The initial conversion
price of the convertible bonds is HK$1.60 per share. The

transaction was completed on 20 July 2020.

The fair value of the IBO Tech Convertible Bond was
approximately HK$8,964,000 as at 31 December 2021 the fair
values were calculated using Binomial Model by an independent
professional valuer in which the parameters were summarised as

follows:

BITAZ KRB
BITAZ BRI
[ b A 3R
AT A2 TRE R IR
Dividend yield of the issuer BITAZREE

Share price of the issuer
Effective interest rate of the issuer
Risk free rate

Expected volatility of the issuer

The IBO Tech Convertible Bond matured on 2 April 2022 and all
had been converted to shares on 6 April 2022.

On 6 January 2022, the Company had acquired a 3-year 2%,
unsecured non-redeemable convertible bonds by Virtual Mind
Holdings Company Limited (formerly name as CEFC Hong Kong
Financial Investment Company Limited (“CEFC" Stock Code:
1520)) issued on 6 January 2022 for a principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 at a consideration of HK$10,000,000 (“CEFC
Convertible Bond") through a placement. The initial conversion
price of the convertible bonds is HK$0.1496 per share. The

transaction was completed on 6 January 2022.

ZBEE (&)
Bt

RZEZZEFLA=+H AQRAABILE
ZHWRENEREROBR AR (AR
B RERR :2708) R=ZT— &M A
= BT 23F H7.5/2 B & I I A AT BB B A
B ES (K€% H5760,000%7T)  KIE
#36,816,00078 7T, ([ M AARH R AT R EH ) ©
AIMRES 2 IFRRERETR1.60HETT o
BRRSGER_ZT_ZEFLA=-+HEK °

R-ZE-—F+=-A=+—8 " LERET
R E 5 2~ T B 478,964,000/ 7T © %
AEERBIEEXGEMEA ZBEXEXG
H EHRAASLEMANT

I

31 December
2021
T4

+ZA=+—H

HK$2.497% 7T
15%

0.13%

51%

0%

VMR RRESFNR T - _FMA=H
I WERHR T _FMNANBREERAR
Bedn -

RZEZZF—RBAH ARrFEREEE
BREZERARAR (FIBELSEESRE
BEERAR([EEemMBRE]  RERR :
1520) ) RZE-_—_F—AXNBBITZ=F
H200R B MM T BRI RRES (K
%8 /310,000,000 7T.) - X & /410,000,000
B ((EEeRRETRRES] - ATk
EHZ N RRERTRR0.1496%8 T - B
RHEENR_TE__F—AHBZEK °
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B

E-FE-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Note: (continued)

The fair value of the CEFC Convertible Bond was approximately
HK$18,100,000 and HK$17,600,000 as at 31 December 2022
and 6 January 2022 respectively. The fair values were calculated
using Binomial Model by an independent professional valuer in

which the parameters were summarised as follows:

Share price of the issuer BITAZ KRB
Effective interest rate of the issuer BITAZ BB
Risk free rate 2 [ e )
Expected volatility of the issuer BT A ZBHKE
Dividend yield of the issuer BITAZRER

The effective interest rate of the issuer was determined with
reference to the average of the bond yields of the comparable
companies with similar businesses and credit rating of the issuer.
Risk free rate was determined with reference to yield of Hong
Kong government bonds over the exercise period near the
valuation dates of 31 December 2022, 6 January 2022 and 31
December 2021 respectively. Expected volatility of the issuer
was determined using the historical volatility of the issuer's share
price over the exercise period as at the valuation dates of 31
December 2022, 6 January 2022 and 31 December 2021

respectively.

25. BAFEIRREESERER

ZHBEE (&)
#izE (&)

a%%&éﬁﬂﬁﬂxa%ﬂ TF+=

A=+—BR-_Z-_—_#—A~B22THE
ﬁ%J%ﬁi% 18,100,000 7t % 17,600,000
T ZATEHBYEEGAEMRA ZER
BREHE - ERFASEMRNT

31 December 6 January
2022 2022
—EZCZF —ECZCZF
+=ZH=+-—H —AXH
HK$0.239/% Tt  HK$0.2448 7T
14% 14%

4.14% 0.99%

85% 112.36%

0% 0%

BITAZBERFETD2ZERETAEBRE
BT EAEE 2 A LR AR 2 FHESF B
KEF o MR ETH2EBZBBTESFR
HERMH - —F+-_A=+—H ==
T F—AANBEE-_—F+-_F=+—
HATERITEBRAZBHREET - B1TAZ
BEREDFERARNEEBR T —F+=
A=+—H8 —Z-_—_f#—AFXBRER_ZF
ZT—F+Z A=+ ARTEHRZETA
JR (B JFE LR I S TE ©
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26. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 26. EUWER X

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Accounts receivable arising from the ERERKBREPEETLA
ordinary course of business of TARGMEE 2 EWAR -
dealing in:
Securities transactions (note a): BHRR5 (Hita) -
Clearing house EER 1 14,848
Cash clients Re&EP 5,932 4,017
Futures and options contracts transactions HiIE R EIEANRH
(note a): (Kiita)
Clearing house HEE P - 16
5,933 18,881
Accounts receivable arising from the B BEBRESD
ordinary course of business of provision RHECERE R HEAD
of corporate finance and other advisory BERBMEEZ
services (note a) FEWBR X (M 7ta) 6,715 3,880
Less: Impairment loss B REEE (2,945) (1,650)
3,770 2,230
Accounts receivable arising from the EREEBBREREET
ordinary course of business of money MERBEBMEELEZ
lending services (note b) JE W BR R (H7Eb) 301,381 273274
Less: Impairment loss B OREEE (78,362) (70,545)
223,019 202,729
Accounts receivable arising from the EHBEBREPRET
ordinary course of business of AN 22 5 1 2 4 2 FE YR
dealing in (note ¢): BRI (M 7Ec) -
Securities transactions: BHERG
Margin clients RESEF 169,158 165,224
Less: Impairment loss W OREEE (7,873) (6,773)
161,285 158,451
Accounts receivables arising from the EEREBBERRABEE
ordinary business of selling digital assets BISEEMESE 2 B
(note d) AR (K1 atd) 74 -
394,081 382,291
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26. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the gross amount of accounts
receivables arising from contracts with customers
amounted to approximately HK$12,722,000 (2021:
HK$22,761,000).

The Group measures the loss allowance for accounts
receivable other than accounts receivable from margin
clients and money lending clients, at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL. The ECL on these accounts receivable are
estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past
default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the
debtor's current financial position, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate
and an assessment of both the current as well as the

forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

Notes:

(a) The settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from
the ordinary course of business of dealing in securities
transactions are two trading days after the trade date and
accounts receivable arising from the ordinary course of
business of dealing in futures and options contracts
transactions are one trading day after the trade date.
Accounts receivable from clearing house and majority of
accounts receivable from cash clients represent trades
pending settlement arising from the business of dealing in

securities transactions.

26. EWBRX (&)

RZE-—_F+-A=+—H BEF
AINANFEEZBRERBENR
12,722,000 7T (ZE = —% : 22,761,000
BIT) e

AEERBERBEAFENEREES
BZeRAEREER (BEARESE
FRBERF ZRAERIN) 2 EREME -
ZERYERZEHMEEERDZ2ERE
BABEZEDORRNEERARRKHY
Bz oM SRR E AR - A
BREBANBEZERARE  BEHAME
BITEZEBEREENR AR N HE A
BIRT BRI RERT WA EL

#X

= °

v
Of]

HizE -

(@ ERAREBEETHRETEEESR
SMELAZRRERZEERRES
EMEmEZs 8 MEBBXEKB
RARETEEHRERHRANRS
MELAZERERZEERRES
HE—EAX50 - BREEMERERK
RBDEURREEPERIBRETE
EEFRIEBMELZFTRHERS -
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26. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 26. B AR (&)
Notes: (continued) i ()
(a) (continued) (a) (#&)
In respect of the accounts receivable arising from dealing HITEERSF HERBBEAGAXR
in securities, futures and options contracts, except for those SMEAZERER (BERREZFLTF
amounts due from margin clients, the aging analysis based BRABRIN) 2 BRI T (R E & B 85T
on the trade date is as follows: RN

2022 2021
—E-C T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Within 30 days 308 1,403 16,376
31 — 90 days 31%290H 3,028 -
Over 90 days BiR90H 1,502 2,505
5,933 18,881
The settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from RECERENEMBERREmME
provision of corporate finance and other advisory services EZRBER 2 EEH —RBEEEH
are normally due immediately from date of billing but the BRENEEIE  EREEAI A TAR
Group may grant a credit period of 30 days on average to F¥i1830R 25 EH - 2 EEKRA

its clients. The aging analysis of these receivables based on ZEREST(REZEHAE)OT

the invoice date is as follows:

2022 2021

—Eg=-= —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Within 30 days 30BN 203 538
31 - 90 days 31Z90H 486 551
Over 90 days BiR90H 3,081 1,141

3,770 2,230
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26. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 26. EWEBR (&)

Notes: (continued) Hiat - (&)

(a) (continued) @ (&)

(b)

Movements of the provision for impairment loss on
accounts receivable from the provision of corporate finance

and other advisory services are as follows:

FRARREHOCEEE R HMEB RS
WA AR 2 REMOR R (B R 1R
HEBHMT

2022 2021

—E-CH T —F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

As at 1 January ®n—HA—H 1,650 1,031
Impairment losses recognised on trade e W BRI R 2 BB B 1B

receivables 1,295 619

As at 31 December W+ZA=+—8H 2,945 1,650

As at 31 December 2022, accounts receivable arising from
money lending services bear fixed-rate interest of 0.667%
to 1.5% per month or 8% to 18% per annum (2021:
0.667% to 1.5% per month or 8% to 18% per annum)

The accounts receivable had remaining contractual maturity

b) RZE-_—F+-A=+—H BEK
& AR5 M B 4 2 R W R 2 8§ F0.667
ERZISEXEFERISE (T = —
F: 5 A0667EE1S5EXTFIERE
18E) EEMEFFE - REWEH

date falling within one year as at the end of each reporting N ZERRERZHBRENFERR
period. As at 31 December 2022, accounts receivable with PR—F RZT__F+-A=+—

net carrying amount of approximately HK$178 million
(2021: HK$82 million) were secured by the client's listed

securities and client's properties.

B - B8R ¥ {8 #178,000,00058 7T (—
T — — 4 : 82,000,000/ 7T) Z JE UL Bk
HUABREP EMESRBEEMEREK -

4
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26. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) (continued)

Analysis of the gross carrying amount on accounts

receivables from money lending as at 31 December 2022

and 2021 by the Group's internal credit rating and year

end classification:

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Hist (&)

b &

26. EWEBR (&)

BASBENSEETRRERS EY
EMEEBmMEEZERERR =
ZTERZTE_—F+ZA=+—H
ZEREBESTMT

BE-_Z-_—_f+=-A=+—HLFE

Lifetime

ECL not Lifetime

12-months credit- ECL credit-

ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating A EB 1S B R AR (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total

[EEE-

I & ERE WEZ

T=EA 2EEFES ZEEFED

BHEE BHEE BHEE

B8 [Fi=1 Ei8
(1) (2B ER) (E3MEER) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHBT FTERT
Performing R 109,869 - - 109,869
Doubtful (i3 - 135,369 - 135,369
Default BH - - 56,143 56,143
109,869 135,369 56,143 301,381
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26. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 26. EUNBREFX ()
Notes: (continued) Hiat - (&)
(b) (continued) (b) (%)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HIt&EE
Lifetime

ECL not Lifetime

12-months credit- ECL credit-

ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating ANEEEFT R (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total

BlEE

I EAE ERE B2

TZEA 2EBEAFESR EEFES

BHEE BHEEE BEEE

&8 &8 Ea
(B1RER) (F2FE ) (FE3RR) #BEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHET
Performing RiF 41,569 - - 41,569
Doubtful 3= - 204,485 - 204,485
Default B - - 27,220 27,220

41,569 204,485 27,220 273,274




VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRERAA 233
Annual Report 2022 &3}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Z &M iRRM =

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T_—_F+-_A=1+—HILFE

26. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 26. B AR (&)
Notes: (continued) i ()
(b) (continued) (b) (#&)
Movements of the provision for impairment loss on FRENEEBMEEZEBERZ
accounts receivable from money lending business are as BEBEREEZSHMOT
follows:
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-months credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
28
It E|IEERE HEZ

T=-EBA Z2R2EFEYE ZEAFEN
BHEE BHEE BHREE

B Ei8 Ei8
(BB ER) (2B ER) (3R ER) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-_—%—H—H 22 23,935 27,220 51,177
Impairment loss recognised 4 MR 2 A KB
during the year 131 19,237 - 19,368
At 31 December 2021 R —4F
+=—A=+—H 153 43,172 27,220 70,545
Transfer to 12-months ECL  #& A12E A EHEE
EiE 7,253 (7,253) - -
Transfer to lifetime ECL EAREEREZEM
credit-impaired FEBEBEEERE - (4,429) 4,429 -
Impairment loss reversed & Al 2R EEE
during the year (7,146) (15,113) - (22,259)
Impairment loss recognised 4 N #ER 2 A EEE
during the year 244 5,338 24,494 30,076

At 31 December 2022 N-ZEBE-_F
+=A=+—H 504 21,715 56,143 78,362
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26. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

©

The accounts receivable from margin clients of
approximately HK$169,158,000 (2021: HK$165,224,000)
were secured by the clients’ pledged listed securities which
carried a fair value of approximately HK$343,919,000
(2021: HK$440,084,000).

Securities are assigned with specific margin ratios for
calculating margin values. Additional funds or collateral are
required if the amount of accounts receivable from margin
clients outstanding exceeds the eligible margin value of the
securities deposited. The collateral held can be re-pledged
up to 140% of the accounts receivable from margin clients
amounts and the corresponding collateral held can be sold
at the Group's discretion to settle any outstanding amounts
owed by the margin clients. Accounts receivable from
margin clients are repayable on demand and bear interest

at commercial rates.

Accounts receivable for margin clients of HK$31,912,000
(2021: HK$37,104,000), which are not fully secured by
the respective clients’ listed securities, are considered
impaired. An impairment of HK$7,274,000 (2021:
HK$6,764,000) was made by the management after taking
into account subsequent additional cash and securities
collateral. Such accounts receivable due from margin
clients were assessed to be credit impaired and classified
as stage 3 during the year as it became default to repay

the outstanding balance for a period of time.

No ageing analysis is disclosed in the opinion of directors
of the Company as ageing analysis is not meaningful in
view of the revolving nature of the business of margin loan

financing.

©

26. EWEBR (&)
Bt - (&)

B #)169,158,000/8 T (Z T = —4F ¢
165,224,000 7T) EWRFEE P 2
FEWCRRE 3R T LA 1B 49343,919,0007%
JL(ZZ = —1F : 440,084,000/ 7T) &
B E S EER o

BHEUREREREFS L RUFER
BeEE-WMERRIEEPZ2KE
BEREREBEBMTEESF2EER
RESEMBE BAEHEINE LK
Tﬁﬁu% Bz EMMABER &8

BERKRBSEF 2 BIRRN
140% - ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁZﬁFﬂﬂ}fﬁﬁuu%ﬂm
$’§I@‘J’I AREHENFERE

KZET‘JWE;E#IEOFH&M%%
i%:)E‘ZJ%WEE?KZ\EARIMTEEI
REFERNEE -

B#HI31,912,0008 T (Z T = —F -

37,104,000 7T) R RE ST F 2 &
WER R AT P 2 E B H1E
2HER  WERELHREERE &
BEGHRAZKI 28R G RF
I @ - 5P UCER FRE 117,274,000
BT (ZZEZ—4% 16,764,000 70) Z
BE - ZEFRBRIESEP 2 BN
HEAEREEABOER —BER -
HMERTEAEBREERBELENEF

NHIERFEIME -

ARREERR ENRIBESERF
BEB2ERUED REOITALES
F o WHEUT ERERE DI -
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26. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c) (continued)
Analysis of the gross carrying amount on accounts
receivables from margin clients as at 31 December 2022
and 2021 by the Group's internal credit rating and year

end classification:

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B (&)

() (&)

T

N ]
A E

%

=t+t—BEYERE

26. EWEBR (&)

NEEENARFERDEY

ZHREEEDITWT

T —FR-_FE-_—-F+=H
EEP ZBUWERR

BE-_Z-_—_f+=-A=+—HLFE

Lifetime Lifetime
ECL not ECL
12-months credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating A EB1E B FEAR (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
YEEERE SFEREZ
TR Z2EEEFEHEY ZEEFEES
BHEE BHEE BHEE
JE=] BB BE
(1) (2B ER) (B3R R) mat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET FHET FET
Performing R 108,882 - - 108,882
Doubtful {E3= - 28,364 - 28,364
Default EH - - 31,912 31,912
108,882 28,364 31,912 169,158
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILHFE
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL not ECL
12-months credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating RNEBEEFT R (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
WEEERE BEEEREZ
TZER 2EREFESR BEFEH
BHEEE BEEE BEEE
& & B
(B ER) (Z2PE ) (FE3MRER) EEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Performing R4f 67,660 - - 67,660
Doubtful R - 60,460 - 60,460
Default B — - 37,104 37,104
67,660 60,460 37,104 165,224
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26. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

©

(d)

(continued)

Movements of the provision for impairment loss on

accounts receivable from margin clients are as follows:

12-months
ECL
(Stage 1)

26. EWBRX (&)

Hiat - (&)

©

(%)

BRRE & B P 2 IR 2 B
BREEBMT :

Lifetime Lifetime
ECL not ECL
credit- credit-
impaired impaired
(Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total

WEREERE SRFREREZ

T=EA 2EEAFEE EAFED
BHEE EHEE EHEE
Ei8 &8 &8
(1R (B2 ER) (3P ER) #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
ECL allowances as at RZTZ—F
1 January 2021 —HA—BZEH
EERBRER - 455 22,981 23,436
Impairment loss recognised ~ F RER 2R EEE
during the year - - 2,926 2,926
Impairment loss reversed FRERLZHEEBE
during the year - (446) (19,143) (19,589)
31 December 2021 R-ZZTE=—_—%F
+=ZA=+—H - 9 6,764 6,773
Impairment loss recognised 4 NHER 2 F{EE B
during the year - 599 6,539 7,138
Impairment loss reversed FAEEZRERE
during the year - 9) (6,029) (6,038)
31 December 2022 P = =
+=-A=+—H - 599 7,274 7,873

The settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from
the ordinary course of business of selling digital assets are
normally due immediately from date of billing but the
Group may grant a credit period of 120 days on average to
its client. The aging analysis of these receivables based on

the invoice date is as follows:

Within 30 days 308 A

(d REREEBEETRETHBEE

S i B 2 FE AR R 2 &5 EERBR —
BEBREOHBAREE BERER
Al THEEFPFEHI1208 2R - %
LRWRER 2 BRER DT (RE R B Bst
B)mT

2022 2021
—E-= —E - —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
74 -
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27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

27. ANRE - REREMERERER

2022 2021
—=E-= T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Other receivables arising from disposal of HERDFEIRERE
financial assets at FVTPL (note a) EanREEUBEE
i 2E A 2 E fth 8 W AR K
(Ktita) - 37,441
Other receivables from disposal of HEWNBARIMESZ
subsidiaries H 4th i U ER X - 5,000
Others Hit 4,450 4,459
Gross amount of other receivables E e U BR 3k 2 4258 4,450 46,900
Less: impairment allowances (note b) o RE R (A7 aEb) - (5,123)
Carrying amount of other receivables Hth BUCBR R 2 BREIE 4,450 41,777
Deposit for business acquisition (note c) EBWEIRS (Witc) - 11,000
Prepayments and other deposits ERREBEREMEZS 17,846 5,886
22,296 58,663
Notes: Mzt -

(@ RZZTZ-ZZTHF KRQAE {7 #EPacific
Alliance Limited ([PAL) AT#% 2 2 3808
Mg LAPALHE XS E|A
76,792,500/ 7T 2 7 Bl = 98 ] # Bk (&
% ° A 4 1X {§200,000,0007% 7T JY ¥ 7~
N B HEPALITE 2 B BT &l 5 BEE -
FHEFE B2HARAAHAZT
CEF-RAtHWARZZE_ZTF=
R=B 2R

(a) In 2020, the Company has exercised the put option
granted by Pacific Alliance Limited (“PAL") to dispose of
the China Fortune Convertible Bonds to PAL on principal
amount of HK$76,792,500. The consideration of
HK$200,000,000 is settled by installments according to
the settlement plan between the Company and PAL. For
details, please refer to the Company’'s announcement
dated on 24 January 2020 and 3 March 2020.

tHREEREE T -_—_F+ A
“+—HALEFEEHEE-

This amount had been fully settled during the year ended
31 December 2022.
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27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 27.

RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) For other receivables, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12 — month ECL. The
Group uses past due information to assess whether credit
risk has increase significantly since initial recognition.

The Group measures the loss allowance for other
receivables under general approach in HKFRS 9.

(c) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
entered into a memorandum of understanding to acquire
32% equity interest in China Bloom International Limited
(“China Bloom"). As at 31 December 2021, refundable
deposit at approximately HK$11,000,000 had been paid.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the acquisition
of 32% equity interest in China Bloom shall not proceed
after a series of memorandum of understanding. The
amount had been settled by a shareholder of China Bloom
under a deed of settlement as loan receivables on 31
March 2022 and is included in accounts receivables arising
from money lending services.

Analysis of the gross carrying amount on other
receivables as at 31 December 2022 by the Group's
internal credit rating and year end classification:

For the year ended 31 December 2022

12-months
ECL
Internal credit rating R E BT R (Stage 1)

ANRIE - REREMERER
(&)
Hiat : (&)

b)) BREMEEEXME AKEFTEMR
ERT_EARBEEERZEBRE
BoAREBERAPEHUFHEER
Rk EE B YL EREEELL M -

AEBEBRBEF B BRME LA FER 2
FRBOEREA U ARRE BEIEES -

(o) BEZZT-_TF+-A=+—8HItF
B AEEET LRGSR P
EBRRERAR ([HRE]) 23200k -
R-ZE-—F+_A=+—RHEX
AlRE £ 411,000,000/ 7T °

HE-_Z-_—F+=ZA=+—HLHF
B ERAZHTABERS  WEHRE
DR E—EHTEHRT - BERE
BERZE__F=ZA=+—HHA+E
Z—EBRERBRBEENZBEERAERE
RMEME - Wat AE TR ERS 3
TS E £ 2 FEWERSK ©

BAKBANEEFRRFRYBHRN

TECF+-A=t+—HzHMEYK
R ZEREAEEDITWT ¢

BE-_S--—F+-A=+—HILLEE

Lifetime Lifetime
ECL not ECL
credit- credit-
impaired impaired
(Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total

YTEEERE CREERE
ZBEFRY 2REFEY

+=@A BEHEE BHHEE

HHEEBE BB BB
(BB &) (2R ) (SE3MER) #et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FER FERT FERT
Performing R 3,640 - - 3,640
Doubtful = - - - -
Default EH - - 810 810
3,640 - 810 4,450
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27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 27. BAEHE - e B EMEWERER
RECEIVABLES (continued) (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 e - —F+-_A=+—BHIL&FE
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL not ECL
12-months credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating NEBEER (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total

TREERE EBREERE
ZEBEFES cBEEFED
+=ZA RHEE BHEE

BHEEEBR B8 BE
(F1EE)  (F2kE)  (B3BE) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAERT TAET TAT TET

Performing R1f 8,579 - - 8,579
Doubtful & - 37,441 - 37,441
Default EH - - 880 880

8,579 37,441 880 46,900
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27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 27. A FIE s RE N HEAEWERR
RECEIVABLES (continued) (&)
Movements of the provision for impairment loss on other FAREMBWERR ZRESEREZ
receivables are as follows: N
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL not ECL
12-months credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
YEEEHE BHEEHEZ
ZEEFEN BERESD
T=f@A BAHEE BHEE
EHEEESR B#E B#E
(B1RE) (B20 5 ($3KE) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TR TER
ECL allowances as at 1 January 2021 RZEZ—F—A—H
LEHEEERER - 3978 1,016 4,994
Impairment loss recognised FRERZREER
for the year - 1,145 7,403 8,548
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 13) HEMBAR (M:213) - - (7,403) (7,403)
Impairment loss reversed FERREZAEBE
during the year - - (1,016) (1,016)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January HW=-Z=—F+=f
2022 =t-Bk
“T--%-A-H - 5123 - 5123
Impairment loss reversed FRBERZAERR
during the year - (5,123) - (5,123)
At 31 December 2022 i ——s

+-ZA=1+—H
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28. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 28. RITEB KRB S

Bank balances and cash comprise of cash and short- term
bank deposits held by the Group at market interest rates
ranging from 0.001% to 1% (2021: 0.001% to 0.30%)

per annum with an original maturity of one month.

In the course of the conduct of the regulated activities of
its ordinary business, VC Brokerage Limited and VC
Futures Limited act as trustees that result in the holding
of clients’ monies on behalf of clients and other
institutions. These assets are not assets of the Group
and, therefore, are not included in its consolidated
statement of financial position. As at 31 December 2022,
the Group maintained segregated accounts at a clearing
house of approximately nil (2021: HK$3,469,000) and at
other authorised institutions of approximately
HK$93,836,000 (2021: HK$116,244,000) in conjunction
with its securities, futures and options brokering and
dealing business, and corporate financial advisory
business as a result of the normal business transactions,
which are not otherwise dealt with in these consolidated

financial statements.

RITEHREB SR EASEMERS R
REBMBA—M@A - EWESFANENT
0.001EZE1E(ZZE=—F :0001EZE
0.30F) st B 2 RHIRITHER »

ERRXEGBARIREZRE TN -
ERBEHFERAFNERBEER AR
EXAA REPRAMBERAER
PHRIE -ZEEEWFAKRBZEE
BTG ARGEMBRARA - RZF
ZZF+ZA=+—H AKERHIE
FEBRIMET2ES  BHEREHAE
e RBEEBUARCENEBMER
MR —EEEMRLE IR - @584
TAETL(ZT=—F : 3,469,000 7T)
SREMBAIRBRVELRRS €8
#993,836,0008 L (Z & = — & -
116,244,000 7m) * BEAKF-, T &1
MEMBBMRPEE -
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29. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUED LIABILITIES, 20. BHERA - EFTE&E - HAapE
OTHER PAYABLES AND MARGIN LOAN PAYABLES ESXRENGRRESES

2022 2021

—=E-= —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

S F#T

Accounts payable arising from dealing in FETEREEMEE

securities: Z FEATBRFR

Clearing house EERT 2,780 -
Cash clients ReRP 238 18,122
Margin clients REESEFR 785 1,842

3,803 19,964
Accounts payable arising from sales and FETEIREEHE &
marketing of digital assets HEMES 2 ERERR 1,432 1,213
5,235 21,177
Margin loan payables BRREEEK 18,470 15,321
Accrued liabilities and other payables: FET B B R E Ath FE AT BR X -
Accrued expenses e X 3,653 2,463
Contract liabilities EHaE - 2,677
Receipt in advance FE U F A 10,322 -
Others H A 4,187 1,558

18,162 6,698
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BE—
29.

E__Ft+_HA=1T—HLFE

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUED LIABILITIES,
OTHER PAYABLES AND MARGIN LOAN PAYABLES
(continued)

Accounts payable to clearing house represent trades
pending settlement arising from dealing in securities
which are usually due within two trading days after the
trade date.

The accounts payable to cash clients and margin clients
are repayable on demand except where certain balances
represent trade pending settlement which are usually due
within two trading days after the trade date or deposits
received from clients for their securities dealing activities.
Only the excessive amounts over the required deposits

stipulated are repayable on demand.

No aging analysis on accounts payable arising from
dealing in securities is disclosed as in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the aging analysis does not
give additional value in view of the nature of this

business.

Contract liability includes receipt in advance to provide
financial advisory services. The Group received part of the
contract value as receipt in advance from financial
advisory services projects when service contracts are
signed. The receipts in advance payment result in
contract liabilities and relevant revenue is recognised over
the financial advisory services project period or when the

control of the digital asset is transferred to the customer.

HK$2,677,000 was recognised as revenue during the
year ended 31 December 2022 was included in the
contract liabilities at the beginning of the year. There was
no revenue recognised in the current year that related to
performance obligations that were satisfied in a prior

year.

20. EfSBRA - ERtEE - HMES

RAREANREEZER(K)

NEEMEREEEIEFELZR

BRXP —HBREBRHERZMER
HARH -

ENREMMRESEP ZERRBRENR
BEE ETHREEXZESR (K
REBERHRZ2MERS BRIk
WEFPEFEHEASMENDM LD
Sho EREZRIEEREZHBERANE

SKEFEE -
AERREB ML  ARREERAEA
BITEFEEMEE 2 ENERZER

T A REIMEE - MARERER
AT o

S

AP
9

EBf

BHRESR ?E?mf\raﬁé“EEFEJHEi‘KZ?EH&
A - AEEREEREERSEBRR
RBEHFRBFLENEE  (ERHE
Wi - FAWGRIA KGR E - HEH
W X B E B AR TS TR B iR s BeS

BEZENREBEEPRER -

FHYEHNEREFRHF2677,000%8 T A
REBEE-F-_—_F+-_A=1+—HLF
EHRZWZE AFEHERAZWFE

FERBTZBENETLEBE -
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BE-_E-—F+-_R=+—H1tFE

30. DEFERRED TAX (ASSET) LIABILITIES 30. BRI BB (SE) AR
EHRAZEFEZRERIEBE(EE) BEN

MERANFERBEFEZEHWT -

The following is the major deferred tax (asset) liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current

and prior years.

Unrealised
gain on
financial
Tax  assets held  Convertible
losses  for trading bonds Total
HHEEE
BREEZ
REEBE KERUE TERRES Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEL TEX TER
At 1 January 2021 RZE-—%5—-A—H (7,036) 7,036 424 424
Charge to convertible bond reserve R AR EH R ENR - - (1,502) (1,502)
(Credit) charge to profit or loss REZE(EE) Nk (10,545) 10,545 1,280 1,280
At 31 December 2021 J——
+=A=+-H (17,581) 17,581 202 202
Charge (credit) to profit or loss REREMR (K%) 17,581 (17,581) (105) (105)
At 31 December 2022 i ——E
+ZA=+-H - - 97 97
At 31 December 2022, the Group has estimated unused R —_F+-_A=+—H A%£H

tax losses of approximately HK$665,734,000 (2021:
HK$590,966,000) available for offset against future
profits. As at 31 December 2022, deferred tax asset and
liability have been recognised in respect of tax losses of
approximately nil (2021: HK$106,552,000) and taxable
temporary difference of approximately nil (2021:
HK$106,552,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
tax losses of approximately HK$665,734,000 (2021:
HK$484,414,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The estimated unused tax losses have no
expiry date but are subject to further approval of the

Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department.

B et AR EABIAEE 4665,734,000%8
gL (ZZ = —%F : 550,966,000/ 7t) A
KEAKEFN R-_T=-_—_F+= A
=t+t—R AEERREBEITEL
—ZT = —1%F 106,552,000/ 7T ) & JER
MEREENTETL (T —F
106,552,000/ 7T) W RIE IE 1 18 & & &
aBfE-

HE-T-_—F+-_A=1+—HIEFE
I 4 82 T B 1B &5 18 49665,734,000% 7T
ZT T —1F 1 484,414,000/ 7T) FERIE
JEFRIAE E - & FARROR N RREETE
Al e ZEMEFTARDAREBENREW
H BEKEERBRRITHE  FA]
A -
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BE—
30.

31.

T F+ZA=+T—HIEFE
DEFERRED TAX (ASSET) LIABILITIES (continued)

At 31 December 2022, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of HK$6,302,000 (2021:
HK$6,175,000). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary

differences can be utilised.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 8 June 2018, the Company issued convertible bonds
("CB1") with 2% coupon rate at a total principal value of
HK$160,000,000 to an independent third party, CVP
Financial Group Limited, as the consideration of the
acquisition of unlisted equity securities issued by Hackett
Enterprises Limited as disclosed in note 24. The
convertible bond will mature on the third anniversary of
the date of issue of the convertible bonds. The
convertible bonds are converted into 123,076,923
conversion shares at any time between the date of issue
of the convertible bond and the maturity date at the
bondholder's initial conversion price of HK$1.3 per
conversion share.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, CB1 was

expired.

On 9 July 2020, VC Global, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, issued convertible bonds (“CB2") with zero
coupon rate at a principal value of US$40,000 to an
independent third party, Wu Jian. These convertible
bonds will mature on the third anniversary of the date of
issue of the convertible bonds at their principal amount
or can be converted into 40 shares of VC Global
Investments at any time commencing from the issue date
up to the maturity date at the bondholder’s initial
conversion price of US1,000 equivalent to HK$7,780 per

conversion share.

30. EEBIR (BEE) BE (&)

31.

RZEBEZZF+_A=+—H *&5H
B AT 0B EG B = 586,302,000 L (=%
—— % : 496,175,000/ 7T) ° I £ Tk %
EAMBGEREERRECHRIBEE
ERT KA S 815 ERB R A A A {E
AT B R 25 o

AR ES

RZZE-NFRANA  KRFETAE
& #%85160,000,0008 T2 [E W 8 &
AR ES ([FTRREHF]) 7B
B=FRReBMEEERAT - ERH
FE24F7 # B8 W BEHackett Enterprises
Limited¥ 1T 2 3F E R A FEH 2 KB -
R EHFGR AT RRESHITA R
FE-ARFHINE - I RREFTHE
AR/AANERRARKRESHITA MR
EZIHBLAER - BERRTPIRER
BERBEEBRMIIBTEIBRRES
R 5123,076,923 R BRAR (5 ©

REBEE—Z-_—F+-_A=1+—BLF
€ AR ES 1T B EE R

%’

A\ZZEZZEFEANA  ARAZEE
Bff B8 2 FIVC Global )38 37 8 = 5 RE %
1R £ 540,000k L2 EEE LB KA iR
BRESH (TAKREH2]) - AT RKRE
FHERBETIRREFBHBERE=RF
REASBEIE KRB ITHBREE
HEAILERMRERESFBEEAZTNS
# A% 81,0003 7T X #2 /4002VC Global
B - HERERIEARR7H7,780/8 T
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E__Ft+_HA=1T—HLHFE

31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

On 8 November 2021, the Company entered a deed of
settlement with Wu Jian to redeem CB2 by paying back
the whole principal value of US$40,000.

On 6 November 2020, the Company issued convertible
bonds (“CB3") with zero coupon rate at a total principal
value of HK$52,000,000 to six independent third parties.
The convertible bond will mature on the third anniversary
of the date of issue of the convertible bonds. The
convertible bonds are converted into 260,000,000
conversion shares at any time between the date of issue
of the convertible bond and the maturity date at the
bondholder’s initial conversion price of HK$0.2 per

conversion share.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, CB3 with
principal amounts of HK$45,500,000 were converted into
227,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company at the
conversion price of HK$0.2 per share. The amount of
approximately HK$10,959,000 (net of tax effect) was
released in convertible bonds reserve upon the

conversion of convertible bonds.

The CB1 and CB3 comprise a liability component and
equity conversion component. The residual amount,
representing the value of the equity component, is
included in the convertible bonds reserve under equity

attributable to the owners of the Company.

The CB2 comprise a liability component and equity
conversion component. The residual amount are assigned
as the equity component and are included in the

convertible bonds issued by a subsidiary.

31. R E S (&)

R-ZE-—F+—ANH ARAAEZR
BEIIEMNRE  NEBANER2HEAS
EH40,000FE L 2R FE B AT IR (B 52 ©

RZZBZZF+—AH  RARFRAN
B E = BT & #%652,000,000
BT EREB R MRES ([T
B53]) - ZAIMREFHREITAT]
BEHBHEE=AFENHE - ZrIRK
EH IR BT RRES B B = 5| 8
HIEEAREZRESFEAZTZBRR
BEEBRBEBEBRHO2BETHE A
260,000,0008% #2 fZ A% 17 °

REBZE_Z_TF+_A=+—HILF
[+ 7N & #845,500,0005% 7T 2 A # & &
HIRBRB/BRBRMO2B T LR A
227,500,0000% AR A)E@A% - Hiknr
BREH%E TBRRESFEERER L
10,959,000 7.2 K& (HIBR RIS E) °

ABMEES R RRESFIABESD
K ez i B R o A RK - A (BN 42 a1 &6
DZEBE)FARRAER ARIGHER
N2 BBIES R -

ABREZF2H BB D MES R
DA - REEDEE# SO WA
M~ mEIT AT AR E S
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31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 3. ARBES (E)
The movement of liability component of the convertible AHRBREFEESS 2EBHWT :
bonds is as follows:
Issued by a
Issued by the Company subsidiary
ELARES WEARRT
B1 issued on (B3 issued on (B2 issued on
8 June 2018 6 November 2021 9 July 2020 Total
R-F-N% RoF=-% RoF-%%
ABNBEf  t-ARBEM tANBE
ZTBRRES ZUERESY  ZUERER by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR ThRL TER TR
Liability component at 1 January 2021 RZZF-_-5-4-H
ZREHD 17302 4710 230 242
Effective interest expenses (note 1) ERRBRT (W) 854 568 25 1,447
Setilement during the year ERER (18,000) - - (18,000)
Redeemed during the year ERER - - (255) (255)
Interest payable EMHE (156) - - (16)
Liabiity component at 31 December 2021 RZZ=-F+Zf=1-F
and 1 January 2022 RZF-Z#£--R¢
LD - 5218 - 5278
Effective interest expenses (note 11) ERMSEI (W) - 634 - 634
Liabilty component at 31 December 2022 W_F__#T_A=1-H
ZBERD - 5912 - 5912
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31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 3. R ES (F)
The convertible bonds issued at their issue dates RIEREEIT B HR T 2 A MR EH R4
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial BMBARARERLT

position are as follows:

Issued by a

Issued by the Company subsidiary

RARBT WEA AR

CB1 issued on CB3 issued on CB2 issued on

8 June 2018 6 November 2021 9 July 2021

RZB-N\§ R-B--% R-B--%

ABNBEfTZ T-AAAEfTZ tANREfZ

TRREH TRBESS TRRES2

Maturity date HEA 8 June 2021 6 November 2023 9 July 2023

“E--FXANR ZE-ZF+-ARH ZE-ZFtAANH

Remaining principal not yet converted ~ RZFZZF+ZA=1-H - HK$6,500,000 -
as at 31 December 2022 RALBRZB TR 6,500,000/% 1T
Remaining principal not yet converted ~ RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H - HK$6,500,000 -
as at 31 December 2021 RMARBZBTASE 6,500,000/ 0
Conversion price BIRE HK$1.3 per share HK$0.2 per share  US$1,000 per share
BiR13ET BHR0.2ET Bfk1,000% T
Analysis as: D
2022 2021
—TEC-CF T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current liabilities mEaE 5,912 -
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - 5,278

5,912 5,278
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31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 3. TR ES (E)
The convertible bonds issued at their issue dates RABREEE 1T A BRI B 1T 2 AT R IR (B 5 O AR
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial EMBMRARERNT : (&)

position are as follows: (continued)

Issued by a

Issued by the Company subsidiary

ARRES WEARRS

(B1 issued on (B3 issued on (B2 issued on
8June 2018 6 November 2020 9 July 2020 Total

RZE-NE RZBZE% RZBZ5%
ABNAET  t-BRARMA tAARES

ZURRES ZUAREST  ZTERER @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ThL AL T ThL

Fair value of convertible bonds issued BENIEREHZATE 207,084 52,000 30 259395

Equity conversion component BEAREH (85,550) (15,000) (95) (100,645)

Liability component on inifial RETRENSEAR

recognition at issue date gEHS 121,534 37,000 216 158,750
Maturity date R 8June 2021 6 November 2023 9 July 2023
“E--F —E-CE —E-cE

~ANE t=AAR tANA
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32. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future

cash flows will be classified in the Group’s consolidated

32.

METHELE2REHK

TR AKERERDHELCAEE
BHF ERRASLIFRSESH -BE
ABELCABEREBAHMZASREN
AXRBRGRENAKREGARERER
hOBARMERDELZREREZA

statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing & o
activities.
Interest payables
on convertible Lease
Convertible bonds bonds liabilities
R ES 2
kK ES FE 7 & HERR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TET
At 31 December 2020 RZZFZFF+-A=1-"H 22,242 1,742 6,375
Financing cash outflows BERSRL (255) - (6,982)
Non-cash changes HHEEH
New lease arrangement MHE R - - 16,693
Interest expenses accrued FEE R BRI 1,291 156 320
Settlement of accounts receivable B B MR 3 (18,000) (1,898) -
At 31 December 2021 RZF-—F+ZA=1—H 5278 - 16,406
Financing cash outflows BERSAL - - (7,611)
Non-cash changes HHEZE
Interest expenses accrued FESF BRI X 634 - 628
At 31 December 2022 R=B==F+=A=1-H 5,912 - 9,423
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33. SHARE CAPITAL

33. R

Number of

ordinary shares  Share capital

EZERHAE B A
'000 HK$'000
F A& FET
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-—F—H—H 1,705,052 1,680,295
Issue of shares by top-up placement e g & A R
of shares (note a) mE TR (M ita) 341,150 69,936
Transaction costs attributable to issue Bl & 3T AR (D
of shares by placement (note a) TG (Fiita) - (1,049)
Issue of shares upon exercise of BRI 17 ok B Pl 4 7 3577
share options (note b) [& 5 (#1aEb) 32,400 11,162
At 31 December 2021, 1 January 2022 HR-ZE—-—F+— A
and 31 December 2022 =+—H
T F—-A—-BRk
—E-—%F+—H
=+—H 2,078,602 1,760,344
Notes: B
(a) On 2 July 2021, the Company entered into a placing and (@ R-E-—F+A-A AQAFHEH—

subscription agreement with a placing agent, pursuant to
which the Company was desirous of offering the placing
shares and use its best endeavour to procure not less than
six placees for up to 341,150,000 shares of the Company
at HK$0.205 per placing shares.

The completion of the placing took place on 27 July 2021
and a total of 341,150,000 shares of the Company were
successfully placed to not less than six placees at the
HK$0.205 per sale share. All the conditions of the
subscription as set out in the placing and subscription took
place on 27 July 2021 whereby a total of 341,150,000
shares of the Company (the “Subscription Shares”) were
allotted and issued at HK$0.205 per Subscription Share in
all respects.

The net proceeds from the placing is approximately
HK$68,887,000 after deduction of commission and other
related expenses of placing from the gross proceeds of
approximately HK$69,936,000.

EREEREBETURERREHZ &
I ARAREEREVERERH L
BERRE NRERED DR ASZERE AE
EREERMBO205BTRERS
341,150,000/% &R A & f {5 °

BBRREER-_E-—F+A=-++
HSERK » WA IH IR & % 5 & B2 15 0.205
BLEAIDRABERREARES &
341,150,000/ AR B ) - ERELE
RRBEHEMERBEEEZNA KA
ER-_E-_—F+tA-_t+tB=K"
WEEERERAQA KRG ((REK
ml)o.2058 Tl & R EFETEH
341,150,0000% ZREE AL D ©

REEBEBZMBSRBLBOHA
69,936,000/ 7T - M MBKREE FHZ
ReRkEMBARZE EBEFEZ
Fr18 7B F 54 /568,887,000 T °
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2021, 32,400,000
share options under the share option scheme of the
Company had been exercised by the holders at exercise
price HK$0.26 each for the issuance of shares. As a result
of the exercise of share options, bank balances and cash
and share capital have been increased by HK$8,424,000
and approximately HK$11,162,000 respectively and share
option reserve has been decreased by approximately
HK$2,738,000. The new shares rank pari passu with the

existing shares in all aspects.

34. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS
Share option scheme

The Company offered the share option scheme under
which share options are granted to the directors,
employees and other eligible persons of the Group to
subscribe for shares of the Company in recognising their
contributions and in retaining employees who will

continue to make valuable contribution to the Group.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 8 June 2009,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2009
Share Option Scheme”).

33, R4S ()
Bzt - (4)

b) BHEZZ=Z—F+=ZA=+—HLHF
& ARAERER 2T 232,400,000
MEREBR A ARTRO26TZ
ITEEITENAEITRG - ERITERE
Bt RITEHR RS ERAS B E
hn8,424,000% 7T & 4911,162,000%
TT o T AR R R A R4 492,738,000
BT -HBOREFEREERMNZE
BRE MM -

4. BRERKRGER

BRESE

ARBIREBRETE BB AR
BARABRND BRETAKEES -
BEMEMEERAL UBERSF
BRI TSI B RANEBEFHEERSR
BlzREBHEE-

ARERBR -_ZZNAFANA/N\BETT
ZERRBFAGLEBZERRAR
Ry —ABREFS (2T NLFH
PetgatEll) -
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34.

E__Ft+_HA=1T—HLFE

SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS
(continued)

Share option scheme (continued)

Pursuant to an extraordinary resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
14 June 2018, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “2018 Share Option Scheme”).

On 24 January 2018, directors and employees of the
Group and other eligible persons were granted share
options to subscribe for 66,256,000 underlying shares
under the 2009 Share Option Scheme. These share
options were immediately vested on the grant date and
have duration of 3 years from the date of grant i.e. from
24 January 2018 to 23 January 2021. Any share options
granted shall normally lapse upon the expiration of 3
months after the relevant grantee ceases to be an
employee of the Group. The Board has the discretion to

amend the terms of the 2009 Share Option Scheme.

On 27 July 2020, directors and employees of the Group
and other eligible persons were granted share options to
subscribe for 89,472,000 underlying shares under the
2018 Share Option Scheme. These share options were
immediately vested on the grant date and have duration
of 3 years from the date of grant i.e. from 27 July 2020
to 27 July 2023. Any share options granted shall
normally lapse upon the expiration of 3 months after the
relevant grantee ceases to be an employee of the Group.
The Board has the discretion to amend the terms of the
2018 Share Option Scheme.

4. BERERKRGOER (&)

BRESE (&)
ARARBER-_ZF—/\FRATOBEE
TZBRRFERIAE LBBZRER K
m—EFBEESE (2T - \F8
Pergst &) -

RZT—NF—AZ+WAB  KAAIR
B_ETNFREREAERNASEHES
LFEEBRHEMAERALREARE

66,256,000/% HH B A% 19 2 FE I HE © % %
BRECAREBHBERNSE  WHK
HABRABERBA=F (AN
F—AZ+WAE-_ZE=-_—%—A
“+=R) AMERBHZBERELLE
FERATEREEARATBALAER
BER=BAXRM -EFEWBEIBET
“ETNFEREE 2 HBR

\_ZE_ZEF+LAT+EH ARAR
—NEEREGFEMEAEEES
BERHMEERATELAIRE
89,472,000/ HHBARX 19 2 FE I HE « % %
BRECNREBEAREE W HK
LHBRGFAESBHA=F (I ZZE =%
FtAZt+tEtHEZZTE=-=FtA
—t+H) FREREZEREELE
EBATERBEEABRATEALEE
BER=ZMEARK EEGANBEIEE]
— N\ FE AR 82 185K -

%ﬁ%
M
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34. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS

4. ERERKRGOER (E)

(continued)
Share option scheme (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the number of shares in
respect of which share options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the 2018 Share Option
Scheme was 54,844,000 (2021: 56,372,000),
representing approximately 2.64% (2021: 2.71%) of the

shares of the Company in issue.

The estimated fair values of the options granted under
the 2018 Share Option Scheme on 27 July 2020 is
approximately HK$7,517,000 recognised in the share
option reserve, which was calculated using the binomial
model with the key inputs into the model as disclosed

below.

RS E (F)

RZEBEZZF+-A=+—08 " RE=
- N\FEREFECRLEBHKRTE
CERERM YR ZBRNHDEBEEBE B
54,844,000 (=% = — % :
56,372,0000%) - H#E N AR R B ETT
B0 #12.64% (ZF=—4F : 2.71%) °

BE_Z-N\FEREFEINR_Z=F
FrAZtHEtHEBREZEREZEFTD
FEX /7,517,000 0 (R EERRE B
BR)  DEBZEAENGE Hh
ZERAZEEGAHBERTREE -

27 July 2020

—EFF

+HAZ++tH

Share price at the date of grant REELE BB RE HK$0.26
0.26/87C

Exercise price TE(E HK$0.26
0.26/87T

Risk-free rate 2 [ M) R 0.069%
Expected volatility T8 HA R 18 66%
Exercise multiples — directors TEEH -5 2.47
— employees/other eligible persons —BE /HEMEEBAL 1.60
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34. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS 3. BRER RO RR (&)
(continued)
Share option scheme (continued) BT & (&)
Movements in the number of share options granted to REAREBE - \FERETERT
the directors of the Company, employees of the Group ARBIEE AEEREREREMEER
and other eligible persons outstanding under the 2018 AEZHARITEBRESBEEHNT :

Share Option Scheme during the year are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-Z-_—Hf+=-H=+—-HLFE
Number of share options
BhEHA
Balance
Balance Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
Exercise  as at 1 January during during during 31 December
Categories of grantees Grant date Price Per share 2022 the year the year the year 2022
- Jmt ke b
-f-B tZA=1-8
RRAEH RHEAH SRORE A 3 REREH RERTE RERXH 268
Directors of the Company 27 July 2020 HK$0.26 11,384,000 - - (1,228,000) 10,156,000
KLnES ZECRELAC T 0267
Substantial shareholder 27 July 2020 HK$0.26 1,228,000 - - - 1,228,000
IERR ZECERELACTH 026%7
Employees 27 July 2020 HK$0.26 36,060,000 - - (300,000) 35,760,000
8 “RoRFLACTLA 02637
Other eligible persons 27 July 2020 HK$0.26 7,700,000 - - - 7,700,000
EfpaERAL ZECRELAC T 0267
Total 56,372,000 - - (1528000) 54,844,000
i
Exercisable as at 31 December 2022 54,844,000
KRB _#+-R=1-H
TFf
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.26 - - - HK$0.26

METHHE 026537 02657
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34. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS 4. BRENKRGOER (E)

(continued)
Share option scheme (continued) BT & (&)
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE_ZE-_—S4+-_A=1+—RALEE
Number of share options
BRI
Balance
asat Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance as at
Erercise 1 January during during during 31 Decernber
Categories of grantees Grant date Price Per share 2021 the year the year the year 2021
RoB--f g =
) i il i \ o tZAzt-A
HRAES RHAH BRiTRE bai RERRH RERGE RERKH Va1
Directors of the Company 27 July 2020 HK$0.26 19,084,000 - (7,700,000) - 11,384,000
LmES ZECRECAC T 0267
Substantial sharefolder 27 July 2020 HK$0.26 1,228,000 - - - 1,228,000
1ERR ZECRECAC T 026% 7T
Employees 27 July 2020 HK$0.26 60,860,000 - (24,700,000 (100,000) 36,060,000
5 ZECRELAC T 0267
Other elighle persons 27 July 2020 HK$0.26 7,700,000 - - - 7,700,000
EfpaERAL ZECRELAC T 0267
Total 86,872,000 - (32400000) (100000) 56372000
@it
Fercisable as at 31 December 2021 56,572,000
AZE-FtA=1-H
¥R
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.26 - HK$0.26 - HK$0.26
MEFHER 0267 0267 026%T

The weighted average closing share price immediately REEBRETE BT 2 migFauk

before the dates on which the options were exercised MR B4 A0.44878 7T °

was approximately HK$0.448.



VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRERAA
Annual Report 2022 &3}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Z &M iRRM =

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T_—_F+-_A=1+—HILFE

34. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS
(continued)
Share option scheme (continued)

Movements in the number of share options granted to
the directors of the Company, employees of the Group

and other eligible persons outstanding under the 2009

Share Option Scheme during the year are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2021

4. BERERKRGOER (&)

BRESE (&)

REARBE_ZFTZNFEEREFEET
ARREF - AEEREREREMBAER
AL ZHARITEBRESRBZSHMT

HE-_T-—F+-_A=+—RAL=EE

Number of share options
EREsE
Balance as at Cranted Exercised Lapsed Balanceas at
Exercise 1 January during during duing 37 December
Categories of grantees Crant date Price Per share 2021 the year the year the year 2021
R-E_-% R-E_-%
—-A-F t-A=+-H
ERARR RiLAH BRITHEE &8 RERR I REMTE REREN &8
Directors of the Company 24 January 2018 HK$1.67 16,024,000 - - (16,024,000) -
ARTES “E-\E-A-tRA 167 T
Substantial shareholder 24 January 2018 HK$1.67 792,000 - - (792,000) -
IERR “F-N\F-A-tER 16TET
Employees 24 January 2018 HK$1.67 8,140,000 - - (8,140,000) -
R “F-N\F-A-TER 167ET
Other eligble persons 24 January 2018 HK$1.67 33,160,000 - - (33,160,000) -
ERERAL ZE-\F-AZTHE 16787
Total 58,116,000 - - (58,116,000) -
@t
Exercisable as at 31 December 2021 -
R-F_-£+-f=1-H
AT
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.82 - HK$0.26 HK$1.67 HK$0.26
MEFHTER 082ET 0267 167 T 0267

No share options under 2009 Share Option Scheme has
been granted during the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2022.

The weighted average share price of the Company was
HK$0.26 (2021: HK$0.26).

REBE2_E-_—FR_FT-_—F+=A
—t+—HLEE UEREBE_ZTTNF
AT B LB AR 4 o

AR aEz nkEFHRER0.26E T (=
T —4F :02687T) °
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34. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS

(continued)
Awarded share schemes

On 31 March 2008, the Board approved the
establishment of two share incentive award schemes,
namely the VC Share Award Scheme Trust (the “Share
Subscription Scheme”) and the VC Share Purchase
Scheme Trust (the “Share Purchase Scheme”) (the Share
Purchase Scheme and the Share Subscription Scheme
collectively are referred to as the “Share Award
Schemes"). The Share Subscription Scheme will subscribe
for new shares whereas the Share Purchase Scheme
utilises shares purchased in the market. The directors of
the Company and any subsidiaries of the Company will
be entitled to participate in the Share Purchase Scheme

but not the Share Subscription Scheme.

4. ERERKRGOER (E)

IR 1 2 B =t &
R-ZZEZENE=ZA=+—B EFgH
RS IR R D B ET 8 - BDER D
BB ER((RORBEE ] RE
BERhBEFEEF(RMNBESL)
(B BEAERENRBEAERES
Bein SR ET8)) o B fn BAEFT 84S R B
ity - MR BEEIDBAETS
FRBEZRD « XRF R EAERKE
RAZERKERZARNBETS
BAR2ERN BB -
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34. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS

(continued)
Awarded share schemes (continued)

The purpose of each of the Share Subscription Scheme
and the Share Purchase Scheme is to encourage and
facilitate the acquisition and holding of shares in the
Company, by and for the benefit of employees of the
Company and any subsidiaries of the Company
(excluding directors of the Company and any subsidiaries
and other connected persons of the Company in respect
of the Share Subscription Scheme). The Board may
determine from time to time to award shares in order to
recognise the contribution of certain employees, to seek
to retain them for the continued operation and
development of the Group, and to attract suitable

personnel for the further development of the Group.

Share Subscription Scheme

The Share Subscription Scheme is a form of a share
incentive award scheme known as The VC Share Award
Scheme Trust. The directors of the Company and any
subsidiaries and other connected persons of the
Company will not be entitled to participate in the Share
Subscription Scheme. The number of shares to be issued
under the Share Subscription Scheme is limited to one
per cent of the ordinary issued share capital of the
Company from time to time (excluding shares which

have already been transferred to employees on vesting).

Vesting of the shares will be conditional on the selected
employee remaining as an employee of the Company or
a subsidiary until the vesting date. The Board also has the
discretion to stipulate such other conditions in respect of
a particular employee which will apply to the vesting of
the shares. No share was granted through the Share

Subscription Scheme since its establishment.

4. BERERKRGOER (&)

IR 2B 8 (&)

i RBEAERENEEFEYEER
B ERERARRREFRBMERARZEH
BE B RBBEETMS  TEEX
REAREEAMBARZEERARF
ZHMBEEAL) REANSNmmEA
MFFANRRZBD - EFE A TEIR
ERBEEBRD  EASEETEEZ
BB BREBERSEBERAEEZLEER
BRWD  ARABEABABNAKRSE
B E-—SHBHAREZER -

17 iR R AT &)

B REAE A —HBRERKD ZE
FrEIEFE 2 By R T &) - AR A RIE
AMBARZEERANRRZHE MR E
AR ER2ERDBETE - RIEKR
MRBAE BT ZRNEB IRRAR
ATHZEHTERRA(TEEER
BESEERTREZ RO ZADZ— -

BihzBBANMEEREENBERB
BELERABARB XM B LB ZEE
BEE - EFSMARBHINERRE
ElEE BB < EMIRAF - BRI
’oBEEBKROABAERELRD -
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34. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS

(continued)

Awarded share schemes (continued)

Share Purchase Scheme

The Share Purchase Scheme is a form of a share
incentive award scheme known as The VC Share
Purchase Scheme Trust. The directors and employees of
the Company and any subsidiaries of the Company will
be entitled to participate in the Share Purchase Scheme.
The number of shares to be issued under the Share
Purchase Scheme is limited to two per cent of the
ordinary issued share capital of the Company from time
to time (excluding shares which have already been

transferred to employees on vesting).

Vesting of the shares will be conditional on the selected
employee remaining as the Director or an employee of
the Company or a subsidiary until the vesting date. The
Board also has the discretion to stipulate such other
conditions in respect of a particular Director or an

employee which will apply to the vesting of the shares.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
there was no movement or outstanding awarded shares

under the Share Purchase Scheme.

4. ERERKRGOER (E)

IR 2B 8 (&)
KB & E
BhBEEAE N —BERERKNE
HEERZ B RS - AREIRE
TAMEARZEZEREESERSH
Bin B EETE - RIBBD BB &7
ZEMBBTIBERARE TR ZEET
BERAN(TEREREBEREETE
BB 22BN Z= -

e
=}

/I

Bz BEANFETREERBRERE
AELEARRAASHBARZES
SR B A o EF N BEH NE
RAREEEERERBERG 2 H b
f o

BE-_T-_—_Fk-_F=-_—F+=HA
—t+—BALFE BOHBEFEETH
EAMRE RGBS TEXNES -
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35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. EAREE
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group's RI|ERR - REERFTECFTHER
commitments contracted but not provided for in respect B 2 &ENMT
of capital contribution are as follows:
2022 2021
—E=-C —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Capital contribution to a joint venture MeEErEITE
(note a) (Hiita) 495,063 545,348
Acquisition of a private equity (note b) Wb 7L 5 IR W (B 72D) 15,000 8,600
510,063 553,948

Notes:

@)

In July 2016, VC Brokerage entered into a joint venture
agreement (the “Joint Venture Agreement”) with three
independent third parties to establish a joint venture, in
which the principal activity is securities broking in Guangxi,
the PRC (the “JV Company"”). Pursuant to the Joint Venture
Agreement, VC Brokerage will contribute RMB445 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$495 million (2021:
equivalent to approximately HK$545 million)), representing
44.5% equity interest of the JV Company. Meanwhile, the
Company entered into a placing agreement (the “Placing
Agreement”) with a placing agent to procure on a best
effort basis, to not less than six independent parties, to
subscribe for the convertible bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$850 million during the
placing period, to finance the investment of the JV

Company.

Wizt -

(@

RZE-—R"ELtA ERFHFHE=F
BUE=ZFIL—Mhe&HE (&4
el  ARPEEREKT —HE
EREFLFLREEH2EE X (A
Enal) cREGLEHE ERES
& A R%445,000,0007T (/& 7%
#7495,000,0008 7T (=T = — 4 : 4
& 7 49545,000,000% 70)) A E R
AIAR#E 244.50% © tEHN - ANQF ERELE
REFTZI—ESHE (REWHZED -
IR B R XN & SRR ET
PRAEBIALTRBRACEES
#850,000,0008 Tt 2 AT TR E S - A
BEERNRIZIHEARMES -
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35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (continued) 35. EARKIE (F)

Notes: (continued) Hiat - (&)

(@) (continued) @ (#&)

The Joint Venture Agreement and the Placing Agreement
will become effective upon (i) the Company having
obtained the approval and authorisation from its
shareholders and the relevant regulatory authorities about
the Joint Venture Agreement and the Placing Agreement;
and (ii) VC Brokerage having obtained the approval and
authorisation from the relevant regulatory authorities for
establishment of the JV Company. On 26 October 2016,
the approval and authorisation from the shareholders of
the Company in relation to the Joint Venture Agreement
and the Placing Agreement had been obtained. As at the
date of this report, the application of the formation of the
JV Company is still under China Securities Regulatory

Commission’s review.

(b) (i) On 7 May 2020, VC Capital Management Limited, a

wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a memorandum of understanding with Mr. Chan
Leung, an independent third party, to acquire 16%
equity interest in China Bloom at a consideration of
approximately HK$9,800,000. A deposit of
HK$7,000,000 was paid.

On 26 August 2020, VC Capital Management Limited
entered into another memorandum of understanding
with Mr. Chan Leung to acquire further 16% equity
interest in China Bloom at a cash consideration of
HK$9,800,000. A deposit of HK$4,000,000 was paid.

On 30 November 2020, VC Capital Management
Limited entered into the third memorandum of
understanding to extend the long stop date of the
completion of acquisition of the aggregate 32%
equity interest in China Bloom from 30 November
2021 to 31 May 2021.

(b)

EEBBEREEHARROARAE
A s E RIS REIRE AR AR
REEHEEE R ERERE  K3)
EREFESEHRKIEERANEGEH
EEERIMAERERREN -R_F
—RETAZFTRA - EEHAERRE
EHE D ES AR R IR R IR o
RABREEH PHRHEFEEERS
EgMAERRKIEE DR ZHE -

)y RZZTEZZTFRHAELR ARFA
CEEMBRRIERAAERHA
BAREBYE= AT EER]
VR ERE NREBFREZ
16%I#E MPRZ2REHA
9,800,000/ 7T Bt B 2 (F1Z %
7,000,000/ T °

RAEIZEZENBAREREARE
BERABIERTEERT LS —
DR E TR DU — 2P g
EZ16%Kk#E Mk zRe R
{8 439,800,000/ 7T ° Bt Ut 2 =
144,000,000/ 7T °

—Z-EF+—-—R=+H" E
BAEBRERARNE=HD
RERESE NERWEPES
3200M 2 & T B Hl - i
T-—F+—A=t+HEERZE
—EZ—FRA=+—H-

B B %

z
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35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

® O

(i)

(continued)

On 31 May 2021, VC Capital Management Limited
entered into the fourth memorandum of
understanding to extend the long stop date of the
completion of acquisition of the aggregate 32%
equity interest in China Bloom from 31 May 2021 to
31 December 2021.

On 31 December 2021, VC Capital Management
Limited entered into the fifth memorandum of
understanding to extend the long stop date of the
completion of acquisition of the aggregate 32%
equity interest in China Bloom from 31 December
2021 to 30 June 2022. As at 31 December 2021,
refundable deposit at approximately HK$11,000,000
had been paid.

On 31 March 2022, a deed of settlement was
executed for the termination of this transaction and
HK$11,000,000 deposit should be refunded to VC
Capital Management Limited. The amount had been
settled by a shareholder of China Bloom under a
deed of settlement as loan on 31 March 2022 of

which details are disclosed in note 27c.

On 25 November 2022, VC Financial Group Limited
("VC Financial”), a directly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and Anli Holdings Limited (“Anli
Holdings”) entered into the Sale and Purchase
Agreement, to acquire the sale shares of Anli
Holdings at a consideration of HK$15,000,000 by
issuing consideration shares by the Company to Anli
Holdings. This transaction was subsequently approved
in the extraordinary general meeting on 2 March
2023.

® ®

(i)

35. EAREIE (8)
Hiat - (&)

(%)

e

R—_ZE-_—FRA=+—8" E
BEAEEBRARLEMMD
BRESE UERWETES
K300 1 2 HETHKHE - &
T FRA=+—HERZE
—E-—f+ZRA=+—H-

it

WZE=-Z—&F+-_A=+—8"

EREAEERERARAVER
MEBETE WERKESE
& HI20REZ HETKBE

H-E-_—F+-A=+—HI
REZZEZZFRA=F+H R
T —F+ZA=+—HEX
ARIE RS 411,000,000/87T °

RZEZZ—_F#=A=+—8 54
RIE FIR M T EMRE
il % 11,000,000/ 7t fE B iR 2
TEBREABEEAERAG -G H
REERZ-ZEZZF=R=+—
HEAEZ —EREREENZ
BIERBERMIEE - s BRM
27(C)#e 58 o

RZTE-_—F+—A=+HHB"
ARABEEZEWNBARIEAS
BEEAERAR(DEARSR]) &
ﬁiﬁ%ﬁ@“ﬂwﬁiﬁﬁb
RIVEBEmE UNWEBAEAR
ﬁi&h%ﬁﬁ%hhvuﬁﬁ
15,000,000/ 7T Y i % B1E ik 2
HFERD LR FHERZT
TE=EF=ZAZHZREEIXRE
R -
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BHEZ
36.

E__Ft+_HA=1T—HLHFE
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure each group
entity will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt and
equity attributable to owners of the Company (comprising

issued share capital and reserves).

The management reviews the capital structure by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group
manages its overall capital structure through payment of

dividends and issuance of new shares.

Several subsidiaries of the Group (the “Regulated
Subsidiaries”) are registered with the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC") for the
business they operate in. The Regulated Subsidiaries are
subject to liquid capital requirements under the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules
(the “SF(FR)R") adopted by the SFC. Under the SF(FR)R,
the Regulated Subsidiaries must maintain their liquid
capital (assets and liabilities adjusted as determined by
the SF(FR)R) in excess of HK$3 million or 5% of their
total adjusted liabilities, whichever is higher. The required
information is filed with the SFC on a monthly basis. The
Regulated Subsidiaries have no non-compliance with the
liquid capital requirements imposed by the SF(FR)R
during the year.

One of the subsidiaries, being a member of Insurance
Authority during the year ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, is required to maintain a minimum net asset value
and share capital of HK$300,000 during the year ended
31 December 2022 and HK$100,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2021. There is no non-compliance
of the capital requirements imposed by the Insurance
Authority the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

36. EAERERE

AEENEAERDECERREERE
BEAAFESIARLE ANEREE
FOEAEBEABARRETRRAM
H-ARE BRRBEBEFEES

AEENEAEBREBRER RARFH
BARIERD (BB BITRANER) -

EEEEBREEEARAREZEENR
BRNERRTSERNERE - Rt A%
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AEBETHBEAR(ZREWNBR
A REMEEEBRABTEES L
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HEMBRAASEEGRMZETB(E
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MA) ZREECHETFTARE - BIZFH
BERBAY  IREMBRANRHE
¢ (BEHGE CYBKERRIRTE
F LA S8 ) 24 B #E #5172 3,000,0007% 7T 3%
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HEZ

T _F+ZA=+—HILFE
37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 37. SR EE
Categories of financial instruments SREEER
2022 2021
—=E=-= T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets at amortised costs B ARSNER B EE 432,448 500,720
Financial asset at FVTOCI BATEIEREEMEE
WARBREZMBEE 22,592 23,173
Financial asset at FVTPL BRAFEIEIEERE
BRIR TG EE
— Held-for-trading —REER 300,595 423,505
— Designated at FVTPL —EERRATEIIER
MBS REE 18,100 8,964
773,735 956,362
Financial liabilities MBEE
Amortised cost R 31PN 35,548 44,092
Financial risk management objectives and MHEBREEZRERBEE
policies
The Group's major financial instruments include rental AEEZFEZECREBRBEESMKE
and utility deposits, financial assets at FVTPL, financial e BAVEIEREEERREE Y

assets at FVTOCI, accounts receivable, deposits and other

receivables, bank balances and cash, accounts payable,

accrued liabilities and other payables and convertible

bonds.

Details of these financial instruments are

disclosed in their respective notes. The risks associated

with these financial instruments include market risk, credit

risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate

these risks are set out below. The management manages

and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

MBEE RATVEIEREEMEZE
WAKRBEMBEE  BUWER &
e REMBKERER  RITAEBKRERS
FEfTERFR - Rt B E R E M RN R KR
AR ES - > Bl 24 2 FFIE A
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&‘?%ﬁﬁ% HZEeMEBREAL
FJ%FH%—EL b EERRBRITEE

o JAfe] B8 % 5 R B 2 BUR 5

D/<—_r

m e MEEJ";TEZZTJ—L R EITE IR MBS
R BRMEBEUETEEREE -
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BHEZ
37.

E__Ft+_HA=1T—HLHFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk
Currency risk

It is the Group's policy for each group entity to operate in
local currencies as far as possible to minimise currency
risks. Almost all of the Group's principal businesses are
conducted in Hong Kong dollars which is also the
functional currency of the respective entities of the
Group, with small amounts of bank deposits
denominated in foreign currency. Since the impact of
foreign exchange exposure is minimal, no hedging against
foreign currency exposure has been carried out by the
Group for the year. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis on

currency risk was presented.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to convertible bonds included in financial assets
at FVTPL (see note 25), fixed-rate accounts receivable
from money lending business (see note 26). The
management considered that the risk associated within

these balances are insignificant.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate accounts receivable from
brokerage and financing business such as cash clients
and margin clients (see note 26). Bank balances are
excluded from the interest rate sensitivity analysis as they

are not sensitive to the change in market interest rates.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy. It is the Group's policy to keep accounts
receivable from brokerage and financing business and
short-term bank borrowing at floating rate as to minimise

the cash flow interest rate risk.

37. R ERE (8)
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BE—
37.

E__Ft+_HA=1T—HLFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of the
variable-rate accounts receivable from brokerage and

financing business and variable-rate bank borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding were outstanding for
the whole year. A 10 basis point increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest

rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2021: 10
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s loss before tax would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$163,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: profit before tax
would decrease/increase by approximately HK$158,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable-rate accounts receivable from
brokerage and financing business and variable-rate bank

borrowings.

37. R EE (8)
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk through the

Group's investment in listed equity securities and
convertible bonds which are classified as financial assets at
FVTPL (see note 25) as at 31 December 2022. If the
market price of the listed equity securities is 10% higher/
lower as at 31 December 2022 (2021: 10% higher/
lower), the Group's loss before tax would increase/
(decrease) by approximately HK$30,060,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: profit before tax would
increase/decrease by HK$42,350,000) as a result of the

change in fair value of the listed equity securities.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

The credit risk of our Group mainly arises from accounts
receivable, deposits and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances. The carrying amounts of
these balances represent our Group's maximum exposure

to credit risk in relation to financial assets.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts and receivables from
margin clients with shortfalls in relation to the business of
VC Brokerage, the indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate loss allowance
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's credit

risk is significantly reduced.

For money lending business of VC Finance Limited ("VC
Finance”) and corporate finance business of VC Capital
Limited (“VC Capital”), both are the indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company, the Group closely
evaluates the borrowers’ credit rating, financial
background and repayment abilities so as to minimise
the Group's exposure to credit risk. The assessment is
based on a close monitoring and evaluation of the
collectability of individual account and on the
management's judgement, including the current
creditworthiness of the borrowers, collateral value and the
past collection history of each individual borrower within
the Group. The Group will take necessary action to follow
up the overdue loans and ensure that adequate loss
allowances are made for individual loans. As at 31
December 2022, the Group recognised a loss allowance
of approximately HK$78,362,000 (2021:
HK$70,545,000) for the loans with ECL.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS
9 for accounts receivable other than money lending and
margin clients to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL for accounts receivable. The Group determines the
ECL on an individual basis for customer with significant
balances and collectively by using a provision matrix with
reference to past default experience of the accounts
receivable, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
accounts receivable, latest collateral valuation general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at
the reporting date. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is

significantly reduced.

The accounts receivable from margin clients and money
lending services are pledged by listed securities. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the
accounts receivable at the end of the reporting period,
without taking into account the collateral is disclosed in
note 26. The management considers that the credit risk
arising from the accounts receivable is significantly
mitigated by the listed equity securities held as collateral,
with reference to the market value of the listed equity

securities at 31 December 2022.

Management considered deposits and other receivables
to be low credit risk and thus the impairment provision
recognised during the year was limited to 12-month ECL,
expect for deposits and other receivables are considered
that the credit risk is significantly increased or defaulted

will be measure at lifetime ECL.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the

counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned

by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout the reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the

following indicators are incorporated:

+  internal credit rating

«  external credit rating

« actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the

borrower's ability to meet its obligations

« actual or expected significant changes in the

operating results of the borrower

+  significant changes in the value of the collateral
supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-

party guarantees or credit enhancements
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37. M EE (&)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

«  significant increase in credit risk on other financial

instruments of the borrower

«  significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the Group and

changes in the operating results of the borrower

The Group's exposure to credit risk

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has tasked its
credit committee to develop and maintain the Group's
credit risk grading to categorise exposures according to
their degree of risk of default. The credit rating
information is supplied by independent rating agencies
where available and, if not available, the credit
department uses other publicly available financial
information and the Group's own trading records to rate
its major customers and other debtors. The Group's
exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are
continuously monitored and the aggregate value of
transactions concluded is spread amongst approved

counterparties.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group's current credit risk grading framework

comprises the following categories:

37. EMEE (F)
BREREEZRE RBEK (H)

FEEE (&)
AEBRITEERARFEERBEUAT
LRl

Category Description Basis for recognising ECL
bl it BARHGFEBERZKE
Performing For financial assets where there has low risk of default or ~ 12-month ECL

has not been a significant increase in credit risk since

initial recognition and that are not credit impaired

(refer to as Stage 1)

R4 BRORBES NS ERUAREERR
AEEEREZHBEE (BFI

Iéﬂzaﬁgi‘ﬂﬂ T-EAEHEEEE

Doubtful For financial assets where there has been a significant Lifetime ECL — not credit

increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that impaired

are not credit impaired (refer to as Stage 2)

15 &R B ¥ 25 TR LA R A5 & [ B B 4 hn B Y | A B R E BEFEPEBEEREE -
ZHBEE (RE2ER) I A ERE

Default Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when Lifetime ECL — credit
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on impaired
the estimated future cash flows of that asset have
occurred (refer to as Stage 3)

£ E-HIZHEUMBEERFARARBEEREATNEE EAFEHEHEEBE -
ZEHBER  ZEERHTEREERE (RE3IRR) EERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery

i 4 ERBRETEBABAREN GRS EAmALEKE  FIECD#HEH
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37.¢WMEE (&)
Financial risk management objectives and BEREMERZRERBXK (&)
policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EEmLE (&)
The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group's TRBIEEE R TR LR
financial assets as well as the Group’s maximum BEZEEHENASEMEHERAZ
exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating grades. ZERE -
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
CBICETIAZT-A i T o
External credit ~ Intemal credit ~ 12-month or ~ Gross camrying  Loss allowance et camying ~ Gross canying ~ Loss allowance  Net carrying
rating rating lifetime ECL amount amount amount amount
t2fERg
LAl b

HBEETR  ABEERR  RAREER FasE ERER EAFE FHAR BRER EAFE
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
Tin TEn TEn TEL TER TERL

Rental and utlity deposits N/A Performing 12-month ECL 1,608 - 1,608 2116 - 2116
RERkERE NER Rif +oRAES
EEFR
Accounts receivable N/A N/A Lifetime ECL 12722 (2,945) 9,771 22761 (1,650) 2,11
(other than money lending and A TER (Simplified
margn clients) approach)
EUWER (HER BEFEHES
RESEPRA) EEFR
(Elrit)
Accounts receivable from money N/ Performing 12-month ECL 218,751 (504) 218,47 109,229 (153) 109,076
lending and margin clients Nl R +-[EREH
EUHERREEEP L FEBE
EUER
Accounts receivable from money — N/A Doubtful Lifetime ECL - 163,733 (22314) 141419 264,945 (43,181) 221764
lending and margin dlients TR g8 not credit
EUHERFELEFZ impaired
EhER 2EFEHES
EEBE
Uk

il
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Accounts receivable from money
lending and margin dlients

EUHERRESEFL
EUER

Deposits and other receivables

BERAMENER
Deposits and other receivables

RERABENER

Deposits and other receivables

REREMRUER

External credit  Internal credit  12-month or

rating

HBREMR

N/A

TER

N/A

TER

N/A

TER

N/A
i

rating lifetime ECL
e LE!
BRREY

ABEERE  RAREER

Default Lifetime
s ECL - credit
impaired
BEGEHRS
[EE5E
-E8HE

Performing 12-month ECL
f AR

[EEBE
Doubtful Lifetime ECL - not
R credit impaired
BEGEDREE

Doubtful Lifetime
28 ECL - credit
impaired
BEGESEE
FEBE

-ERHE

37. EMEE (F)
BREREEZRE RBEK (H)

1EERE R (&)
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
ZEIIETZRZT-H “E--Ft-f=1-H
Gross carrying  Loss allowance  Net carrying ~ Gross carrying ~ Loss allowance et canying
amount amount amount amount

BE4E  EREE  BEFE @ BESE  BREE BERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKs 000 HK$'000 HKs 000
TER TER TER TEL TET AL

88055 (63417) 24,638 64324 (33,984) 30340
3,640 - 3640 8579 - 8579
- - - 37441 (5123) 3318
810 - 810 880 - 880
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37. M EE (&)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The carrying amount of the Group's financial assets at
FVTPL as disclosed in note 25 represents their respective
maximum exposure to credit risk. The Group holds no

collateral over any of these balances.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in Hong Kong as at 31 December
2022 and 2021. As at 31 December 2022, the Group
has concentration of credit risk on the accounts
receivable as the aggregate balances with the five largest
clients represent approximately 34% (2021: 30%) of
total accounts receivable. However, the fair values of the
securities collateral held by the Group for these balances
are either in excess to the relevant carrying amounts or
have no overdue amounts as at the end of each
reporting period. Accordingly, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is closely
monitored. The Group has no other significant

concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Internally generated cash flows is the source of fund to
finance the operations of the Group. The Group's liquidity
risk management includes diversifying the funding
sources. The Group regularly reviews the major funding
positions to ensure adequate financial resources are

available to meet their respective financial obligations.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity table

The following tables detail the Group’'s remaining

contractual maturity for their non-derivative financial

liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The

tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted

cash flows of financial liabilities with the earliest date on

which the Group are required to settle. The tables include

both principal and interest cash flows. To the extent that

the interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted

amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of

the reporting period.

37. R EE (8)

MEERERZREREE (&)

RBEL R (&)
RBEEE
TRERAEBETEMBEEZHE
EFRHFINZFRENTBREOHR -
TRBERAEENEATHEZRZFH
HzMBRaEIARAURRERERE -
TRERASEMNERERE - EFE
BEBMENBERT - RBREEA
HE RN R ARDTAE -

On demand Total Total
or less than Imonths  undiscounted carrying
Imonth  1-3 months to 1 year cash flows amount
fEg AERRSE
-BANR  -EZfR ZEAE-E pit L REERE
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TET TR
At 31 December 2022 RZB-ZF
tZA=1-A
Non-derivative financial liabiltes FiERBAR
Accounts payable EREH 5235 - - 5235 5235
Margin loan payables B RELER 18470 - - 18470 18470
Other payables EthERES 5,931 - - 5,931 5931
Convertible bonds issued (note 31) BRTTRRGR W3] - - 6,500 6,500 5912
29,636 - 6,500 36,136 35,548
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

37. R ERE (8)

MEEREEREZRERBEK (B

RBEZEE (E)

In addition, the Group’s maturity profile of its lease o - REEHEA R ZHEERAT
liabilities is as follow:
Weighted
average  On demand Total Total
interest rate ~ or less than 3 months undiscounted carrying
(pa,) Tmonth  1-3months  toTyear  1-5years  cash flows amount
&Y EEg RERRS
M -@EAUA -EZER ZERE-F -FE2Rf  REAE  RALE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER THR TR TER THR
Lease liabltes BEAE 525 - 2,008 3,604 419 9,804 9423
On demand Total Total
or less than 3 months undiscounted carying
Tmonth  1-3 months to 1 year 15 years cash flows amount
&g RAERAE
-BANR  -EZ@R <Z@ERE-E  -FEEE REEE BE4E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThER TER ThR TER ThER TER
At 31 December 2021 RIBz-%
tZA=1-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities 374 BB B
Accounts payable ERES 2,177 - - - 21,177 21,177
Mergin loan payables EfRESER 15,321 - - - 15,321 15,321
Other payebles HRERES 1,163 900 253 - 2316 2316
Convertible bonds issued (note 31) BRIk ES (Fi37) - - - 6,500 6,500 5,278
37,661 900 253 6,500 45314 44,092
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

In addition, the Group's maturity profile of its lease

liabilities is as follow:

Lease liabilities

Weighted
average

nterest rate

(pa)
T
EfE

%

fHESE 525

On demand
or less than
1 month
—RNA
HK$'000
Thn

37. EMEE (F)
BREREEZRE RBEK (H)

RBEZEE (E)

sEaN -
3 months
1-3 months fo 1 year
-2-fif zEAZ-%
HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn T
2,008 5,604

15 years

~EE0%
HK$ 000
TEL

9,804

Total
undiscounted

cash flows

rEARE
REEE
HK$'000

TETL

17416

AEBHEERBEZHHBERAT

Total
carying

amount

FEEE
HK$ 000
TiEL

16,406
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37. R EE (8)
Fair value measurement recognised in the REEMBMRRERBERZAFRE
consolidated statement of financial position 2
The following table provides an analysis of financial TREJINERSHRAFEAEZS
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of MEBRERALEUERIELCENRFEZS
each reporting period for recurring and non-recurring - DERBEASESTBRZAT
measurement, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the BEZABRREEMED AFEIEIR A
degree to which the fair value is observable in NEIEERBNERE B RKRIREE A
accordance to the Group's accounting policy. The RIERZHMBEERTKEBEZEBRE
directors of the Company consider that the carrying HENFEES -
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.
31 December 2022
—E2-__%+-A=+-—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EAE BE2MR B3R met
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FTHERT THERT THERT
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEIRRE
BREREEZ
MBEE
Convertible bonds AR E S - - 18,100 18,100
Listed equity securities IR AES 300,595 - - 300,595
Financial assets at FVTOCI R AFEIERRIE
Hb 2 EH KA K
REZHBEE
Unlisted equity securities IE AR AN FE 55 - - 22,592 22,592
Total et 300,595 - 40,692 341,287
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

(continued)

37. R EE (8)

RESUBRRRER 2D FER

£ (&)

31 December 2021

—E-_—-H+-HF=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EAE 28R B3k #et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TER FER THERT
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEIIERE
BREEEZ
MEEE
Convertible bonds AR E S - - 8,964 8,964
Listed equity securities AR S 423,505 - - 423,505
Financial assets at FVTOCI B AFEIER#E
Hit 2EKAR
BREZHKEEE
Unlisted equity securities NN - - 23,173 23,173
Total et 423,505 - 32,137 455,642
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

(continued)

The valuation techniques and inputs used in the fair

value measurements of each financial instrument on a

recurring basis are set out below:

Financial instruments Fair value hierarchy
EREE AVEER

Financial assets at FVTPL

RAVRIIRRABRE
RECBBEE

Convertible bonds Level 3

TARES EXEN

Listed equity securties Level 1

LikEES 15

Fair values as at
31 December

RE=AZt-820%8

2022
—_BCCE
HKS 000
THR

18,100

300,59

2021
“EC--F
HK§ 000
THEL

8,964

423505
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37. EMERE (F)
RESHBERRERERZDAFER
2(8)

Valuation technique and key
inputs

HERRRTERANE

HK§'000
TRL

Binomial model: By reference to
the isk fee rate of 4.14%
(2021:0.13%) and effective
interest rate of 14% (2021:
0.15%

ZERAES
2ZEARAZA14%
(ZZZ—-5:013%)
RERHE14%
(ZEZ-F:015%)

Quoted bid prices in an active
market

REMBHEEAE

Significant unobservable
inputs

EXTURRRAYE

Hk§ 000

%

20

Volaty of 1520CB: 85%

20

Volaty of 2708CB: 35%

BT

22

21

F——
ES :
T

1507 £k E%H 2
%1850

F— E
= .
- —

27087 Bk EH 7

K i835%

N/A

>

il

ECREBEREEMREEZ AFEMNE
Bt Z (B E 1l e ABURS ST

Relationship of key inputs and
significant unobservable inputs
to fair value

IRGARBREXTTRE
BARBRATECZER

The higher the volatiity, the higher of
the fair value of the CBs
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37. S RMERE (&)
Fair value measurement recognised in the REEMBMRRRERZARER
consolidated statement of financial position 2 (&)
(continued)
Relationship of key inputs and
Valuation technique and key  Significant unobservable significant unobservable inputs
Financial instruments Fair value hierarchy Fair values as at inputs inputs to fair value
31 December
IZRAREREATUEER
tREE ATEER RTZRZt-BeATE  HERWRIEBAME EXTUBREGARE BAHBHATEZRE
2022 2021
—E-CE —E--F
HK§'000 HKS000  HK$000 HKs 000
TR T TER TEn
Financial assets at FVTOCI
RATEIIBRREALRE
KAREEZBHEE
Unlisted equty securies Level 3 259 B3T3 2022: Market approach 2022: Merketabiity discount of - 2022: By reference to price-to-book
206% value ratio of 0495
2021: Market approach 2021: Marketabilty discount of 2021 By reference to price-to-book
206% velue rafio of 0.5
FLTRAES £34 kSt 2R 1 “Eoof: CRICE:
[ )idid BZTER0495(
#1206%
Ik Skt SRR it Sabt Ik Sub:
kot 13 BEMEEQS(

4120.6%
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37. e MEE (&)
REEMBMRRERBERZAFRE
£ (&)

Fair value measurement recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

(continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of

financial assets on recurring basis are as follows:

BREEEEEUNEIRATFEAEZH
BEEHK:

Financial Financial Derivative
assets at assets at financial
FVTPL FVTOCI assets Total
RAVE RAVEIK
SIRR7E REHMZE
BREEE BARER &
ZHBEE ZUBEE HBEE Bt
Unlisted
Convertible equity
bonds securities  Call options Total
kL
ARRES R 3% 5 REHE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET THET FTET
At 1 January 2021 R-ZEZ—5—-A—H 8,665 29,517 4,735 42,917
Expired & - - (4,735) (4,735)
Fair value gain through TERERR

profit or loss ~FERER 299 - - 299
Fair value loss through other TEM2ERARERZ

comprehensive income AFEER - (6,344) - (6,344)
At 31 December 2021 and R-ZE-—F+-A=+—

1 January 2022 BRk-Z--%—HF—H 8,964 23,173 - 32,137
Purchases BE 10,000 - - 10,000
Gain on acquisition FEmESks 7,600 - - 7,600
Converted i (8,964) - - (8,964)
Fair value gain through ERREEA D FERS

profit or loss 500 - - 500
Fair value loss through other EEMEZEKARER

comprehensive income AFEBE - (581) - (581)
At 31 December 2022 i —s

+ZA=+—-H 18,100 22,592 - 40,692
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The disclosures set out in the tables below include

financial assets and financial liabilities that:

« are offset in the Group's consolidated statement of

financial position; or

« are subject to an enforceable master netting
arrangement or similar agreement that covers similar
financial instruments, irrespective of whether they
are offset in the Group's consolidated statement of

financial position.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made
between the Group and HKSCC and brokers, the Group
has a legally enforceable right to set off the money
obligation receivable and payable with HKSCC and
brokers on the same settlement date and the Group

intends to set off on a net basis.

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off the accounts receivable and payable with
brokerage clients that are due to be settled on the same
date and the Group intends to settle these balances on a

net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on the
same date which are being offset, amounts due from/to
brokerage clients that are due to be settled on delivery
versus payment basis, amounts due from/to HKSCC,
brokers and brokerage clients that are not to be settled
on the same date, financial collateral including cash and
securities received by the Group, deposit placed with
HKSCC and brokers do not meet the criteria for offsetting
in the statement of financial position since the right of
set-off of the recognised amounts is only enforceable

following an event of default.

37. R EE (8)

MBEERVKEBEIKE
TREN 2 HBEERBRBERATER
ZHBEEMMBAE

%

AASKEERE BRI R AR

ﬁg:

- RRERBEBRIEIL A BRHATT
ZF B ALY R AR
R TwmHEETERAEELEEMB
R W o

BREAEEREBEEMELEDZH
BRBEREE DS AEEERAHROLRR
BT 2N HEEEGEELELZ
MER—E&EERIMEREEAER
FEEERHEZ RE R ENEREEER

BESN - AR B EE A ORE B BAT 2R
Mo SEELEP ZHAER— &5 B
APMAASEARRFBELBHE
Yo Ko FE A B SRR 8K

BRRE— AR MEE 25T AR H
Oh - BIERIR G IR M B L E 2 Bl
ENELEFPER LHERA-—BEE
ZREEENEERE KREEELEE
PR AEBERFHBEAR (2
BRENEF)  UREFERREBEE
Mg zBe  —HIATaRgBiRR
KRB FE - FEECBRRAERZ
BAMEREOFHRTABRFIAT -

285



286

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRERAA
Annual Report 2022 &£#§

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Z& MR RM

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T_—_F+-A=1+—HLFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
(continued)

At 31 December 2022

Gross amounts of

accounts payable

set off in the

Gross amounts of consolidated
accounts statement of

feceivable  financial position

R&a

Bl mRE#Z
BHAE EORMAE
HK$'000 HK$ 000
TEn TEn

Accounts receivable arising from the 7 F & £H B2
ordinary course of business of REMBERARS
dealing in securites transactions fES 2 BUER 170,340 (312)

R-®=—=%+=-H=+-8

Net amounts of
accounts
receivable in the
consolidated
statement of
financial position
Ri&
RhzEK
BRRE
HK$'000
TER

167,218

37. R ERE (8)
REERMEEEIRSE (E)

Related amounts not set off in the

consolidated statement of

financial position

Finandial Collateral
instruments received
TERGEHERRE
REHZHBRE
¢REE EhERR
HK§'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn

(6) (166982)

Net amount

FE
HKS 000
TEL

154
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37. S RMERE (&)
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities MBEERVEEEES (H)
(continued)
As at 31 December 2021 R-_ZE-_—%F+-/F=+—H
Gross amounts of Related amounts not set off n the
accounts payable — Net amounts of consalidated statement of
setoffin the  accounts receivable financial position
Gross amounts consalidated  in the consolidated
of accouns statement of statement of Financial Colteral
receivable financial position financial positon instrumens fecelved Net emount
e N

BR BR PERGRBRAK
Bh RAEHEZ KRR AEHZRBRE

EREE EAENEE ERFE EES L6yl FE
Hk$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 K000 K000 Hk$'000

TR TR TR TR TR TR

Accounts receivable arising from the /£ A & £ B2
ordinary course of business of REMEERFRS
dealing in securities transactions MEE 2 BRER 194,614 (17,298) 171316 (115) (162098) 15,103
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

37. R ERE (8)

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

(continued)

As at 31 December 2022

(ross amounts
of accounts
payeble

EAEREE
Hk§'000
TiET

Accounts payable arising from the £ RE£H BT
ordinary course of business of RETEEESRS
dealing in securities transactions mELZERER 9,457

(Gross amounts of
accounts receivable
set off in the
consolidated
statement of
financil posiion
R M
HRAKA
Bz RN
Eaes
HK$'000

TR

(94655)

MHREERMBAGES (H)

R-ZB-_Z-_%+-A=+—H

Net amouns of
accounts payeble
in the consolidated
statement of

financial position

RERHH
HREAZ
ENEHFE
HKS 000
TEn

3,602

Related amounts not set off in the

consolidated statement of

financil postton

Financial Colterl
insirumens pledged
TERGAHBRAKA

BHIRBRE

BEAY

PRER ha
Hk$'000 HK 000
TR TR
(®) (2309)

Net amount

FE
K000
TiET

1417
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

37

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

(continued)

As at 31 December 2021

Gross amounts of
accounts receivable
set off in the
consolidated in

accounts payable

. TRERE (&)
MBEERMBAGEY (E)

R-B_—F+-_H=+—H
Related amounts not set off in the

Net amounts of consolidated statement of
financil position

the consolidated

Gross amounts of statement of statement of Financial Collateral
accounts payable ~financial position  financial position intruments pledged Net amount
RESHK TERGEHBRARA
RRZA  RELHE BHZRBRE
EHZEY  HRRAZ Byt
ERERAR BRAE RARRER tREE gl i
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
Accounts payable arising from the AR EE KBS
ordinary course of business of REMBERARS
dealing in securities transactions MEEZERER 43,286 3m) 19,964 (115) - 19,849
38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. tEME AT

On 24 December 2021, the Group agreed to dispose of

the 100% equity interests in VC Global to an

independent third party for a cash consideration of

HK$7,000,000.

As disclosed in note 13, on 24 December 2021, the

Group disposed its sales and distribution of healthcare

products segment at the time of disposal of the Disposal

Group. The net liabilities of the Disposal Group at the

date of disposal were as below:

NRZEZ—FE+_A=-+WmHAE xEE
B & IR € A {E7,000,00078 JT [7) J8 32
F =7 HEHRNVC Global Z 1009 & # -

MNP 13T RZE—F+ =
AZ+WEB  AEEEHESELER
AutERHEREEERD HERREE
MmO e HEEENLERMREGAE
SHREEIAT
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from discontinued operation (see note 13).

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 38. H &M B2 7 (&)
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was FHEXEEERBEEE 2N :
lost:
24/12/2021
—E-—F
+t=-A=+mMA
HK$'000
FERT
Bank balances and cash THEHERE 51
Property and equipment EJSES 79
Inventories FE 87
Accounts receivable JFE W BR 3K 497
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR FRIE - ' e R E A EUER K 294
Trade and other payables X 5 K H e T BR K (2,638)
Accrued liabilities and other payables e E*E%&/H\@JEHEE%\ (285)
Amount due to holding company JE A 122 % 2 Bl 5K 1A (16,515)
Net liabilities disposed of I EaEFE (18,430)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR EE HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration HeaRE 2,000
Consideration receivable R (B 5,000
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R o (9,022)
Net liabilities disposed of Fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ*gﬁ 18,430
Assignment of amount due to holding company &2 :% & < 122 % I (16,515)
(107)
The loss on disposal is included in profit for the year HEMSEBRITABRIECEXER 2 F

Eaf(REE13) °



VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIZREAR A T

Annual Report 2022 &3}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Z &M iRRM =

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__Ft+_HA=1T—HLFE

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

38. HEK B QR (&)

Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEMEEL 2R MEFE - HK$'000
F&T

Cash consideration HeERE 2,000
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B FTHEZRITESRRIES (51)
1,949

During the year ended 31 December 2022, consideration
receivable of HK$5,000,000 was received. The impact of
the Disposal Group on the Group's results and cash flows

in the prior periods are disclosed in note 13.

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, during the year, the Group entered

into the following transactions with related parties:

HE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HIL*F
£+ FEYA{ES5,000,0008 08 FUE -
HESEUAEENBTHBZEER
REMEMERZ ZENHE13REKE -

30.BHBAERS
MIE MR EMEMPTIRESE I -
FR o AEBEQEBE HETUTRS

2022 2021
—EC-CF T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT

Brokerage commission income earned from HZAARE TEZHZE

certain directors of the Company or close ~EEZRTZ

ERABZ

family members of or entities controlled by T ¥ 8t 1% S5 4| 2 B2
these directors and key management FTBREN 2 & 4018 & U A 174 1,194
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 30. AR Z (1)
Compensation of key management personnel FTEEEAE ZRM
The remuneration of directors of the Company and other FARRNREERHEMEEREEZS 2
members of key management personnel during the year Eap NN
is as follows:
2022 2021
—TEC-CF T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Short term benefits 2 HiE A 8,303 6,772
Post employment benefits B B3 12 48 A 54 54
Other long term benefits H fth & Hi48 7 (10) 10
8,347 6,836
The remuneration is determined by the Remuneration e B ARAFHFMEESE R AR
Committee of the Company having regard to the ATRBERTISBEEET -

performance of individuals and market trends.
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

40. AR T 2 MBI RRAHE

2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k2 THERT FET
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries NB AT ZI®E (i) 2,688 2,688
Financial assets at FVTPL AT (EYEE RIEiE s
RREBZMBEE 18,100 -
Amount due from a subsidiary gl = NGIE e (i) 483,345 481,845
504,133 484,533
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other ERHIE - HE R
receivables H A FE U BR 3K 813 38,796
Financial assets at FVTPL HAFESEREER
REBECHMBEE 265,183 366,149
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG ] (iii) 320,742 339,927
Bank balances RITEE R 7,245 1,199
593,983 746,071
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued liabilities and other payables ezt & & R EH b
JERTER SR 986 824
Margin loan payable ERRESER 15,951 13,109
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENGIE ] (i) 346,532 321,816
Convertible bonds o g & & 5,912 -
369,381 335,749
Net current assets REBEEFHE 224,602 410,322
Total assets less current liabilities #EERABAERE 728,735 894,855
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

40. AR Az M BRR KRR HE (K)

2022 2021
—E-CF T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FHET
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Convertible bonds ¥R I 1E & - 5,278
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIBA G 97 202
97 5,480
Net assets EEFE 728,638 889,375
Capital and reserves BEXRFEE
Share capital fi% < 1,753,934 1,753,934
Reserves {8 (1,025,296) (864,559)
Total equity ERAHE 728,638 889,375

The Company’s statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 30 March 2023 and are signed on its behalf
by:

Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter
BRI %%
Director

EF

ARBAZHBRREREEETEN -F
“EF=ZA=THAMERETT XA

TIHEEHARESE

Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo

Director

EF
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

() As at 31 December 2022, investments in
subsidiaries are carried at cost of approximately
HK$2,668,000 (2021: HK$2,668,000). No
impairment loss was recognised for the year ended

31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

(i) The amount from a subsidiary of approximately
HK$483,345,000 (2021: HK$481,845,000) is
unsecured and interest-free. The directors of the
Company do not expect repayments from a
subsidiary within next twelve months from the end
of the reporting period. An impairment loss of
HK$33,000,000 (2021: nil) was recognised during

the year ended 31 December 2022.

(iii) The amounts due from subsidiaries included loan
and interest of approximately HK$293,089,000
(2021: HK$236,309,000), in which a loan of
approximately HK$18,208,000 (2021:
HK$18,208,000) is unsecured, interest-bearing at
Hong Kong prime rate 1.25% (2021: 1.25%) and
repayable on demand and a loan of approximately
HK$274,881,000 (2021: HK$218,101,000) is
unsecured, interest-bearing at Hong Kong prime rate
plus 10% (2021: plus 10%) per annum and
repayable within one year as at the end of the
reporting date. The remaining amounts due from
subsidiaries of approximately HK$27,653,000
(2021: HK$103,618,000) are unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

The amounts due to subsidiaries included loan and
interest of approximately HK$340,849,000 (2021:
HK$317,749,000) are unsecured, interest-bearing at
Hong Kong below prime rate 4.5% (2021:
prime rate 4.5%) per annum and repayable on
demand. The remaining amounts due to subsidiaries
of approximately HK$5,683,000 (2021:
HK$4,067,000) are unsecured, interest free and

repayable on demand.

40. AR Az BRR KRR HE (&)

0]

(i)

(iii)

RZEZZF+ZA=+—H R
Ff /B A 7 2 1% & 12 492,668,000
L (ZZT=—4% :2,668,000% )
ZHRASE - BE_T-_—_F+=
A=+ —BIEFEREERRBEE
B(ZEZ—F:8]) o
#9483,345,0008 L (ZE = —F -
481 845000;‘%7’5)2ﬁuﬂﬁE“
AIREABRERETHE - AR

ESVIEHMER Tﬁ/\iﬁ%/ﬁﬂﬁi
BT ZEAZARER -HEZZ
&+ -_A=+t—HILFEDHE
LB 5 18 533,000,000 7T (=
T —F | o

#9293,089,0008 L (ZF = —F :
236,309,000/% 7T) < EUW K B &
ARE(BEEREME) F - &
18,208,000 L (Z &2 = — & :
18,208,000 ) v E R & &K
HoRBETHREZENEM .25E
—E - —F 125 EREAR
ZREFEE - B IMI274,881,000
B (ZE=Z—4%:218,101,000
BIL) ZERBEERR BB LR
BEMEMOE (T - —F /N
10/8) 2 FEFE - BRREH
XE-—"FREE HEHH
27,653,000 70 (Z & = —4F ¢
103 6180005%71)2?514&%1%“
RIEREEF - T ERER

fﬁﬁﬂ,a%' °

#9340,849,0008 L (ZE = — 4 -
317749000;‘%%)2F‘HWE“
AIRE(RREFRENBE) BER
?ﬂﬂ CRETREERMNEFISE (=
T BEENERISE) 2
FRERFERERERKEE - H
#: 495,683,000 T (ZE = —F :
4,067,000 7T ) 2 &1 BT /8 A Bk
BARERT - T B RANERE

B -
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HE_Z__F+_A=+—HILEFE
40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 40. AR T B RE B LEE (F)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
(iv) Movement in the Company’s capital and reserves (V) ARAEARRFEHEES
Convertible
Capital bonds  Accumulated  Share option
Share capital reserve reserve losses reserve Total
mER
BE  RARE EERE  RHER  BRERS @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEn TEn TEn TER TER
At 1 January 2022 WZE-ZE-B-B 1753934 123,758 1,565 (994,621) 4739 889,375
Loss and total comprehensive FEFEREE
expenses for the year BXAE - - - (160737) - (160,737)
Transfer of share option reserve BREXNMER
upon lapse of share options EREGRE - - - 135 (135) -
At 31 December 2022 RZ2=Zf
+ZB=1-H 1,753,934 123,758 1565 (1,155223) 4,604 728,638
Capital ~ Convertble ~ Accumulated  Share option
Share capital reserve  bonds reserve losses fesenve Total
AR
kA RARE  BREE  ZiER  BRERR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL T#n T#n TER TEL TEL
1 January 2021 —F--%-F-H 1,673,885 123,758 10476 (1,043313) 34,851 799,657
Profit and total comprehensive income £ F R 2 AU A L3
for the year - - - 10920 - 10920
Reversal of convertible bonds reserve IR MM BE T £k EH
upon forfeiture EE - - (10398) 10,398 - -
Release of deferred tax liabilities upon  HAT AR EH#EESH#
setlement or cancellation of MEOEEREE R
convertible bonds - - 1487 - - 1487
Reversal of share option reseve upon  REEIREX MM ARE
lapse of share options hiEdh - - - 27374 (27374) -
Issue of shares by top-up placement ~ BN ERFTFARER
and subscription ARMEIRA 69,936 - - - - 69,936
Transaction costs attributable to issue BB EM&TRH 2
of shares by placement RHRE (1,049) - - - - (1,049)
Issue of shares upon exercise of ROREREMETRA
share options 11,162 - - - (2,738) 8424
At 31 December 2021 i ﬁ
TZAZT- 1,753,934 123,758 1,565 (994,621) 4739 889,375
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY
Details of the Group's principal subsidiaries as at the end

of each reporting period are set out below:

Paid up issued
Placeof  Class of shares  registered ordinary

41.

Proportion of ownership interest

RKARZEEMBARAFE

REBREMR  AEEBZTENEBAF
FHEHINMT

Proportion of voting

power held bythe  Principal activities and

Name of subsidiary incorporation ~ held share capital held by the Company Company place of operation
ifft HREET EINFE
KEARAR RIBY  FEROEH EERA KARfERRRRRLH REELH TERBRAELE
Directly Indirectly 31 December
¥ 53 tZh=1-8
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

“ECCE CEC-F CECCE CE--F CECCE CE--E

%

VC Financial Group Limited  BVI Ordinary share ~ US$1 100%
ERSHEEARDE EBRLEE LR B3
VC Brokerage Limited Hong Kong  Ordinary shares ~ HK$400,000,000 N/A

EREHERLA B LER 40000000027 A

VIC Futures Limited Hong Kong  Ordinary shares ~ HK$30,000,000 N/A
ERHEERAT B ERR 300000007 TER

O

100%

N/A
TR

N/A
i

) % % %

N/A NA  100%  100% Investment holding in
TER  THER Hong Kong

RERUSHELR

100% 100%  100% 100% Provision of brokerage
and securities margin
financing services in
Hong Kong

REBREALR
EARELRERK

100% 100%  100% 100% Note
fit
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 41. KRRz EEM B L AFE (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Paid up issued Proportion of voting
Placeof  Class of shares  registered ordinary Proportion of ownership interest power held bythe  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary incorporation ~ held share capital held by the Company Company place of operation
ifft HREET kDR
KEARAR Rus¥  FEROEH EERA KRS RRRRRLN REELH TERBRALLE
Directly Indirectly 31 December
E& B# tZR=1-A

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
ZE-CE -F--F ZBCCE “F--F CBCCE CE--F

% % % % % %
\VC Capital Limited Hong Kong  Ordinary shares ~ HK$68,500,000 N/A NA  100%  100%  100%  100% Provision of corporate
ERRERRAT i ERR 68,500,000/ T TER  TEE finance and advisory
senvices in Hong Kong
REERUCEREAR
ERRE
VC Asset Management ~ HongKong  Ordinary sheres  HK$40,700,000 N/A NA - 100%  100%  100%  100% Provision of asset
Limited i LER 40,700,000% TER  1ER management services to
ERBEERARLT dlients in Hong Kong
REEREPR
EEEERE
VC Finance Limited Hong Kong  Ordinary shares ~ HK§1,000,000 N/A NA - 100% 100% 100% 100% Money lending in
ERBRAERLT Bt EER 1,000000% ¢ TER  TER Hong Kong
REENE
VC Corporate Sevices ~ HongKong  Ordinary shares  HK$8,790,100 N/A NA - 100% 100% 100% 100%  Provision of corporate
Limited 3 ERR 8,790,100/ 70 TER  1ER senices in Hong Kong

ERNERKARLR REBRUNERH
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BE-_T-__F+-A=1+—HILFE

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY (continued)

Name of subsidiary

i} I

VIC Senvices Limited

ERRBARLE

\IC Research Limited
ERFEERDE

asy Task Holdings Limited

Century Race Investments
Limited

Experts Management
Limited

Place of  Class of shares
incorporation held

ifft

Rus¥  FEROER
Hong Kong ~ Ordinary shares
B EER

Hong Kong ~ Ordinary shares
Ei ERR

BV Ordinary shares
AERRES TRk

BV Ordinary shares
AERAES LER

Hong Kong ~ Ordinary shares
Ei EER

Paid up issued
registered ordinary
share capital
HREEER
EERE

HK$10,000
1000072

HK$500,000
500,000%

Uss1
B3

USg1
E30

HK$3,090,000

3,090,000 T

Proportion of voting
Proportion of ownership interest power held by the
held by the Company Company
K0
KAAREERRRRLA RERLA
Directly Indirectly 31 December
Bg B tZR=1-A
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
“ECCF CE--fF CECCF CE--F CECCE CEC-E
% % % % % %
100% 100% N/A N/A 100% 100%
TER  TER
N/A N/A 100% 100% 100% 100%
TER  TER
N/A N/A 100% 100% 100% 100%
TER TER
N/A N/A 100% 100% 100% 100%
TER MR
N/A N/A 100% 100% 100% 100%
TER  TER

299

4. ARFzEEMBAAFE (&)

Principal activities and
place of aperation

IRRBRAEHA

Provision of
management services
o group companies
in Hong Kong

REEREELT
REERRE

Provision of research
senvices in Hong Kong

REBRUAERS

Investment holding in
Hong Kong

Investment holding in
Hong Kong

Provision of insurance
broker in Hong Kong

RERRURR
maks
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

4. ARFAzEEMBRAAFE (&)

Paid up issued Proportion of voting
Placeof  Class of shares  registered ordinary Proportion of ownership interest power held bythe  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary incorporation ~ held share capital held by the Company Company place of operation
ift HREET kDR
KEARAR Rus¥  FEROEH EERA KRS RRRRRLN REELH TERBRALLE
Directly Indirectly 31 December
ER B# tZR=1-A
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
ZE-CE -F--F ZBCCE “F--F CBCCE CE--F
% % % % % %
DBK Asset Management ~ HongKong ~ Ordinary shares  HK$) 100%  100% N/A N/A - 100%  100% Investment holding in
(HK) Limited 3 ERR 17 TER  TER Hong Kong
EREERR(FR) REBUZRERR
BRAT
HH(DR)REEE  Peopls  NA RB12,478,100 N/A NA - 100% 100%  100%  100% Seles and marketing of
ERAdE Republic of N ARED48I00T  TEE  MER digtel assets
China YEAEHERER
PEAR
AR

Note:VC Futures Limited which was engaged in provision of
futures and options contracts dealing services in Hong
Kong, ceased its operation since July 2022 and became

inactive.

i REERERHEAERMEANESR
iz EBMEBERARBE T
FrARKILEE  HERNEEEE-
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets and liabilities of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion

of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of

excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A
majority of these subsidiaries are either inactive or

investment holding companies. A summary of these

subsidiaries are set out as follows:

Principal activities

FEXK

Investment holding

REEK

Investment holding

BREER

Investment holding

BREER

Sales and marketing of digital assets

BB EEHE MR

Principal place of business

FTELEHWR

Hong Kong
B

BVI
REBRIAES
Cayman lIslands
HeHS

PRC

1

4. ARFzEEMBAAFE (&)

ERINBARREERBRIEFELRE
BEEXEEZAKENBAR - AR
RAEERR JHEMHMBARZHRE
HLRBBRITE -

=
E)

THR  ARAAEMEAEEM
=YW AEBZHMBAR - ZFH B QA
Mo EEREXI/REERA
EMB AR ZMEHIIMT

Bk i
B H

N >
okt

48

Rl

Number of subsidiaries

KRNI g =
2022 2021
—E-= —ET-—%F
14 14
11 11
2 2
3 2

30 29
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BE-_E-—F+-_R=+—H1tFE

42. NON CASH TRANSACTIION

During the year, the Group has settled approximately
HK$11,000,000 deposit for business acquisition through
a settlement deed and the amount was transferred to

43,

accounts receivable accordingly of which details disclosed

in note 27.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

0]

(i)

On 25 November 2022, VC Financial, a directly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with Anli
Holdings, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability, pursuant to which VC Financial
is desirous of investing in the fund owned by Anli
Holdings. The consideration to be paid by VC
Financial at HK$15,000,000 for the sales shares by
the Company. The transaction was subsequently
approved in the extraordinary general meeting on 2
March 2023. Details of acquisition are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated on 25
November 2022, 13 February 2023 and 2 March
2023.

On 20 December 2022, the Company entered into
the placing agreement (the "2022 Placing
Agreement”) with the placing agent, pursuant to
which the Company was desirous of offering the
placing shares free from any encumbrance
whatsoever for subscription and appointed the
placing agent on sole and exclusive basis to place
and procure subscriptions for the placing shares on
a best effort basis subject to the terms and
conditions set out in the placing agreement. The
placing agent shall procure not less than six placees
to subscribe for up to 400,000,000 placing shares
at the placing price of HK$0.128 per placing share
(the "2022 Placing”). As the conditions precedent as
set out in the 2022 Placing Agreement were not
fully satisfied or fulfilled by 10 January 2023, being
the closing date of the 2022 Placing, the 2022
Placing Agreement lapsed and the 2022 Placing was
not proceeding. Details of the 2022 Placing are set
out in the announcements of the Company dated
20 December 2022 and 10 January 2023.

42. kBRER S
FRN AEECEBRSERBSEER
Iy B8 7 $24 #911,000,00078 7T * M % =

RIAC A EE AR WKER

BN K

27HEE o

43 FEHRER

0)

(i)

R-E_—_F+—A=Z+HAB E
BeR(AARBZEEEZEWE
NAE) B EER (—ERESEM
Ry 2BRAR)FLEE R
Bl EBSMERRERZERE
BETZHES  ERSMBAR R
LEERNMETINZREAR
15,000,000/ 7T - B B 5 H i 1
—TE-_=F=A-HzZEREERK
g EERE  WEFBHRAR
AIEMAZE_—_+—A=-tHh
H —E-=F-A+=AFK=-F
—=HE=AZRzR M-

RZEZ_—_F+-_A=+H AR
RIHEREERETLEEHE(ZZ
TZFRERZED B ARA]
EERERETHETWNERALE
ZERERGIERE  WZARER
BIRERE B3 E 2 ER R
o RERMEEEEERBERA
ERRBKEERNAE  -EERE
AR DA N BB AR B AR Y
ERMOI28B T 2B EEBERE
% %400,000,0000% g & & 7 ([ =
T _FEEFHE]D BHRZIE
ZZFEEHEAER . EREER
—E-=F—-At+HABIZE=Z=
FRESHEZKIEBE) BT A ARE
FHEKRIONE M _TZZF
ERFOERY M_T__FK
EFBEUEET AR _T_=

REFE L ABHNRARTBAHRR
ZE I F+ZAZTRRZZE
Z=F—A+BzZRfH-
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43. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

(iii)

(V)

)

On 31 January 2023, the Company granted a total
of 170,100,000 share options (the “Options”) to
the employees of the Group at the exercise price of
HK$0.145 per share under the 2018 Share Option
Scheme and the scheme mandate limit under the
Share Option Scheme as refreshed on 27 May
2021. Details of the grant of share options are set
out in the announcements of the Company dated
31 January 2023 and 21 February 2023.

On 21 February 2023, the Company entered into
the placing agreement (the “2023 Placing
Agreement”) with the placing agent, pursuant to
which the Company was desirous of offering the
placing shares free from any encumbrance
whatsoever for subscription and appointed the
placing agent on sole and exclusive basis to place
and procure subscriptions for the placing shares on
a best effort basis subject to the terms and
conditions set out in the 2023 Placing Agreement.
The placing agent shall procure not less than six
placees to subscribe for up to 400,000,000 placing
shares at the placing price of HK$0.12 per placing
share during the placing period (the “2023
Placing”). The 2023 Placing has been completed on
14 March 2023. Details of the 2023 Placing are set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 21
February 2023.

On 16 March 2023, Astral Wealth Limited, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an exclusive agreement with two independent
third parties to acquire a property located in Hong
Kong at a consideration of HK$18,000,000 of which
HK$8,000,000 was paid as deposit in March 2023.

43, S HAR E1E (E)

(iif)

(v)

V)

RZEZ=F—A=+—H X2
ARBE_ZE-N\FERESSIR=
T FRA-FTEAEHZER
BETEI T 25t 8IRERTE  HER
BAP0.145 T2 1THEEBRAEE
2 B & 1 & #£170,100,00017 & B%
E(ERED - BRREEREZ
HBERARRBRA=-T_=F
—A=+—RAR=ZZTE=-=%5=AH
Z+—RZAf -

RZEZ=F=-A=+—H AA1

AERERBIVEEHRE(ZF
“=FBEEHZED Bt ARQA
BEERERETHTEMNEREE
ZHRERNIERE  WEERER
BREBE_ZT_=FREHEMAZ
R A  IRIB R EEEE
EBREEE REKEERMDRE

fl & R EBERK T DR AN B AR A
RS AR SRS R5H0.128
T2 BL & B A% R B 5 % 400,000,000
REERD [ ZE_=ZFEESE
H]D  —E=FEEFHEHONZ
T=F=A+tHBEK - BB
E_=FREFHZFBINER
AR T-_=F-"A=+—H
/N

RZEBEZ=F=A+H 27
B2 &M B A AlAstral Wealth
LimitedE 2 M 2 B F = FE] LB XK
%+ LAIR X {818,000,0007% 7T U
B—EUREBEZYME YERZ
T = = F = A ¥ 148,000,000/ 7T
ERIES -
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A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated

assets and liabilities of the Group of the past five financial

years is set out below.

AEEBEREMBFRZEE
BEERAEMEHINNAT -

For the year ended 31 December

FEBA AR

BEt-A=1-BLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Z®-Cf ZBE--f ZBECZEE Z2-nE ZEBE-)NE

Consolidated results HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
CEES | TER TR THERT TR THL
Revenue 3 73,281 90,607 77,909 49,210 50,474
(Loss) profit before tax BB Al (B 8) & A (178,166) 17,668 (30,498) (93,960) (485,975)
Income tax credit (expenses) FERER (FX) 74 (10,874) (1,823) 591 (341)
(Loss) profit for the year FE(B8) a7 (178,092) 6,794 (32,321) (93,369) (486,316)
Other comprehensive expenses for FEHM2EAX (1,152) (6,344) (17,537) (160,030) -

the year
Total comprehensive (expenses) income £E 2 (B%) WA (179,244) 450 (49,858) (253,399) (486,316)

for the year am
(Loss) earnings per share (HK cents) S (518) BF (84L)

Basic EX 8.57) 081 (2.36) (7.59) (49.36)

Diluted 3 8.57) 081 (2.36) (7.59) (49.36)

As at 31 December
Rt=A=+-AR
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ZB-f ZBC-f B ZB-NE 0 ZE)\E

Consolidated assets and liabilities HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
GREERER THEL FEL TEL THL T
Total assets BEE 808,901 999,065 929,259 849,105 1,138,480
Total liabilities gaf (61,251) (72171) (90,555) (63,242) (99,218)
Total equity BEs 747,650 926,894 838,704 785,863 1,039,262
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